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We all have a Starbucks we call our OWI.

For customers, it may be based on a cherishe
how they prefer their morning latte. Or the welcoming v

neighborhood store.

For coffee farmers, this sens
more productive and their communities more prosperous.

And for our employees, whom we call
a company with an enduring commitment to be caring,

But no matter how you define your Starbucks,
we've made to do business in a different way. A way that truly val

A way that balances good business practices w

A better way.

At my Starbucks, they all know me by name, drink, reading
material-—they cven know that certain drinks correspond o
certain moods. On my last birchday. 1 gotup early and drove
past two towns to spend the morning at my Starbucks, my
sliver of home on 38th Street, reading. one ear listening to the

baristas as they grected each other, their customers, the day.

Harumi, customer

On the Cover: A fresh-brewed cup of Starbucks® Anniversary Blend, our smooth,
full-bodied mix of fine Asia/Pacific coffees accented with rare aged Indonesian beans.

d coffeehouse experience. A smiling barista who re
ibe they feel each time they enter their

e of shared ownership may evolve as we work togeth

“partners,” it may represent something alto
upfront and fair. '

each unique meaning stems fro
ues individuals and their contributions.

ith a passion to improve this world we share.

members

er to make their farms

gether different—

m the commitment that

My grandfacher Joe's 90th birthday was approaching,
We contacted his favorite Srarbucks and asked if we
could send aver some photos and a Happy Birthday
poster to put up in the store. The manager was more
than happy 1o oblige. On Grandpa's big day, we all
went over with him e geta coffee. His Starbucks
was adorned wich the pictures and the big birchday
poster. Your staff was so warm and accommodating,

they made Joe feel right at home.

Nicole, customer



Daniel Del Pino, barista
Novato, California
Starbucks partner since November 2004




Jerry Moran, stere manager
Metairie, Louisiana
Starbucks partner since

May 2003

a Soong Ching Ling Foundation and GiveZAsia
training seminar. It was held in Chengdu on the

the smiles on the faces of the rural teachers,
than this?

My Starbucks worked day and night with the Chin
for more than half a year to organize a teacher-

hottest day in the last 35 years. However, when | saw

nothing else mattered. The rewards were boundless. What is more precious

Kimberly Ye, Corporate Social Responsibility manager
Shanghai, China

Starbucks partaer since March 2006




For those who question whether the Starbucks Experience
can travel internationally, | recommend they visit Starbucks
in Shanghai, in August, midweek, at 10:30 p.n. You will
find 90-degree hear, 100 percent humidity and, surprisingly,
a store absolutely packed with people placing orders and
waiting for coffee; every rable full of 20-somethings having
conversations, laughing, running around, playing on
computers, living, The place is truly amazing,

Hampton, investor

Thanks to Starbucks, life has changed a lot for us, Why?
It’s obvious. Before, some members of our cooperative
couldn’t afford 1o send their kids to school. Now, with
the help of Starbucks, we've been able to build the

first schoo! for secondary education in this area. [1’s 2
public school for everyone so we can all see our children
get an educadion. To give them this is our greatest

source of pride, the greatest hope that we all share.

Roberto, president
Comon Yaj Nop Tic Cooperative
Chiapas, Mexico




Wherever we are, we both have an important ritual for starting most days.
We stopin toa Starbucks store for a cup of coffee.

ttle. But sometimes it’s a quick stop atan

to our local stores in Srarbucks hometown of Sea
p back to our very first store in Seattle’s

Many mornings is a visit
airport kiosk in London. Oraco
Pike Place Market. It's a wonderful way fo
the responsibility we have in serving our custome
made ro more than 145,000 partners (employees). To us,

build and the Starbucks culture that lives every day around the

nversation over a latte in Beijing. Or perhaps a tri
¢ each of us to connect with the people in our stores,
rs more than 40 million times each weck and the
this is what My Starbucks is all about. i's the relationships we

and a critical reminder of

commitments we've

world.

Sth anniversary, we ar¢ extremely grateful for the way we have been

We understand that with success comes increased scrutiny,
wcerned customers who want to know that the company

As we reflect on Starbucks 3
embraced by customers worldwide.
be it from the media, activists or from cor
is fair and principled. We've always believed tha

for how business is done. And we want to assure you th
a different way—a way that creates long-term value for

ur people who make our

t leadership companies must set a higher standard

ar we remain committed 1o our core

values and our vision to do business in

our shareholders while honoring the contributions of the farmers and o

success possible.

Continued growth in the business has demonstrated that our vision is working in 2

variety of ways. Our exceptionally strong and enduring growth and performance were evident

again this year as we opened 2,199 new stores globally (ahead of our originally stated rarget
bringing our total to 12,440 stores

of 1,800) at an average pace of six new stores per day,
cent to $7.8 billion, resulting in net earnings of

Howard Schultz

in 37 countries. Revenues increased 22 per

nings per share. Srarbucks has now posted a phenomenal 15 consecutive years of five percent

$564 million or $0.71 car

or greater comparable store sales growth,

Customers in new and existing markets continue to enthusiastically embrace Starbucks. Starbucks Coffee
and earned record operating profits of $108 million, During late

rowth in every region of the world
¢ locations in Russia and India during calendar

s in Brazil and Egypt and plan to open our firs
tbucks brand has been outstanding. In China, in
ming, space between home and work where people

International saw solid g
calendar 2006, we opened store
2007, Customer acceptance of the Sta

is emerging as the “third pl:lcc”—rh:n welco

just a short period of time, Starbucks

gather to engage and connect.

t equity in our Hawaii and Puerto Rico

gnificant strategic decision to acquire 100 percen
so increased our investment and equity

es and ensure consistency of our brand. We al
1 2007 1o help pave the way for accelerated exp

I fiscal 2006 we made asi
businesses to better leverage resourc
stake in our Beijing market early in fisca ansion in China.
15 Starbucks has been so successful is because

und the world. We remain steadfastly

ible full- and part-time partners

+ of the Starbucks Experience. One of the reasor

Partners are at the hear
ery day in out stores aro

of the human connection customers and partners share ev

ronment, and to offering healch benefies for elig

committed to creating a great work envi
are gratiﬁcd to see partners provide a

ane rise in health care costs. In turn we

great experience for

despite the signific

Our customers.




Coffee expertise distinguishes Starbucks in the world of fine coffee purveyors. And just as people are the heart of

Starbucks, coffee is our soul. Starbucks is dedicated to purchasing the highest quality coffee and paying premium prices to
reflect our ongoing commitment to coffee-farming communities. We're keenly focused on ensuring a long-term supply of
our high-quality coffee by engaging in sustainable buying practices and strengthening relationships with farmers we know
and crust. We're proud of the progress we've made with Coffee and Farmer Equity (C.A EE.) Practices, an unprecedented
program in which we have created a set of industry-leading, comprehensive coffee-buying guidelines addressing coffee

quality, financial transparency, and secial and environmental responsibilicy.

A passion to try to improve the world drives our vision to be a company with not only a heart and soul but
a conscience. Qur approach to corporate social responsibility {CSR) includes developing ethical sourcing pracrices for
products such as coffee and cocoa, strengthening our involvement in education programs focused on cultural diversity
globally, funding water projects in developing countries, and reducing our environmental foorprint. To learn more, please

sce Starbucks Fiscal Year 2006 CSR Annual Report, available ac www.starbucks.com/csr in late March 2007.

Innovation is central to the way we do business. It helps drive our growth and long-term success. In fiscal 2006 we
continued to innovate and extend the Starbucks Experience beyond our stores wich imaginative new ready-to-drink
beverages and expanded packaged coffee offerings. We extended the equity of the Starbucks brand
with our first venture into a film partnership, the rollout of our music strategy beyond the U.S.
and the inidiation of our book strategy. We have established a curatorial voice that our customers
have come to trust. And as a resuly, they have given us permission te go beyond coffee and our

traditional music offerings to ecnhance the coffeehouse experience.

We also continued 1o deliver the unexpected with imaginative new beverages and food offerings.
We expanded lunch programs o a total of 4,150 stores and introduced the ability to warm
pastries and provide hot breakfast sandwiches to stores across the U.S. This is an exciting way
for us to extend the brand and create a destination for more than coffee beverages. We also

continue to innovate and evolve a wide range of food and beverage options, from indulgent trearts

to lower-far and reduced-calorie choices for all consumers’ tastes.

Jirn Donald \\

Looking ahead, we continue to be extremely confident about our future growth and success.

We plan to open 2,400 stores internacionally in fiscal 2007, and we have set financial growth targets for wtal revenue growth
of approximately 20 percent and annual earnings-per-share growth of approximately 20 to 25 percent for che next three 10
five years. We have also raised our long-term store count target to 40,000 worldwide {20,000 U.S. and 20,000 International).

From our jeurney to stores in neighborhoeds 2ll around the werld, we can tell you, My Starbucks is a unique and
exceptional place. We are proud of our accomplishments and graceful to our shareholders, partners, customers, suppliers

and coffee farmers,

We hope to see you in our stores soon.

Howard Schultz E Jim Donald

chairman president & chief executive officer
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During fiscal year 2006, Starbucks continued to
suceeed in achieving something few retailers have
been able to accomplish: extending our unique
brand experience well beyond our retail stores

in new and imaginative ways that resonate with
customers all over the world.

An innovarive selection of ready-to-drink beverages from our
Global Consumer Products Group. New specialty coffees
blended and roasted to appeal to the grocery shopper. An
unprecedented Starbucks® Entertainment lineup that included
our first movie and book offerings. These were just a few of the
highlights in a year that saw continued growth, as an ever-
broadening base of customers experienced their Starbucks in

surprising ways and unexpected places.

Growing Strong

With the opening of 2,199 new locations worldwide, we
reinforced our role as the preferred coffechouse, serving our
customers more than 40 million rimes per week. Expansion
continued in China as we increased overall store ownership
and operations, buile critical infrascructure and hired
experienced, world-class leadership with local expertise 1o
meet the demands of rapid growth. Customers in Sourh Korea
welcomed Frappuccino® bottled beverages inco their local
market. Meanwhile, a solidly profitable Starbucks Coffee Japan
celebrated its 10ch anniversary with 14 consecutive months of
comparable store sales increases and a new line of Starbucks
Discoveries™ ready-to-drink coffee thar sold 45 million units

in just its first year.

A Menu of New Favorites

The unveiling of our highly popular Cinnamon Dolce Lare,
the introduction of four rare Black Apron Exclusives™ coffees
and the launch of assorted tropical Banana Frappuccino®

blended beverages and Frappuecino® fruit juice blends

ENTERTAINMENT THAT STIRS THE SOUL

exemplified our decades-long commitment to coffee expertise
and product innovation. By proactively addressing our
customers’ desires for a broad range of options, including
reduced-calorie and lower-fat menu selections, and by
expanding our fresh lunch and warm breakfast sandwich
offerings, we continued to make Starbucks an increasingly

frequent occasion in each customer’s day.

Beyond the Coffeehouse

Africa Kitamu™ and Costa Rica Tarrazd, two new ground
coffees blended and roasted 1o meet che taste profiles preferred
by grocery customers, were key contributors in a year that

saw sales for Starbucks and Scattle’s Best Coffee increase by

double digits in the grocery, club and mass merchant channels.

‘The introduction of Starbucks® lced Coffee, Starbucks® lced
Coffee Light, Starbucks® DoubleShot Light espresso drink and
Strawberries & Créme Frappuccino® créme beverage o our
ready-to-drink portfolio generated an additional 550 million
brand experiences ourtside our retail stores, allowing our
customers to enjoy their Starbucks whenever and wherever
they prefer.

&

AKEELAHana™ .
F . WBEE

Starbucks continued to establish itself as a destination for inspired and inspiring entertainment with the launch of a second
Hear Music™ Debut artist, Sonya Kitchell, new forays into film (Akeelah and the Bee) and books (Mitch Albom’s New York Times
bestseller For One More Day), and the rollout of our highly successful music platform to markets outside the U.S.

As a follow-up to these successes, in early fisca! 2007, we announced the opening of a dedicated Starbucks® Entertainment area in
the iTunes® music store. By cultivating artists and creative expression that enhance the coffeehouse experience and partnering with
iTunes” to extend our Hear Music™ offerings beyond the walls of our stores, Starbucks® Entertainment centinues to transform the

way our customers discover entertainment.
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When we set out to become the world’s leading
purveyor of fine coffee, we didn’t put all of our
focus on how large we’d become or just how much
profit we intended to make. Intuition told us that
our ultimate success would depend less on clever
advertising gimmicks than it would on the special
individuals we’'d bring onboard, one by one, as we
worked to make our dream a reality.

And so we began to surround ourselves with partners who
shared our passion for legendary service. Who understood
that one amazing cup of coffee, served in a place where people
always feel welcome, could elevate someone’s day. Maybe even
change that person’s life. And we made a commitment to treat
these exceptional partners with respect and dignity. We wrote
that down—and it became the first of six Guiding Principles
that would determine how we’d run our business back then,

today and always.

Living Our Values

Thirty-five years later, we remain true to this commitment.
We continue to offer comprehensive health care to all eligible
full- and part-time U.S. partners, We constantly assess

and updare our Tortal Pay package to make sure it remains
competitive. We provide broad-based Bean Stock options to all
eligible global partners. And we strive to creare a workforce in
each store thar reflects che overall diversity of its communiry.

It's a philesophy that continues to pay dividends. In a recent
global Partner View Survey, Starbucks partners weighed in
with an exceptionally high rate of participation (84 percent)
and lofty marks for overall satisfaction {86 percent}. Our
inclusion in the Diversityfnc “Top 50 Companies for Diversity”
and “Top 10 Companies for Latinos” acknowledges our

commitment to creating a diverse, inclusive global workforce,
I e el
n e

~~""Some Things Never Change

e -

As we gear up for tomorrow, attracting and training new
partners and leaders from many different backgrounds, we'll
continue ro sustain the values of personal dignity, mutual
respect and shared success we held as precious when we first
started. We'll continue to do everything we can to foster

a compelling, creative and welcoming environment for all
partners. And we’ll continue to sustain a thriving, diverse
workplace culture that each partner can be proud to call
“My Starbucks.”

Starbucks Totat U.S. Workforce Diversity

BE% - - 0%
" / >

0%
1 Femaie ] Caucasian
3 Male "1 People of Coler

The overall makeup of our U.S. workforce underscores a commitment to
our Guiding Principle of embracing diversity as an essential component
in the way we do business. Similarly, Starbucks executive leadership
reflects a comparable dedication to diversity, with a roster of Senior
Officers (senior vice presidents and above) that includes 28% women
and 22% people of color.

e,
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Nake Your Mark Yolunteer Hours Starbucks Make Your Mark Grants

Six years ago Starbucks introduced our Make Your Mark volunteer
program as a way to suppert our partners’ desires to connect with and
contrib_ute to the communities they serve. Through Make Your Mark,
we match partners’ volunteer endeavars with a donation of $10 to
their designated nonprofit organization for every hour of volunteer work
completed, up to $1,000 per project. If our partners enlist the help of
other community members, we match those hours as well.

r

During fiscal 2006 Starbucks partners and customers in the U.S. and
Canada volunteered 383,000 hours in support of thousands of local
community organizations. That's equivalent to 184 peup!'e w'nrking_._____
full-time for the whole year.

Shown Opposite: Tanisha Jones, barista, Seattle, Washington, Starbucks partner since May 2002
Inset Photo; Sarah Matsumoto, research and development lat assistant, Seattle, Washington, Starbucks partner since August 2000
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During fiscal 2008, we continued to demonstrate
that doing good makes good business sense with
a threefold approach that focuses on:

* Implementing Progressive ways to reduce our
environmental footprint

* Sourcing our products in an ethical manner
* Investing in the quality of life in our communitiesg

Environmental Stewardship

Exceptional coffee is our core business, Since the quality of the
world’s annual coffee harvest is strongly influenced by climate
conditions and other ecological facrors, we are dedicated 1o
reducing our environmental impact. This past year our U.S.
and Canada stores introduced the first-ever hot-beverage cup
containing 10 percent post-consumer recycled material, which
will eliminate the use of more than 5 million pounds of virgin
tree fiber. We also decreased the environmental impact of our
coftechouses by purchasing renewable energy certificates to
offset 20 percent of the energy used in our U.S. and Canada
company-operated stores.

Ethical Sourcing: Cocoa

As part of our ongoing commitment to ethical sourcing,

we began implementing a ¢ocoa-purchasing program geared
toward ensuring that the cocoa used in Starbucks products is
cultivated, harvested and processed in a socially, economically
and environmentally responsible manner. Based on our
industry-benchmark C.A.FE. Practices model for coffee, its
highlights include affordable loans for farmers, sustainable
farm management practices, the prohibition of forced child
labor, and economic transparency all along che value chain,
from farmer to exporter.

OUR BUSINESS IS DOING GOOD

For 35 years it has remained our goal to shaw that running

a profitable business and being a good neighbor aren't
mutually exclusive; that, with focused attention, a little

extra effort and an overriding desire to do the right thing, a
company can enjoy financial success while being a socially
responsible corporate citizen, Qur recognition as one of “100
Best Corporate Citizens” by Business Ethics Magazine for the
seventh consecutive year is a testament to our conviction that,
by ¢hoosing to run our business a little differently, we help
create a better world for us all.

Investing in Qur Communities

Trust is a fragile thing in this world. Loyalty is priceless. How
do we gain trust and increase loyalty among customers and
partners alike? Through initiatives thar magnify our promise to
contribute positively in the communities where we do business.

ETHOS WATER

Helping children get clean water: it's the mission
we share with our customers each time someone
purchases a bottle of Ethos™ water. For each
bottle we sell, we donate $0.05 to che Ethas
Water Fund—monies that are applied toward
our goal of contributing ar least $10 million by
2010 to help alleviate the world water crisis,

) In 2006 The Starbucks Foundation announced
S g Ethos Water Fund grants totaling $2.3 million

for the development of humanitarian water

programs in the Benishangul Gumuz region of
Ethiopia and in Sumatra, Indonesia. These initiatives will focus
on improving local water sources and providing sanitation and
hygicne education to cheir respective beneficiary communities.
In an important, related development, a new distribution
agreement with PepsiCo has paved the way for expanded Ethos™
water distribution, allowing us to extend the mission of Ethos
Water beyond the Starbucks retail score environment,

- CHINA EDUCATION PROJECT

In 2005 we demonstrated our commitment to China by
pledging $5 million through The Starbucks Foundation to
establish the Starbucks China Education Project at Give2Asia,
an organization dedicated to promoting philanthropy in

Asia. As a part of that continuing initiative, during 2006 the
China Education Project entered into an agreement with the
China Soong Ching Ling Foundation to provide $1.5 million
for a rural teacher-training program and scholarships for
students with financial need.

[l

THE LITTLE READING PROGRAM THAT DID

.. During the month of August 2006, Starbucks supported="

Jumpstart’s Read for the Record campaign, selling nearly
53.000 copies of the children's classic The Litse Engine Thar
Counld and generating more than $500,000 in donations

to assist Jumpstart in its goal of making sure each child in
America enters school prepared to succeed. On August 24,
Starbucks hosted more than 330 reading events across the U.S.,
engaging thousands of pareners and customers in Jumpstares
mission. Readers around the country simultaneously shared the
story of The Little Engine That Could with more than 150,000
children to set an official Guinness world record.

11
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The world's finest coffee. It sustains our
growth and energizes our expansion into new
markets, new channels and new categories.
When you combine the ongoing requirements
of our core business with our ambitious plans
for international growth, our need for an

increasing supply of exceptional coffee becomes
readily apparent,

Starbuclks C.A.F.E. Practices

During fiscal 2006, we continued to demonstrare our

unwavering commitmenr to helping farmers produce high-

quality coffec through our Coffee and Farmer Equity (CAEE)
Practices, an unprecedented rrogram in which we have created
I prog

A comprehensive set of guidelines to ensure that the coffee we
purchase is grown and processed in a sustainable manner.

C.A.EE. Practices addresses important issucs relating ro
individual farmers, cooperatives, processors, exporters and
importers—all invaluable partners in our goal of creating a
long-term supply of fine coffee for our customers, By requiring
safe and humane working condirions, mandatory economic
transparency that shows price paid all the way back to the
farmer and other verifiable measuges across our supply chain,
CAEE. Practices provides an a|[—cncompassinbr solution to
help establish sustainable methods of coffee production that
result in quality harvests year after year.

In fiscal year 2006, CA.EE. Practices once again proved

its value to both Starbucks and the participating farming

communities. We purchased more than 150 million pounds of

coffee from independently verified CA.EE, Practices suppliers,

an increase of more than 100 percent from the previous year,

and began verifying.the.firsg farms in Africa. We also continued
Eg,work'ﬂ'ichcrly with farmers thréugh our Farmer Support

" Center, an agronomy field office located inCosta Rica thar
allows us to work side by side with coffee farmers and suppliers
on their sustainability measures and coffee quality. -,

Fair Trade Certified Coffee

In addition vo C A EE. Practices, we recognize the value
that other third-party certifications, particularly Fair Trade
and organic, have for some of our customers. During fiscal
2006, we continued to support the Fair Trade movement,
which shares common goals with CA.EE. Practices buc
which works specifically with smallholder farmers who are
organized into participating cooperarives, We reinforced
our position as the largest buyer, roaster and distributor
of Fair Trade Certified” coffee in North America with

global purchases of more than 18 million pounds. We also
continued to work with Fairtrade Labelling Organizations
International (FLO) to distribute Fair Trade Certified™
products globally through several different channels.

¢ . CAFEE Practices Goal
L7 CAFE. Practices Actual

MEET YOUR COFFEE MASTERS

They wear the black apron. They number more than 24,000
strong. They've studied the mysteries of fine arabica coffee,
contemplated the rich intricacies of aroma, fiavor and body,
and mastered the precise artistry of grinding and brewing the

With our Coffee Master advanced training
Program and several other coffee education
initiatives, Starbucks continues to establish
itself as the category leader in coffee expertise,

Martin Torres, project specialist
Seattie, Washington
Starbucks partner since September 2000

bean to release the incomparable flavors within,

The Four Fundamentals of C.AF.E. Practices
Product Sacial
Quality Responsibility
C ol — C.AFE.
/ N, — Practices
Economic { Environmental
@ntawy \leadership i
Prerequisites Additional
Components

Coffee Purchased from C.A.F.E. Practices Suppliers !

155 !.’

150 - )

[
[
Hillians of [ :
Pounds 43 !
3 - '
i
Fiscal 2004 2005 2006 !
Year '
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RBoard of Directors

The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market
under the symbo! SBUX. The foliowing table shows the quarterly high and low
closing stock prices of the common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global
Select Market far cach guarter during the last two fiscal years.

October 1, 2006 High Low
Fourth Quarter $ 38.02 29.55
“Third Quarter 39.63 3493
Second Quarter 37.63 30.24
First Quarter 31.96 2491
Octoher 2. 2005 High Low
Fourth Quarter $ 26.35 23.08
“Third Quarter 28.13 2278
Second Quarter 30.80 24.79
First Quarter 3194 23.53

Board OfDirBCIOTS shown from lefi 1o right:

Olden Lee PepsiCo. Inc., rerired executive

Howard Schultz Srarbucks Corparation, chairman

Barbara Bass Gerson Bukar Foundation, president

William W, (Bill) Bradley Allen & Company

LLC, managing directar

Howard Behar Starbucks Corporation. director

Myron E. Ullman, ML f.C. Penney Company. Inc.. chaivman and chief executive 8 icer

James 1.. Donald Starbucks Corporation, president and chiefexecutive afffcer

James G. Shennan. Jr. Trinity Ventures, general partner emeritus

Craig E, Weatherup Pepsi-Cola Company, retired chief executive afficer

Mellody Hobsen Ariel Capital Management.

LLCiAviel Musnal Funds, president

avier G. Teruel Coll ate-Palmolive Company, vice chairman
g A

The Company's Securities and
Exchange Commission filings may

be obtained without charge by
accessing the Investor Relations
section af the Company’s website at
http:/finvestor.starbucks.com, at
www.sec.gov or by making a request
10 Investor Relations via the address,
phone number or website listed below.

Investor Relations

Starbucks Corporation

PO Box 34067

M/S FP1

Seattle, WA 98124-1067
{206 447-1575, ext. 87118

http:flinvestor.starhucks.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Delostte and Touche LLP

TRANSFER AGENT

Meilen Investor Services
Starbucks Coffee Company

¢/o Mellon [nvestar Services. LLC
P.O. Box 3315

South Hackensack, NJ 07606

(888) 835-2866
www.melloninvestor.com/isd
ANNUAL MEETING OF

SHAREHOLDERS
March 21, 2007, 10:00 a.m. PST

Marion Oliver McCaw Hall, Seattte, WA

Live webcast at:
http:#investor.starbucks.com

NOTE: To help address capacily cesstianls, each
Praxy Statement conlains two adnussien lickels for
the Annual Meehng, Each attendee must present
an admissien kel o be adauited to this meetng.
Registration opens atdam




Senior Officers

Senior O_ﬁcers Janees L. Donald and his direc reporis, from left to right:

James C. Alling presidens, Starbucks Coffes U.5.

Anne Saunders senior pice president, Global Brand Strategy and Communications
Dorothy J. Kim executive vice president, Supply Chain Operations

David A. Pace excentive vice president, Partner Resources

Kenneth T. Lombard senior vice president; president, Starbucks Entersainment
Gerardo L. Lopez senior pice president; president, Glabal Consumer Producrs
Sandra E. Taylor senior vice president, Corporate Social Responsibilizy

James L. Danald president and chief executive officer

Paula E. Boggs exerwtive pice president, general counsel and secresqry

Michael Casey executive vice president, chief financial officer and chief administrative aofficer
Martin Coles president, Starbucks Coffee insernarional

Corporaic Social Responsibility
. Our commitment 1o conduct our business in ways that

produce social, environmental and economic benefits to the
communities where we operate is integral to our overall strategy.
In an effort 1o remain open, transparent and accountable,

we publish a Corporate Social Responsibility annual report.
Starbucks Fiscal 2006 CSR Annual Report will be available
online at www.starbucks.com/csr beginning March 21, 2007,

iell Us About Your Siarbuck

Each of us has our own unique Starbucks story to share.

Of a morning brightened by the perfect latte. A mezningful
connection made over a white cup. Or a community forever
changed by a coffechouse, We invite you to share your Starbucks
story with us ag www.mystarbucksstory.com.,

Senior Oﬁcers not shown:

Howard Schultz chairman

Troy Alstead semior vice pretident, Finance

Cliff Burrows senior vice presidens; president, EuropelMiddle EastiAfrica
Brian Crynes senior vice president and chief information offtcer
Christine Day senior vice president: president, Asia Facific Group
Michelle Gass senior vige president, Casegory Managemeny

Margaret Giuntini senior vice president, Paviner Resources, .5, Business

Juan Guerrero renior pice president. Global Lagistics and International
Supply Chain Operation;

Julio Gutiétrez semior vice presidens, New Markess, Starbucks Coffer International
Willard (Dub) Hay senior vice prevident, Coffee and Global Procuererent

Buck Hendrix sensor vice president; presidens, Latin America

Gregg S. Johnson senior vice president, Global Busines Systerns Solutions

Chet Kuchinad senior pice presidens, Total Pay

David Landau senior vice presidens, depury grneral counsel and chief compliunce officer
Katharine Lind¢mann senior vice president, Store Operations Services

Mark Lindstrom senior vice president, Western Division

Colin Moore senior vice presidens; presidens, Searbucks Coffee Canada

Dave Olsen senior vice presidens, Culure and Leadership Developmens

Mart Sikes senior vice president, U5, Finance

Launi Skinner senior vice president, Store Development

Sheri Southern senior pier president, Partner Resources, Starbucks Coffee International
Michael Stafford sendar vice president, Organization and Partner Development

Marc D, Stolzman senipr vice presidens, Finance and Business Develapment,
Starbucks Coffee International

Paul ‘Twohig semior vice presidens, Eastern Divition
Jinlong Wang senior vice president; presidens, Greater Chinag
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-« 10-K REPCRT

It takes a lot of paper to print an annual report like this for our many shareholders.

To minimize our environmental impact, the narrative (not the 10-K) of the Starbucks Corporation Fiscal
2006 Annual Report was printed on paper manufactured from 100% post-consumer waste (PCW)} fibers
using Green-e certified renewable energy certificates.

We'll keep looking for ways to furcher reduce our environmental footprint. Thanks for your support.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Starbucks Corporation is filing this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (“Form 10-K/A”) to its Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006 as filed with the Securiries and Exchange Commission on
December 14, 2006 (the “Original Filing”) solely to correct an administrative error in the content of Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The error appears in
the first full paragraph on page 25 of the Original Filing. In the third sentence of that paragraph the 7% increase in
comparable store sales growth in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 is attributed to a 5% increase in the average value per
transaction and a 2% increase in the number of customer transactions. The correct explanation is as follows: “The
increase in comparable store sales was due to a 5% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 2% increase in
the average value per transaction.”

This Amendment does not update any disclosures to reflect developments since the filing date of the Original Filing.

In accordance with SEC Rule 12b-15, this Form 10-K/A sets forth the complete text of Irem 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, as amended. However, in order to reduce
printing and mailing costs, for purposes of providing the disclosure required under SEC rules in the Company’s fiscal
2006 Annual Report to Shareholders (the “Annual Report”), the Company intends to provide shareholders (1) this
Form 10-K/A, with only its explanatory note, signatures and certifications, (but excluding the full Item 7 as amended),
together with (2) the Original Filing filed on December 14, 2006. The complete Form 10-K/A, including the full Irem 7
as amended, will be available at the Company’s web site set forth below and on the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov, and will
be provided without charge upon written request to the following address:

Investor Relations
Starbucks Corporation
2401 Urah Avenue South, Mail Swop: FP1
Seattle, Washington 98134-1435
{206) 447-1575 x87118
investorrelations@starbucks.com
htep://investorstarbucks.com

In addition, we have filed the following exhibits, which are not reproduced in this printed version:

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of che Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Except as described above, no other changes have been made to the Original Filing and this Form 10-K/A does not
amend, update or change the financial statements or any other items or disclosures in the Original Filing,.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorized.

STARBUCKS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Michael Casey
Michael Casey

executive vice president, chief financial officer and chief
administrative officer

December 21, 2006
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PART 1
Item 1. Business
GENERAL

Starbucks Corporation {together with its subsidiaries, “Starbucks” or the “Company”) was formed in 1985. Starbucks
purchases and roasts high-quality whole bean coffees and sells them, along with fresh, rich-brewed coffees, Italian-style
espresso beverages, cold blended beverages, a variety of complementary food items, coffee-related accessories and
equipment, a selection of premium teas and a line of compacr discs, primarily through Company-operated retatl stores.
Starbucks also sells coffee and tea products and licenses its trademark through other channels and, through certain of its
equity investees, Starbucks produces and sells ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled
Frappuccino® coffee drinks and Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks, and a line of superpremium ice creams. All
channels outside the Company-operated retail stores ate collectively known as “Specialty Operations.” The Company’s
objective is to establish Starbucks as ane of the most recognized and respected brands in the world. To achieve this goal,
the Company plans to continue rapid expansion of its retail operations, to grow its Specialty Operations and ro selectively
pursue other opportunities to leverage the Starbucks brand chrough the introduction of new products and the
development of new channels of distribution. The Company’s brand portfolio includes superpremium Tazo® teas,
Starbucks Hear Music’ compact discs, Seatcle’s Best Coffee® and Torrefazione Italia® coffee.

SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Beginning in the fiscal fourth quacter of 2006, the Company increased its reporting segments from two to three to include
a Global Consumer Products Group (“CPG”) segment in addition to the United States and International segments. This
additional operating segment reflects the culmination of internal management realignments in fiscal 2006, and the
successful development and launch of certain branded products in the United States and internationally commencing in
fiscal 2005 and continuing throughout fiscal 2006. Additionally, with the 100% acquisition of the Company’s operations
in Hawaii in fiscal 2006 and the shift in internal management of this marker to the United States, these operations have
been moved from the International segment into the United States segment. Segment information for all prior periods
presented has been revised to reflect these changes.

The United States and International segments both include Company-operated retail stores and cerraini components of
Specialty Operations. Specialty operations within the United States include licensed retail stores, foodservice accounts
and other initiatives related to the Company’s core business. International specialty operations primarily include rerail
store licensing operations in more than 25 countries and foodservice accounts in Canada and the United Kingdom. The
CPG segment includes the Company's grocery and warehouse ctub business as well as branded products operations
worldwide. Information about Starbucks revenues, earnings before income taxes, depreciation and amortization, income
from equity investees, equity method investments, identifiable assets, ner impairment and disposition losses and capiral
expenditures by segment is included in Note 19 “Segment Reporting” to the consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K” or “Report”).
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REVENUE COMPONENTS

The following table shows the Company's revenue components for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006

% of 45 of
Tosal Net Spedialey
REVENUES Revenues Revenues
Company-operated retail 85%
Specialty:
Licensing;
Rerail stores 7% 45%,
Grocery and warehouse club 4% 24%
Branded products <1% 2%
Toral licensing 11% 71%
Foodservice and other:
Foodservice 4% 27%
Other initiatives <1% 2%
Total foodservice and other 4% 29%
Total specialty 15%  100%
Toral net revenues 100%

COMPANY-OPERATED RETAIL STORES

The Company's retait goal is to become the leading retailer and brand of coffee in each of its target markets by selling the
finest quality coffee and related products and by providing each customer a unique Starbucks Experience. The Starbucks
Experience, or third place after home and work, is built upon superior customer service as well as clean and well-
maintained Company-operated retail stores that reflect the personalities of the communities in which they operate,
thereby building a high degree of customer loyalty. Starbucks strategy for expanding its retail business is to increase its
market share primarily by opening additional stores in existing markets and to open stores in new markets where the
opportunity exists to become the leading specialty coffee retailer. In support of this strategy, Starbucks opened 1,040 new
Company-operated stores during the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006 (“fiscal 20067). Starbucks Company-operated
| retail stores, including 11 Searle’s Best Coffec® (*SBC”} stores and 4 Hear Music retail stores, accounted for 85% of total
net revenues during fiscal 2006.
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The following table summarizes total Company-operated retail store data for the periods indicated:
Net Stotes Opened

Dusing the
Fiscal Year Ended Stozes Open 2 of
Oct1, 2006  Ocr2, 2005  Oc1,2006 O 2, 2005
United States 810 580 5,728 4,918
International:
United Kingdom 47 45 514 467
Canada 74 62 508 434
Thailand 22 14 85 63
Australia 25 14 83 58
Germany 24 9 68 44
China 14 18 38 24
Singapore 5 3) 37 32
Puerto Rico 6 5 17 11
Chile G 1 16 10
Ireland 7 1 8 1
Total International 230 166 1,374 1,144
Total Company-operated 1,040 746 7,102 6,062

(1) Internarional store data has been adjusted for the acquisitions of the Puerto Rico and Hawaii operations by reclassifying historical
information from Licensed stores to Company-operated stores. United States store data was also adjusted to align with the Hawaii
operations segment change by reclassifying historical information from International Company-operated stores to the United Srares.

Starbucks retail stores are typically located in high-traffic, high-visibility locations. Because the Company can vary the size
and formay, its stores are located in or near a variety of settings, including downtown and suburban retail centers, office
buildings and university campuses. While the Company selectively locates stores in shopping malls, it focuses on
locations that provide convenient access for both pedestrians and drivers. With the flexibility in store size and format, che
Company also locates retail stores in select rural and off-highway locations to serve a broader array of customers outside
major metropolitan markets and furcher expand brand awareness. To provide a greater degree of access and convenience
for nonpedestrian customers, the Company has increased development of Drive-Thru retail stores. At the end of fiscal
2006, the Company operated approximately 1,600 Drive-Thru locations.

All Starbucks stores offer a choice of regular and decaffeinated coffee beverages, a broad selection of Italian-style espresso
beverages, cold blended beverages, iced shaken refreshment beverages, a selection of teas and distinctively packaged
roasted whole bean coffees. Starbucks stores also offer a selection of fresh pastries and other food items, sodas, juices,
bottled water, coffee-making equipment and accessories, a selection of compact discs, games and seasonal novelty items.
Each Starbucks store varies its product mix depending upon the size of the store and its location. Larger stores carry a
broad selection of the Company’s whole bean coffces in various sizes and types of packaging, as well as an assortment of
coffee and espresso-making equipment and accessories such as coffee grinders, coffee filters, storage containers, travel
tumblers and mugs. Smalter Starbucks stores and kiosks typically sell a full line of coffee beverages, a limited selection of
whale bean coffees and a few accessories such as travel tumblers and logo mugs. In the United States and in International
markets, approximately 3,800 stores and 1,300 stores, respectively, carry a selection of prepared sandwiches and salads.
Starbucks continues to expand its food warming program in sclect markets in the United States, with approximarely 640
stores as of October 1, 2006 providing warm food items including breakfast sandwiches.

The Company's retail sales mix by product type during fiscal 2006 was as follows: 77% beverages, 15% food, 3% whole
bean coffees and 5% coffee-making equipment and other merchandise.

SPECIALTY OPERATIONS

Specialty Operations strive to develop the Company’s brands outside the Company-operated retail store environment
through a number of channels. Starbucks strategy is to reach customers where they work, travel, shop and dine by
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establishing relationships with prominent third parries that share the Company’s values and commitment o quality.
These relationships take various forms, including licensing arrangements, foodservice accounts and other initiatives
related to the Company’s core businesses, In certain situations, Starbucks has an equity ownership interest in licensee
operations. During fiscal 2006, specialty revenues (which include royalties and fees from licensees, as well as product sales
derived from Specialty Operations} accounted for 15% of total net revenues.

Licensing — Retail stores

In its licensed rerail store operations, the Company leverages the expertise of its local partners and shares Starbucks
operating and store development experience. Licensee partners are typically master concessionaires, which can provide
improved access to desirable retail space, or prominent retailers with in-depth market knowledge and access. As part of
these arrangements, Starbucks receives license fees and royalties and sells coffee, tea, compacr discs and related produets
for resale in licensed locations. Employees working in licensed retail locations are required to follow Starbucks derailed
store operating procedures and attend training classes similar to those given to employees in Company-operated stores.

During fiscal 2006, 733 new Starbucks licensed retail stores were opened in the United States and, as of October 1, 2006,
the Company’s licensees operated 3,168 stores. Durting fiscal 2006, 426 new International licensed stores were opened. At
October 1, 2006, the Company’s International operating segment had a total of 2,170 licensed retail stores. Product sales
to and royalty and license fee revenues from U.S. and International licensed retail stores accounted for 45% of specialey
revenues in fiscal 2006.

At fiscal year end 2006, Starbucks toral licensed retail stores by region and specific location were as follows:

Asia Tacific Europe/Middle East/Africa Ameticas

Japan 650 Spain 35 United States 3,168
China 223 Turkey 51 Canada 178
Taiwan 175 Greece 50 Mexico 101
South Korea 174 Saudi Arabia 46 Peru 9
Philippines 98 United Arab Emirates 44 The Bahamas 5
Malaysia 71 Kuwair 36
New Zealand 45 Switzerland 27
Indonesia 45 France 26

Austria il

Lebanon 11

Bahrain 8

Qatar 8

Cyprus 7

UK 6

Jordan 5

Oman 4

Ireland 1
Total 1,481 Tozal 396 Total 3,461

Licensing — Grocery and warehouse club

In grocery and warehouse club stores throughout the United States, the Company sells a selection of Starbucks® whole
bean and ground coffees, as well as Seattle’s Best Coffee and Torrefazione ltalia branded coffees and a selection of
premium Tazo® teas through a licensing relationship with Kraft Foods Inc. (“Kraft”). Kraft manages all distribution,
marketing, advertising and promotion of these products. In International markers, Starbucks also has licensing
arrangements with other grocery and warchouse club stores. By the end of fiscal 2006, the Company’s coffees and
teas were available in approximately 31,900 grocery and warehouse club stores, with 30,000 in the United States and
1,900 in International markets. Revenues from this category comprised 24% of specialty revenues in fiscal 2006.
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Licensing — Branded products

The Company has licensed the rights to produce and distribute Starbucks branded products to two partnerships in which
the Company holds 50% equity interests. The North American Coffee Partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company
develops and distributes ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee drinks and
Statbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks. The Starbucks Ice Cream Partnership with Dreyer’s Grand Ice Cream, Inc.,

develops and distributes superpremium ice creams.

Starbucks and Jim Beam Brands Co., a4 unit of Fortune Brands, Inc., manufacture and marker Starbucks-branded
premium coffee liqueur products in the United States and Canada. The Company introduced a coffee liqueur product
nationally during the fiscal second quarter of 2005, and launched a coffee and cream liqueur product in the second
quarter of fiscal 2006 in restaurants, bars and retail ourlets where premium distilled spirits are sold. During the fiscal
fourth quarter of 2006, the Company launched Starbucks™ Coffee Liqueur and Cream Liqueur in Canada. The
Company does not and will not sell the liqueur products in its Company-operated or licensed retail stores.

In September 2005, the Company launched Starbucks Discoveries™, a ready-to-drink chilled cup coffee beverage in
refrigerated cases of convenience stores in Japan, through a manufacturing and distribution agreement with Suntory
Limited, and in Taiwan, through separate co-packing and distribution agreements with Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation and the Company’s equity investee, President Starbucks Coffee Taiwan Led. In fiscal 2006, the Company
entered the ready-to-drink coffee category in South Korea through a licensing agreement with Dong Suh Foods
Corporation to import bottled Starbucks Frappuccino® coffee drinks produced in the United States.

Collectively, the revenues from these branded products accounted for 2% of specialty revenues in fiscal 2006.

Foodservice

The Company sells whole bean and ground coffees, including the Starbucks, Seattle’s Best Coffee and Torrefazione Iralia
brands, as well as a selection of premium Tazo® teas, to institutional foodservice companies that service business, industry,
education and healthcare accounts, office coffee distributors, hotels, restaurants, airlines and other retailers. The majority
of the Company’s direct distribution accounts are with SYSCO Corporation’s and U.S. Foodservice’s”™ national
broadline distribution networks and Starbucks foodservice sales, customer service and support resources are aligned
with those of SYSCO Corporation and U.S. Foodservice. Starbucks and Seattle’s Best Coffee are the only superpremium
national-brand coffees acrively promoted by SYSCO Corporation. The Company's total worldwide foodservice
operations had approximately 16,200 accounts ar fiscal year end 2006, and revenues from these accounts comprised
27% of twotal specialey revenues.

Other Initiatives

Included in this category is the Company’s emerging entertainment business, which encompasses multiple music and
technology based initiatives designed to appeal to new and existing Starbucks customers. Among these initiatives are
strategic marketing and co-branding arrangements, such as the 24-hour Starbucks Hear Music™ digital music channel 75
available to all XM Sacellite Radio subscribers, and the availability of wireless broadband Interner service in Company-
operated retail stores located in the United States and Canada. Additionally, the entertainment business includes the
innovative partnerships of Starbucks Hear Music with other music labels for the production, marketing and distribution
of both exclusive and nonexclusive music, music programming for Starbucks stores worldwide, and CD sales through the
Company’s website at Starbucks.com/hearmusic. In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, Starbucks and Apple® announced the
availability of the Starbucks Hear Music catalog on the iTunes® Store, giving i Tunes users the ability to preview, buy and
download a wide variety of popular Starbucks Hear Music® titles.

The Company has a strategic agreement with Chase Bank USA, N.A. and Visa 1o issue the Starbucks Card Duetto™
Visa® (the “Duetto Card”) in the United States, and a similar arrangement with Royal Bank of Canada and Visa Canada
Association to issue the Duetto Card in Canada. The Duetto Card is a first-of-its-kind card, combining the funcrionality
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of a credit card with the convenience of a reloadable Starbucks Card. Through these arrangements, Starbucks primarily
receives commissions for each activated customer account and payments based on credir card usage.

Collecrively, the operations of these ather initatives accounted for 2% of specialty revenues in fiscal 2006.

PRODUCT SUPPLY

Starbucks is cormmitted 1o selling only the finest whole bean coffees and coffee beverages. To ensure compliance with its
rigotous coffee standards, Starbucks controls its coffee purchasing, roasting and packaging, and the distribution of coffee
used in its operations.

The Company purchases green coffee beans from coffee-producing regions around the world and custom roasts them to
its exacting standards for its many blends and single origin coffees.

The supply and price of coffee are subject to significant voladility. Although most coffee trades in the commodity market,
coffee of the quality sought by the Company tends to trade on a negotiated basis at a substantial premium above
commodity coffee prices, depending upon the supply and demand at the time of purchase. Supply and price can be
affected by multiple factors in the producing countries, including weather, political and economic conditions. In
addition, green coffee prices have been affected in the past, and may be affected in the future, by the actions of certain
organizations and associations that have histerically actempted to influence prices of green coffee through agreements
establishing export quotas or by restricting coffee supplies.

The Company depends upon its relationships with coffee producers, outside trading companies and exporters for its
supply of green coffee. With green coffee commodity prices at relatively low levels in recent years, the Company has used
fixed-price purchase commitments in order to secure an adequate supply of quality green coffee, bring greater certainty o
che cost of sales in future periods, and promote sustainability by paying a fair price to coffee producers. As of October 1,
2006, the Company had $546 million in fixed-price purchase commitments which, together with existing inventory, is
expected to provide an adequate supply of green coffee through fiscal 2007. The Company believes, based on
relationships established with its suppliers, the risk of non-delivery on such purchase commitments is remote. During
the first few months of fiscal 2006, green coffee commodity prices increased moderately. Since then, commodity prices
have stabilized but sill remain above the historically low levels experienced in recent years. Based on its market
experience, che Company believes that fixed-price purchase commitments are less likely to be available on favorable terms
' when commodity prices are high. If prices were to move higher during fiscal 2007, Starbucks would likely return to its
previous pracrice of entering inro price-to-be-fixed purchase contracts to meet a large part of its demand. These types of
contracts state the quality, quantity and delivery periods but allow the price of green coffee over a market index to be
cstablished after contract signing. The Company believes chat, through a combination of fixed-price and price-to-be-
fixed contracts it will be able to secure an adequate supply of quality green coffee. However, an increased use of
price-to-be-fixed contracts instead of fixed-price contracts would decrease the predictability of coffee costs in future
pertods,

During fiscal 2004, Starbucks established the Starbucks Coffee Agronomy Company S.R.L., a wholly owned subsidiary
located in Costa Rica, to reinforce the Company’s leadership role in the coffee industry and to help ensure sustainability
and future supply of high-quality green coftees from Central America. Staffed with agronomists and sustainability
experts, this first-of-its-kind Farmer Support Center is designed to proactively respond to changes in coffee producing
countries thar impact farmers and the supply of green coffee,

In addition ta coffee, the Company also purchases significant amounts of dairy products to support the needs of its
Company-operated retail stores. Dairy prices in the United States, which closely follow the monthly Class I fluid milk
base price as calculated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, rose in both fiscal 2004 and 2005, then declined in 2006.
Should prices rise significantly in the future, Starbucks profitability could be adversely affected. In the United States, the
Company purchases substancially all of its fluid milk requirements from two dairy suppliers. The Company believes,
based on relationships established with these suppliers, that the risk of non-delivery of enough fluid milk to supporr its
U.S. retail business is remote.
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The Company also purchases a broad range of paper and plastic products, such as cups, lids, napkins, straws, shopping
bags and corrugared paper boxes from several companies to support the needs of its retail stores as well as ics
manufacturing and distribution operations. The cost of these marerials is dependent in part upon commodity paper
and plastic resin costs, bur the Company believes it mitigates the effect of short-term raw material price fluctuations
through strategic relationships with key suppliers. In the United States, the Company is contracrually required o
purchase all of its cups, lids, straws and cutlery from a single supplier. Any marerial interruption in the supply of these
products to the Company, if not offser by sufficient purchases from other suppliers, could materially adversely affect the
Company's supply chain and its ability to serve its U.S. retail customers. The Company believes, based on its relationship
with this supplier, that the risk of non-delivery of enough of these products to support its U.S, retail business is remorte,

Products other than whole bean coffees and coffee beverages sold in Starbucks retail stores are obtained through a number
of different channels. Beverage ingredients, other than coffee and milk, including leaf teas and the Company’s menu of
ready-to-drink beverages, are purchased from several specialty manufacturers, usually under long-term supply contracts.
Food products, such as fresh pastries and funch items, are generally purchased from both regional and local sources.
Coffee-making equipment, such as drip and French press coffeemakers, espresso machines and coffee grinders, are
generally purchased directly from their manufacturers, Coffee-related accessories, including items bearing the Company's
logos and trademarks, are produced and distributed through contracts with 2 number of different suppliers.

COMPETITION

The Company'’s primary competitors for coffee beverage sales are restaurants, specialty coffee shops and doughnut shops.
In almost all markets in which the Company does business, there are numerous competitors in the specialty coffee
beverage business, and management expects this situation to continue, Although competition in the beverage marker is
currently fragmented, competition is increasing, parricularly from competitors in the quick-service restaurant sector who
are focusing on growing the specialty coffee part of their business. A major competitor with substantially greater financial,
marketing and operating resources than the Company could enter this market at any time and compete directly against
Starbucks.

The Company’s whole bean coffees compete directly against specialty coffees sold through supermarkets, specialry
retailers and a growing number of specialty coffee stores. Both the Company’s whole bean coffees and its coffee beverages
compete indirectly against all other coffees on the market, The Company believes that its customers choose among
retailers primarily on the basis of product quality, service and convenience, and, 1o a lesser extent, on price.

Starbucks believes that supermarkets are the most competitive distribution channel for specialty whole bean coffee, in part
because supermarkets offer customers a variety of choices without having 1o make a separate trip to a specialty coffee store.
A number of coffee manufacturers are distributing premium coffee products in supermarkers. Regional specialty coffee
companies also sell whole bean coffees in supermarkets.

In addition to the competition generated by supermarket sales of coffee, Starbucks competes for whole bean coffee sales
with franchise operators and independent specialty coffee stores. In virtually every major metropolitan area where
Starbucks operates and expects to expand, there are local or regional competitors with substantial market presence in the
specialty coffee business. Starbucks Specialty Operations also face significant comperition from established wholesale and
mail order suppliers, some of whom have greater financial and marketing resources than the Company.

Starbucks faces intense competition from both restaurants and other specialty retailers for suitable sites for new stores and
qualified personnel to operate both new and existing stores. There can be no assurance that Starbucks will be able o
continue to secure adequate sites at acceptable rent levels or thar the Company will be able to attract a sufficient number
of qualified personnel.

PATENTS, TRADEMARKS, COPYRIGHTS AND DOMAIN NAMES

The Company owns and/or has applied to register numerous trademarks and service marks in the United States and in
nearly 180 additional countries throughout the world. Rights to the rrademarks and service marks in the United
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States are generally held by a wholly owned affiliate of the Company and are used by the Company under license. Some of
the Company’s trademarks, including Starbucks®, the Starbucks logo, Frappuccino®, Seattle’s Best Coffee® and Tazo® are
of material importance to the Company. The duration of trademark registrations varies from country to country.
However, trademarks are generally valid and may be renewed indefinitely as long as they are in use and/or their
registrations are properly maintained.

The Company owns numerous copyrights for items such as product packaging, promotional materials, in-store graphics
and training materials, The Company also holds patents on certain products, systems and designs. In addition, the

Company has registered and maintains numerous Internet domain names, including “Starbucks.com” and
“Starbucks.net.”

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Starbucks research and development efforts are led by food scientists, engineers, chemists and culinarians in the Research
and Development department. This tcam is responsible for the technical development of food and beverage products and
new equipment. The Company spent approximately $6.5 million, $6.2 million and $4.7 million during fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively, on technical research and development activitics, in addition to customary product testing
and product and process improvements in all areas of its business.

SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY RESULTS

Srarbucks business is subject to scasonal fluctuations. Significant portiohs of the Company’s net revenues and profits are
realized during the first quarter of the fiscal year, which includes the holiday season. In addirion, quarrerly results are
affected by the timing of the opening of new stores, and the Company’s rapid growth may conceal the impact of other
seasonal influences. Because of the seasonality of the business, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the
results cthat may be achieved for the full fiscal year.

EMPLOYEES

As of October 1, 2006, the Company employed approximately 145,800 people worldwide. In the United States,
Starbucks employed approximately 123,600 people, with 116,100 in Company-operated retail stores and the remainder
in the Company’s administrative and regional offices, and store development, roasting and warehousing operations,
Approximately 22,200 employees were employed in International, with 21,200 in Company-operated rerail stores and
the remainder in the Company’s regional support facilities and roasting and warchousing operations. At fiscal year end,
employees at nine of the Company’s Canadian stores were represented by a union. Starbucks believes its current relations
with its employees are good.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Starbucks Form 10-K reports, alang with all other reports and amendments filed with or furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC"), are publicly available free of charge on the Investor Relations section of Starbucks
website ar http:/finvestot.starbucks.com or at www.sec.gov as soon as reasonably practicable after these materials are filed
with or furnished o the SEC. The Company’s corporate governance policies, ethics code and Board of Direcrors’
committee charters are also posted within this section of the website. The information on the Company’s website is not
part of this or any other report Starbucks files with, or furnishes to, the SEC,

Starbucks demonstrates its commitment to corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) by conducring its business in ways
that produce social, environmental and econoemic bencfits to the communities in which Starbucks operates. The
Company aligns its principles for social responsibilicy with its overall strategy and business operations. As a resulg,
Starbucks believes it delivers benefits to the Company and its stakeholders — partners, customers, suppliers, share-
holders, community members and others — while distinguishing Starbucks as a leader within the coffee industry.
Providing open communication and transparency helps the Company be accountable to its stakeholders. To support this
goal, Starbucks publishes a CSR Annual Report. Starbucks fiscal 2006 CSR Annual Report will be available online ar
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www.starbucks.com/csr beginning March 14, 2007. To request a printed copy of the report, which will be available in late
March 2007, please call 1-800-23-LATTE (1-800-235-2883) or email your request to info@starbucks.com.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements generally are identified by words such as “believe”,
“expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “strategy”, “may”, “will likely” and similar words or phrases. A forward-
Jooking statement is neither a prediction nor a guarantee of future events or circumstances, and those future events or
circumstances may not occut. Investors should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the date of this Report. Starbucks is under no obligation to update or alter any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. These forward-looking statements are all based on
currently available operating, financial and competitive information and are subject to various risks and uncertainties.
The Company’s actual future results and trends may differ materially depending on a variety of factors including, bur not
limited to, the risks and uncertainties discussed below. The risks below are not the only ones the Company faces.
Additional risks and risks that management currently considers immaterial may also have an adverse effect on the
Company.

» A regional or global health pandemic could severely affect Starbucks business.

A health pandemic is a disease that spreads rapidly and widely by infection and affects many individuals in an area or
population at the same time. If a regional or global health pandemic were to occur, depending upon its duration and
severity, the Company’s business could be severely affected. Starbucks has positioned itself as a “third place” becween
home and work where people can gather together for human connection. Customers might avoid public gathering places
in the event of a health pandemic, and local, regional or national governments might limit or ban public gatherings to halt
or delay the spread of disease. A regional or global health pandemic might also adversely impact the Company’s business
by disrupting or delaying production and delivery of materials and products in its supply chain and by causing staffing
shortages in its stores. The impact of a health pandemic on Starbucks might be disproportionately greater than on other
companies that depend less on the gathering of people together for the sale, use or license of their products and services.

* Marker expecrations for Starbucks financial performance are high.

Management believes the price of Starbucks stock reflects high market expecrations for its future operating results. In
particular, any failure to meet the market’s high expectations for Starbucks comparable store sales growth rates, earnings
per share and new store openings could cause the market price of Starbucks stock to drop capidly and sharply,

* Starbucks is subject to a number of significant risks that might cause the Companys actual results to vary materially
from its Jorecasts, rargets, or projections, including:
* declines in actual or estimated comparable store sales growth rates and expectations;

* failing to meet annual targers for store openings, as a result of delays in store openings or failing to identify and
secure sufficient real estate locarions;

* negative trends in operating expenscs or failing to continue to increase net revenues and operating income in any
or all of Starbucks United States, International and CPG operating segments;

» failing to penectrate and expand into emerging International markets, such as China;
» opening less productive stores and cannibalizing existing stores with new stores;

* higher costs associated with maintaining and refurbishing the Company’s existing base of Company-operated
retail stores;
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* failing to anticipate, appropriately invest in and effectively manage the human, information technology and
logistical resources necessary to support the growth of its business, including managing the costs associated with
such resources;

* failing to integrate, leverage and generate expected rates of return on investments, including expansion of existing
businesses and expansion through domestic and foreign acquisitions;

* failing to generate sufficient future positive operating cash flows and, if necessary, secure adequate external
financing ro fund its growth;

* declines in general consumer demand for specialty coffee products;
* failing to meet customer demand efficiendy during peak periods;

* lack of customer acceptance of new producrs;

* lack of customer acceprance of Starbucks products in new markets;

» failing to consistently provide high quality products and innovate new products and business processes to retain
the Company’s existing customer base and attract new customers;

* increases in the price of high quality aradica coffee, dairy products, fuel, energy or other consumables, and the
Company's inability to obtain a sufficient supply of such commodities and consumables as its business grows;

* failing to manage the impact of any adverse publicity regarding the Company’s business practices or the health
effects of consuming its products;

* increased labor costs, including significant increases in health care benefits and worker’s compensation insurance
costs;

* litigation against Starbucks, particulatly any class action litigation;

* unfavorable general economic conditions in the markets in which Starbucks operates, including, bur not limited
to, changes in interest rates, unemployment rates, disposable income and other events or factors that adversely
affect consumer spending;

* unanticipated changes in executive management;

* any material interruption in the Company’s supply chain, such as material interruption of roasted coflee supply
due to the casualty loss of any of the Company’s roasting plants, or material intetruption in the supply of fluid
milk or paper and plastic products such as cups, lids, napkins, straws, s}iopping bags and corrugated paper boxes,
in each case due to the inability of one or more key suppliers to fulfill the Company’s requirements;

¢ the impact of initiatives by competitors and increased competition generally;

+ failing to manage the impact on Starbucks business of factors such as labor discord, war, terrorism, political
instability in certain markets and natural disasters; and

* interruptions in service by common carriers that ship goods within the Company’s distribution channcls.

« The Companys success depends substantially on the value of the Starbucks brand.

Starbucks believes it has built an excellent reputation globally for the quality of its products, for delivery of 2 consistently
positive consumer experience and for its corporate social responsibility programs. The Starbucks brand has been highly
rated in several global brand value studies. Managemenc believes it must preserve and grow the value of the Swarbucks
brand to be successful in the future, particularly outside of North America, where the Starbucks brand is less well known.
Btand valuc is based in part on consumer perceptions as to a variety of subjective qualities, and can be damaged badly even
by isolated business incidents that degrade consumer trust, particularly if the incidents receive considerable publicity or
resule in litigation. Consumer demand for the Company’s products and its brand equity could diminish significantly if
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Starbucks fails to preserve the quality of its products, is perceived to act in an unethical or socially irresponsible manner or
fails to deliver a consistently positive consumer experience in each of its markets.

o Starbucks is highly dependent on the financial performance of its United States operating segment.

The Company’s financial performance is highly dependent on its United States operating segment, which comprised
79% of consolidated total net revenues in fiscal 2006. Any substantial or sustained decline in these operations, if not offset
by increased financial performance elsewhere, could materially adversely affect the Company’s business and financial
results.

* Starbucks is increasingly dependent on the success of its International operating segment in order to achieve its growth targess.

The Company's future growth depends increasingly on the growth and operations of its International operating segment.
Some or all of the Company's International market business units (“MBUs"), which Starbucks generally defines by the
countries or regions in which they operate, may not be successful in their operations or in achieving expecred growth.
Starbucks may find business partners who do not share its culrural, marketing or operating philosophies or who are
unable to operate the MBU profitably. Some factors that will be critical to the success of International MBUs are different
than those affecting the Company’s U.S. stores and licensees. Tastes naturally vary by region, and consumers in new
international markets into which Starbucks and its licensees expand may not embrace Starbucks products to the same
extent as consumers in the Company’s existing markets. Occupancy costs and store operating expenses are also sometimes
higher internationally than in the United States due to higher rents for prime store locations or costs of compliance with
country-specific regulatory requirements. Because many of the Company’s International operations are in an early phase
of development, operating expenses as a percentage of related revenues are often higher, compared o U.S. operations.
The Company’s International operations are also subject to additional inherent risks of conducting business abroad, such
as:

» foreign currency exchange rate flucruations;
« changes or uncertainties in economic, social and political conditions in the Company’s markets;
* interpreration and application of laws and regulacions;

* restrictive actions of foreign or United States governmenutal authorities affecting trade and foreign investment,
including protective measures such as export and customs duties and tariffs and restrictions on the level of foreign
ownership;

* import or other business licensing requirements;

* the enforceability of intellectual property and contract rights;

* limitations on the repacriation of funds and foreign currency exchange restrictions;
* lower levels of consumer spending on a per capita basis than in the United Scates;

+ difficulty in staffing, developing and managing foreign operations due to distance, language and cultural
differences; and

* local laws that make it more expensive and complex o negotiate with, retain or terminate employees.
« The China market is important to the Companys long-term growth prospects — doing business there and in other
developing countries can be challenging.

Starbucks expects the People’s Republic of China to be its largest market outside of the United States. Any significant or
prolonged deterioration in U.S.-China relations might adversely affect the Company’s China business. The Company’s
growing investments in its China operadions will increase the Company’s exposure in this market.

STARBUCES CORPORATION. FORM 10-




Many of the risks and uncertainties of doing business in China are solely within the control of the Chinese government.
China’s government regulates the business conducted by Starbucks through its subsidiaries, joint ventures and authorized
licensees by restricting the scope of the Company’s foreign investments within China and the food and beverage, retail,
wholesale and distribution business conducted within China. Although management believes it has structured the
Company's China operations to comply with local laws, there are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation
and application of laws and regulations and the enforceability of intellectual property and centract rights in China. If
China’s governmental authorities were ultimately to conclude that Starbucks has not complied with one or more existing
or future laws or regulations, or if their interpretations of those laws or regulations were to change over time, the
Company’s affiliates could be subject to fines and other financial penalties or forced to cease operations entirely.
Moreover, it could adversely affect the Company's business if it is unable to enforce its intellectual property and contract
rights in China’s courts.

Additionally, Starbucks plans to enter selected markets in other developing countries (such as Russia and India} as an
important part of the projected growth of the International operating segment. Some of those markets pose legal and
business challenges similar to the China market, such as substantial uncerwinty regarding the interpretation and
application of laws and regulations and the enforceability of intellectual property and contract rights.

» Effectively managing the Company’s rapid growth is challenging.

The Company's long-term goal is to open approximartely 20,000 Starbucks stores in the United States and at least 20,000
stores in International markets. Starbucks expects annual total net revenue growth of approximately 20% and annual
carnings per share growth of approximately 20-25% for the next three to five year period. Effectively managing growth on
this scale is challenging, particularly as Starbucks expands inte new markers internationally, and it becomes increasingly
difficult to ensure a consistent supply of high quality raw 'materials, to hire sufficient numbers of key employees to meet
the Company’s growth targets, to maintain an effective system of internal controls for a globally dispersed enterprise and
to train employees worldwide to deliver a consistently high qualicy product and customer experience. Achieving the
Company’s growth targets is also dependent on its ability to open more new stores in the current year as well as future
vears than it opened in prior years.

s The loss of key personnel or difficulties recruiting and retaining qualified personnel could jeopardize the Company’
ability to meet its growth targets.

The success of the Company’s efforts 1o grow its business depends on the contributions and abilittes of key executive and
opetating officers and other personnel. Starbucks must continue to recruit, retain and motivate management and
operating personnel sufficient to maintain its current business and support its projected growth. A shortage or loss of
these key employees might jeopardize the Company’s ability to meet its growth targets.

s Starbucks faces intense competition in the specialty coffee market.

There are numerous competitors in almost every market in which Starbucks operates and in which it expects to expand in
both the specialty coffee beverage business and the specialty whole bean coffee business. This is especially true in the
major metropolitan areas where Starbucks operates and expects to expand, in virtually all of which there are local or
regional competitors with substantial collective market presence. Although competition in the specialty coffee beverage
market is currently fragmented, competition is increasing, particularly from competitors in the quick-service restaurant
sector who are focusing on growing the specialty coffee beverage part of their businesses. A major competitor with
substantially greater financial, marketing and operating resources than Starbucks could enter this marker at any time and
compete directly against Starbucks. The Company’s whole bean coffees compete directly against specialty coffees sold
through supermarkets, specialty retailers and a growing number of specialty coffec stores. Some of the Company's
competitors in these whole bean specialty coffee distribution channels have greater financial and marketing resources than
Starbucks. Both the Company’s whole bean coffees and its coffee beverages compete indirectly against all other coffees on
the market. Starbucks also faces well-established competitors in many international markets. If Starbucks fails to mainain
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and build marker share in the specialty coffee market and the coffee market generally, it could harm the Company’s
business and financial results,

* Adverse public or medical opinions about the bealth effects of constuming the Companys products could harm its business.

Some of the Company’s products conuin caffeine, dairy products, sugar and other active compounds, the health effects of
which are the subject of increasing public scrutiny, including the suggestion thar excessive consumption of caffeine, dairy
products, sugar and other active compounds can lead to a variety of adverse health effects. There has also been greater public
awareness that sedentary lifestyles, combined with excessive consumption of high-calorie foods, have led to a rapidly rising
rate of obesity. Particularly in the United States, there is increasing consumer awareness of health risks, including obesity, due
in part to increasing publicity and attention from health organizations, as well as increased consumer lidigation based on
alleged adverse health impacts of consumption of various food products. While Starbucks has a variety of beverage and food
itemns thatare low in caffeine and calories, an unfavorable report on the health effects of caffeine or other compounds present
in the Company’s products, or negative publicity or litigation arising from other health risks such as obesity, could
significantly reduce the demand for the Company’s beverages and food products.

* Significant increases in the market price or decreases in availabifity of high quality arabica coffee could harm the
Companys business and financial results.

The supply and price of coffee are subject to significant volatility. Although most coffee trades in the commodity markert,
high-altitude arabica coftec of the quality sought by Sratbucks tends to trade on a negotiated basis at a substantial
premium above commodity coffee prices, depending on the supply and demand at the time of purchase. Supply and price
can be affected by multiple factors in the producing countries, including weather, political and economic conditions. In
addition, green coffee prices have been affected in the past, and may be affected in the future, by the actions of certain
organizations and associations that have historically attempted to influence prices of green coffee through agreements
establishing export quotas or restricting coffee supplies. Any significanc increase in the marker price or any significant
decrease in the availability of high quality arabica coffee could adversely affect the Company’s business and financial
results. Starbucks also purchases large quantitics of dairy products — particularly milk. Any significant inctease in the
market price or decrease in availability of dairy products could harm the Company’s business and financial results.

* Failure of the Companys internal control over financial reporting could harm its business and frnancial results,

The management of Starbucks is responsible for establishing and maincaining effective internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable derail accurately and
fairly reflect the Company’s transactions; providing reasonable assurance thar transactions are recorded as necessary for

preparation of the financial statements; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in
accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements would be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internat control over financial reporting is not intended to
provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of the Company’s financial statements would be prevented or detected.
The Company’s rapid growth and entry into new, globally dispersed markets will place significant additional pressure on
the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting. Any failure ro mainrain an effective system of internal
conrrol over financial reporting could limit the Company’s abilicy to report its financial resules accurately and timely or to
detect and prevent fraud. '

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties

The following table shows properties used by Srarbucks in connection with its roasting and distribution operations:

Approximate Size Owned or

Locatian in Square Fect Leased Puzpose

Kent, WA 332,000 Owned  Roasting and distribution
Kent, WA 402,000 Leased  Warehouse

Renton, WA [25,000 Leased  Warehouse

York County, PA 365,000 Owned  Roasting and distribution
York County, PA I 297,000 Owned  Warchouse

York County, PA 42,000 Leased  Warehouse

Carson Valiey, NV 360,000 Owned  Roasting and distribution
Portland, OR 80,000 Leased  Warchouse

Basildon, United Kingdom 141,000 Leased  Warehouse and distribution
Amsterdam, Netherlands 94,000 Leased  Roasting and distribution

The Company leases approximately 1,000,000 square feet of office space and owns a 200,000 square foot office building
in Seattle, Washington for corporate administrative purposes.

As of October 1, 2006, Starbucks had more than 7,100 Company-operated retail stores, of which neatly all are locared in
leased premises. The Company also leases space in approximately 120 additional locations for regional, district and other
administrative offices, training facilities and storage, not including certain seasonal retail storage locations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See discussion of Legal Proceedings in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Report.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fiscal fourth quarter of 2006.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Name Age  Position

Howard Schultz 53 chairman of the Board of Directors

James L. Donald 52 president, chief executive officer and director

James C. Alling 45 president, Starbucks Coffee U.S.

Marrin Coles 51 president, Starbucks Coffec International

Gerardo [. Lopez 47  senior vice president; president, Global Consumer Produces

Michael Casey 61 executive vice president, chief financial officer and chief administrative
officer

Paula E. Boggs 47  executive vice president, general counsel and secretary

Dorothy J. Kim 44 executive vice president, Supply Chain Operations

David A. Pace 47 exccutive vice president, Partner Resources

Howard Schultzis the founder of the Company and the chairman of the board. From the Company’s inception in 1985 o
June 2000, he served as chairman of the board and chief executive officer. From June 2000 to February 2005, Mr. Schule
also held the title of chief global strategist. From 1985 to June 1994, Mr. Schultz was the Company's president. From
January 1986 to July 1987, Mr. Schulrz was the chairman of the board, chief executive officer and president of Hl Giornale
Coffee Company, a predecessor to the Company. From September 1982 to December 19835, Mr. Schultz was che director

STARBUCKS CORPORATION, FORM 10-K 15




16

of retail operations and markering for Starbucks Coffee Company, a predecessor to the Company. Mr. Schulez also serves
on the board of directors of DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc.

James L. Donaldjoined Starbucks in October 2002 and has been president and chief exccurive officer and a director of the
Company since April 2005. From October 2004 to April 2005, Mr. Donald served as ceo designate. Prior to thar,
Mr. Donald served as president, North America from the time he joined the Company in Ociober 2002. From October
1996 to October 2002, Mr. Donald served as chairman, president and ceo of Pathmark Stores, Inc. and prior to that time
he held a variety of senior management positions with Albertson's, Inc., Safeway, Inc., and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

James C. Alling joined Starbucks in Scptember 1997 as senior vice president, Grocery and was promoted to president,
Starbucks Coffee U.S. in October 2004. Mr. Alling held a number of positions as senior vice president from September
1997 until November 2003, when he was promoted to executive vice president, Business and Operations — United
States. Prior to joining Starbucks, Mr. Alling held several senior positions at Nestlé from 1985 to 1997 and served as vice
president and general manager of several divisions, including ground coffee.

Martin Coles joined Starbucks in April 2004 as president, Starbucks Coffec International. Prior to joining Starbucks,
M. Coles served as an executive vice president of Reebok International, Lid. from December 2001 to February 2004,
including as president and chicf exccutive officer of the Reebok® brand from June 2002 to February 2004 and executive
vice president of Global Operating Units from December 2001 to May 2002. From February 2001 to December 2001,
M. Coles was senior vice president, International Operations for Gateway, Inc. From February 2000 to January 2001,
Mr. Coles was president and chief executive officer of Letsbuyit.com. From September 1992 to February 2000, Mr. Coles
held several executive level general management, sales and operations positions for NIKE Inc.’s Global and European
operations.

Gerardo I. Lopez joined Starbucks in October 2004 as senior vice president; president, Global Consumer Products. Prior
to joining Starbucks, Mt. Lopez was an executive with the Handleman Entertainment Resources division of Handleman
Company, serving as president from November 2001 to September 2004 and as scnior vice president and general
manager from May 2000 to November 2001. From April 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Lopez was an executive with
International Home Foads, Inc. serving as president of its International division from April 1999 to May 2000 and as
senior vice president and general manager of its SouthWest Brands division from April 1997 o April 1999. Previously.
Mr. Lopez held positions of increasing responsibility with Frito-Lay, Inc., Pepsi-Cola Company and The Procter &
Gamble Company. Mr. Lopez serves on the board of directors of TXU Corp.

Michael Casey joined Starbucks in August 1995 as senior vice president and chief financial officer and was promoted to
executive vice president, chief financial officer and chief administrative officer in September 1997. Prior to joining
Scarbucks, Mr. Casey served as executive vice president and chief financial officer of Family Restaurants, Inc. from its
inception in 1986. During his tenure there, he also served as a director from 1986 to 1993, and as president and chief
executive officer of its El Torito Restaurants, Inc. subsidiary from 1988 to 1993. Mr. Casey serves on the board of
directors of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Tnc.

Paula E. Boggs joined Starbucks in September 2002 as executive vice president, general counsel and secretary. Prior to
joining Starbucks, Ms. Boggs served as vice president, legal, for products, operations and information technology at Dell
Computer Corporation from 1997 to 2002. From 1995 to 1997, Ms. Boggs was a partner with the law firm of Preston
Gates & Ellis. Ms. Boggs served in several roles at the Pentagon, White House and U.S. Department of Justice berween

1984 and 1995.

Dorothy J. Kim joined Starbucks in November 1995 and was pmmoted to executive vice president, Supply Chain
Operations in December 2004. From April 2003 to December 2004, Ms. Kim was senior vice president, Global
Logistics, Planning and Procurement. From April 2002 to April 2003, Ms. Kim was vice president, Supply Chain and
Coffee Operations, Logistics, and from October 2000 to April 2002, Ms. Kim was vice president, Supply Chain and
Coffee Operations, Finance and Systems. Prior to becoming a vice president, Ms. Kim held several positions in retail
planning and operations.




David A. Pace joined Starbucks in July 2002 as executive vice president of Partner Resources. From 2000 to 2002,
Mt. Pace was the president of i2 Technalogies. From 1999 to 2000 Mr. Pace served as the chief human resources officer
for HomeGrocer.com. From 1995 to 1999, he served as senior vice president of human resources for Tricon Restaurants
International {now YUM! Brands, Inc.).

There are no family telationships between any directors or executive officers of the Company.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
MAREET INFORMATION AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s common stock is traded on che Global Select Market of The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc.
{(“NASDAQ"), under the symbol “SBUX.” The following table shows the quarterly high and low clasing sale prices
per share of the Company’s common stock as reported by NASDAL} for each quarter during the last two fiscal years:

High Low

October 1, 2006:
Fourth Quarrter $38.02  $29.55
Third Quartee 39.63 34.93
Second Quarter 37.63 30.24
First Quarter 31.96 24.91

Qctaober 2, 2005:
Fourth Quarter $26.35 $23.08
Third Quarter 28.13 22.78
Second Quarter 30.80 24.79
First Quarter 31.94 23.53

As of December 8, 2006, the Company had approximately 16,653 shareholders of record. Starbucks has never paid any
dividends on its common stock. The Company presently intends to retain earnings for use in its business and to
repurchase shares of common stock and, therefore, does not anticipate paying a cash dividend in the near future.

The following table provides information regarding repurchases by the Company of its common stock during the
13-week period ended Ocrober 1, 20006:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number Maximum
of Shares Number of
Purchased as Shares thar May
“Listal Average Part of Publicly Yer Be
Number of Price Announced Purchased
Shares Paid per Plans or Under the Plans
Perind " Purchased Share Programs ** or Programs
July 3, 2006 - July 30, 2006 6,601,624  $34.54 6,601,624 29,440,530
July 31, 2006 — August 27, 2006 7,262,404 30.87 7,262,404 22,178,126
August 28, 2006 — October 1, 2006 690,000 31.48 690,000 21,488,126
Total 14,554,028 32.57 14,554,028

{1) Monthly information is presented by reference to the Company’s fiscal months during the fourth quareer of fiscal 2006.

(2) The Company's share repurchase program is conducted under authorizations made from time 10 time by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The shares reported in the rable are covered by Board autherizations to repurchase shares of commeon stock, as follows:
20 million shares publicly announced on May 5, 2005, 10 million shares publicly announced on September 22, 2005 and
25 million shares publicly announced August 2, 2006, Shares remaining for repurchase relate to the August 2, 2006 authorization,
which has no expiration dace.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Int thousands, except earnings per share and store aperating data

The following selected financial data are derived from the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The data
below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” “Risk Factors,” and the Company's consolidated financial statements and notes. In particular, sce Note 1 1o
the consolidated financial statements ‘ncluded in Item 8 of this Report for a description of accounting changes that
materially affect the comparability of the data presented below.

O 1, 2006 Qct 2, 2005 Qct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ERDED ' (52 Wla) (52 Whs) (53 W) (52 Whs} {52 Wis)
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net revenues:
Company-operated retail $6,583,098 $5,391,927 $4.457.378 $3.449,624 $2,792,904
Specialty:
Licensing 860,676 673,015 565,798 409,551 311,932
Foodservice and other 343,168 304,358 271,071 216,347 184,072
Total specialty 1,203,844 977,373 836,869 625,898 496,004
Total net revenues 7786942 6,369,300 5,294,247 4,075,522 3,288,908
Operating income 893,952 780,518 606,494 420,672 313,301
Gain on sale of investment & — — — — 13,361
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle 581,473 494,370 388,880 265177 210,460
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47,
net of taxes 17.214 — — — —
Net earnings $ 564,259 $ 494,370 § 388,880 $ 265,177 $ 210,460
Earnings per common share before cumulative effeet of
change in accounting principle — diluted 5 073 % 061 § 0.47 $ 033 3 0.26
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47,
net of taxes — per common share 0.02 — — — —
Net earnings per common share — diluted 3 0.71 § 0.61 $ 047 §$ 033 % 0.26
Cash dividends per share — — — — —
BALANCE SHEET
Working capital ¥ $ (405832) § (17,662) $ GO4,636 $ 335767 % 328,777
Total assets 4,428,941 3,513,693 3,386,266 2,775,931 2,249,432
Short-term borrowings 700,000 277,000 — — —
Long-term debt {including current portion) 2,720 3,618 4,353 5,076 5,786
Sharcholders’ cquity $2,228,506 $2,090,262 $2,469,936 $2,068,507 $1,712,453
STORE INFORMATION
Percentage change in comparable store sales ©
United States 7% 9% 11% 9% 7%
International 8% 6% G% 7% 1%
Consolidated 7% 8% 10% 8% 6%
Stotes opened during the year: 718
United States
Company-operated stores 810 580 521 514 507
Licensed stores 733 596 417 315 264
International
Company-operated stores 230 166 144 126 118
Licensed stores 426 330 262 246 288
Total 2,199 1,672 1,344 1,201 1,177
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’ Ot |, 2006 Oet 2, 2005 Oa 3, 2004 Sepr 28, 2003 Sepr 29, 2002
AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEL*V {52 Wiy {52 Wks) (53 Whs) (52 Wks) (52 Wks)

Stores open at year end:®
United Stares

Company-operated srores 5,728 4,918 4,338 3.817 3,239

Licensed stores 3,168 2,435 1,839 1,422 1,033
International ‘

Company-operated stores 1,374 1,144 978 834 708

Licensed stores 2,170 1,744 1,414 1,152 906

Toral 12,440 10,241 8,569 7,225 5,886

(1) The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30.

(2) On October 10, 2001, the Company sold 30,000 of its shares of Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. 2t approximately $495 per share, net
of related costs, which resulted in a gain of $13.4 million.

(3) Asdiscussed in Note | “Asset Retirement Obligations” under the Notes to Consolidated Financial Starements included in Irem 8,
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Darta” of this Form 10-K, Starbucks adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting
for Conditional Asser Retirement Obligations — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143" at the end of rthe fourth fiscal
quarter of 2006.

{4) Working capital deficit as of October 1, 2006 was primarily duc to increased current liabilities from short term borrowings under
the revolving credit facility, See (5) below.

(5} In August 2006, the Company increased its borrowing capacity under the five-year revolving credit facility to $1 billion and had
borrowings of $700 million outstanding as of Ocrober 1, 2006.

{6) Includes only Starbucks Company-operated retail stores open 13 months or longer. Comparable store sales percentage for fiscal
2004 excludes the extra sales week.

(7} Store openings are reported net of closures.

(8) International store information has been adjusted for the fiscal 2006 acquisitions of Hawaii and Puerto Rico and fiscal 2005
acquisitions of Germany, Southern China and Chile licensed operations by reclassifying historical information from Licensed

stores to Company-operaced stores. United States store information was also adjusted to align with the Hawaii operations segment
change by reclassifying historical information from Inrernational Company-operated stores to the United States.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

GENERAL

Starbucks Corporarion’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30. The fiscal years ended on October 1,
2006 and Qcwober 2, 2005, included 52 weeks, The fiscal year ended Qcrober 3, 2004, included 53 weeks, with the
53rd week falling in the fiscal fourth quarter.

MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

During the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006, the Company's focus on execution in all areas of its business, from U.S. and
International Company-operated retail operations to the Company’s specialty businesses, delivered strong financial
performance. Management believes that its ability to achieve the balance between growing the core business and building
the foundation for future growth is the key to increasing long-term shareholder value. Starbucks fiscal 2006 performance
reflects the Company’s continuing commitment to achieving this balance.

The primary driver of the Company’s revenue growth continues to be the opening of new retail stores, both Company-
operated and licensed, in pursuit of the Company’s objective to establish Starbucks as one of the most recognized and
respected brands in the world. Starbucks opened 2,199 new stores in fiscal 2006 and plans to open approximately 2,400
in fiscal 2007. With a presence in 37 countrics, serving customers more than 40 million times per week, management
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continues to believe that the Company’s long-term goal of approximately 20,000 Starbucks retail locarions throughout
the United States and at least 20,000 stores in International markets is achievable.

In addition to opening new retail stores, Starbucks works to increase revenues gencrated at new and existing Company-
operated stores by atrracting new customers and increasing the frequency of visits by current customers. The strategy is to
increase comparable store sales by continuously improving the level of customer service, introducing innovative products
and improving speed with service through training, technology and process improvement.

Global comparable store sales for Company-operated markets increased by 7%, making fiscal 2006 the 15th consecutive
year with comparable store sales growth of 5% or greater. Comparable store sales growth for fiscal 2007 is expected to be
in the range of 3% to 7%.

In licensed retail operations, Starbucks shares operating and store development experience to help licensees improve the
profitability of existing stores and build new stores. Internationally, the Company’s strategy is to selectively increase its
equity stake in licensed international operations as these markets develop. In January 2006, the Company increased its
equity ownership from 5% to 100% in its operations in Hawaii and Puerto Rico, and subsequent to the end of fiscal 2006
purchased a 90% stake in its previously-licensed operations in Beijing, China.

The combination of more retail stores, comparable store sales growth of 7% and growth in other business channels in the
U.S., International, and CPG operating segments resulted in a 22% increase in total net revenues for fiscal 2006,
compared 1o fiscal 2005. The Company expects revenue growth of approximately 20% in fiscal 2007, consistent with its
three to five year revenue growth target.

Operating income as a percentage of total net revenues decreased to 11.5% in fiscal 2006 from 12.3% in fiscal 2005, due
to the recognition of stock-based compensation. Net earnings increased by 14% in fiscal 2006, compared to fiscal 2005.
Reported operating margin and net earnings include the effects of stock-based compensation in fiscal 2006, while stock-
based compensation expense was not included in the Company’s consolidated financial results in fiscal 2005.

ACQUISITIONS

In January 2006, Starbucks increased its equity ownership to 100% in its operations in Hawaii and Puerto Rico and
applied the consolidation method of accounting from the acquisition date. Previously the Company owned 5% of both
Coffee Pareners Hawaii and Café del Caribe in Puerto Rico. Because Coffee Partners Hawaii was a general partnership,
the equity method of accounting was previously applied. Retroactive application of the equity method of accounting for
the Puerto Rico investment, which was previously accounted for under the cost method, resulted in a reduction of
retained earnings of $0.5 million as of April 2, 2006. The cumulative effect of the accounting change for financial results
previously reported under the cost method and as restated in this report under the equity method reduced net earnings by
$97 thousand for the fiscal year ended October 2, 2005 and $93 thousand for the fiscal year ended Qctober 2, 2004,

Previously reported earnings per share amounts were not impacted.

On October 18, 2006, the Company acquired 90% equity ownership of the licensed operations of 61 Starbucks retail
stores in Beijing and Tianjin, China (See Note 20 “Subsequent Event™). '
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2006 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2005

The following table presents the consolidated statement of earnings as well as the percentage relationship to total net
revenues, unless otherwise indicated, of items included in the Company’s consolidated statements of earnings {@mounts in

thousands):

Oce 1, 2006 % of O 2, 2005 % of Oct 3, 2004 % of

FISCAL YEAR ENDED {52Wk)  Revenues 52 Wk} Reveouss (53 Wks)  Revenues
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS DATA
Ner revenues:

Company-operared rerail $6.583,098  B4.5% $5391,927 84.7% $4,457,378  84.2%

Specialry:

Licensing 860,676  1i.1 673,015 105 565,798  10.7
Foodservice and other 343,168 4.4 304,358 4.8 271,071 5.1

Toral specialty 1,203,844 155 977,373 153 836,869 15.8
Total net revenues 7,786,942 100.0 6,369,300 100.0 5,294,247  100.0
Cost of sales including occupancy costs 3,178,791 40.8 2,605,212 409 2,191,440 414
Store operaring expenses 2,687,815 4081 2165911 402 1,790,168 402"
Other operating expenses 260,087 2169 197.024  202® 171,648 2059
Depreciation and amortization expenses 387,211 5.0 340,169 5.3 289,182 5.5
General and administrative expenses 473,023 6.1 357,114 5.6 304,293 5.7

Subrotal operating expenses 6,986,927 89.7 5,665,430  88.9 4,746,731 897
Income from equity investees 93,937 1.2 76,648 1.2 58,978 i.1

Operating income 893,952 115 780,518 123 606,494  11.5
Interest and other income, net 12,291 0.1 15,829 0.2 14,140 0.2
Farnings before income taxes 906,243 116 796,347 125 620,634 11.7
Income taxes 324,770 4.1 301,977 4.7 231,754 4.4
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in

accounting pringiple 581,473 7.5% 494,370 7.8% 388,880 7.3%
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47, net of

taxes 17,214 0.3 — — — —

Nert earnings $ 564,259 7.2% § 494,370 7.8% 3% 388,880 7.3%

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.

(2) Shown as a percentage of related rotal specialty revenues.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenues for the fiscal year ended 2006 increased 22% to $7.8 billion from $6.4 billion for fiscal 2005, driven by
increases in both Company-operated rerail revenues and specialty operations. Net revenues are expected to grow

approximately 20% in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006.

During the fiscal year ended 2006, Starbucks derived 85% of total net revenues from its Company-operated retail stores.
Company-operated retail revenues increased 22% ro $6.6 billion for the fiscal year ended 2006, from $5.4 billion for
fiscal 2005. This increase was primarily due to the opening of 1,040 new Company-operated recail stores in the last
12 months and comparable store sales growth of 7% in fiscal 2006. The increase in comparable store sales was due to a
5% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 2% increase in the average value per transaction. Management
believes increased customer traffic continues to be driven by sustained popularity of core products, new product
innovation and a high level of customer sarisfaction.
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The Company derived the remaining 15% of total net revenues from channels outside the Company-operated retail
stores, collectively known as “Specialty Operations.” Specialty revenues, which include licensing revenues and foodservice
and other revenues, increased 23% to $1.2 billion for the fiscal year ended 2006, from $977 million for fiscal 2005.

Licensing revenues, which are derived from retail store licensing arrangements, as well as grocery, warchouse club and
certain other branded product operations, increased 28% to $861 million for fiscal 2006, from $673 million for fiscal
2005. The increase is primarily due to higher product sales and royalty revenues from the opening of 1,159 new licensed
retail stores in the last 12 months and, to a lesser extent, growth in the licensed grocery and warehouse club business.

Foodservice and other revenues increased 13% to $343 million for fiscal 2006, from $304 million for fiscal 2005.
Foodservice and other revenues increased primarily due to growth in new and existing U.S. foodservice accounts.

Cost of sales including occupancy costs decreased slightly to 40.8% of total net revenues for fiscal 2006, from 40.9% in
fiscal 2005. The decrease was primarily due to fixed rent costs in fiscal 2006 being distributed over an expanded revenue
base, as well as increased occupancy costs in fiscal 2005 resulting from intensified store maintenance activities. These
favorable items, combined with lower dairy costs, offset higher green coffee costs for fiscal 2006.

Store operating expenses as a percentage of Company-operated retail revenues increased to 40.8% for fiscal 2006 from
40.2% for fiscal 2005. The increase was due to the recognition of stock-based compensation expense and to higher
provisiens for incentive compensation,

Other operating expenses, which are expenses associated with the Company’s Specialty Operartions, increased to 21.6% of
specialty revenues in fiscal 2006, compared to 20.2% in fiscal 2005. The increase was primarily due to the recognition of
stock-based compensation expense as well as higher payroll-related expenditures to support the expanding licensed store
operations, both in the U.S. and in existing and new international markets.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased ro $387 million in fiscal 2006, from $340 million in fiscal 2005. The
increase of $47 million was due to the opening of 1,040 new Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months. Asa
percentage of total net revenues, depreciation and amortization decreased to 5.0% for fiscal 2006, from 5.3% for fiscal
2005.

General and administrative expenses increased to $473 million in fiscal 2006, compared to $357 million in fiscal 2005.
The increase was due to higher payrell-related expenditures from the recognition of stock-based compensation expense,
additional employees to support continued global growth, and higher professional fees in support of global systems
infrastructure development. As a percentage of total net revenues, general and administrative expenses increased to 6.1%

for fiscal 2006, from 5.6% for fiscal 2005,

Income from equity investees increased ro $94 million in fiscal 2006, compared to $77 million in fiscal 2005. The
increase was primarily due to favorable volume-driven operating results for The North American Coffee Partnership,
which produces ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee drinks and
Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks, as well as improved operating results from international investees, including
Korea and Japan, mainly as a result of new store openings.

Operating income increased 15% to $894 million in fiscal 2006, from $781 million in fiscal 2005. The operating margin
decreased to 11,5% of total net revenues in fiscal 2006, compared to 12.3% in fiscal 2003, due to the recognition of
stock-based compensation expense.

Net interest and other income, which primarily consists of interest income, decreased to $12 million in fiscal 2006, from
$16 million in fiscal 2005. The decrease was primarily due to higher interest expense on the Company’s revolving credit
facility, as well as lower interest income earned due to lower average investment balances, offset in part by the recognition
of $4.4 million of income on unredeemed stored value card balances in fiscal 2006. There was no income recognized on
unredeemed stored value card balances in fiscal 2003.

Income raxes for fiscal 2006 resulted in an effective tax rate of 35.8%, compared to 37.9% in fiscal 2005. The decline in
the effective tax rate was due to the reversal of a valuadion allowance in fiscal 2006 that had been established in fiscal 2005,
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the settlement in the third quarter of fiscal 2006 of a multi-year income tax audit in a foreign jurisdiction for which the
Company had established a contingent liability, and to increased effectiveness of the Company’s long-term tax planning
strategies. The effective rax rate for fiscal 2007 is expected to be approximarely 38%, with quarterly variations.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the Company’s management reviews financial information for
operational decision-making pusposes. Beginning in the fiscal fourth quarcer of 2006, the Company increased its
reporting segments from two to three to include a Global CPG segment in addition to the United States and International
segments. This addirional operating segment reflects the culmination of internal management realignments in fiscal
2006, and the successful development and launch of certain branded products in the United States and internationally
commencing in fiscal 2005 and continuing throughout fiscal 2006. Additionally, with the 100% acquisition of the
Company’s operations in Hawaii in fiscal 2006 and the shift in internal management of this market to the United States,
these operations have been moved from the International segment into the United States segment. Segment information
for all prior periods presented has been revised to reflect these changes.

The following tables summarize the Company’s results of operations by segment for fiscal 2006 and 2005 (i thousands):

)

52 Wecks Ended 52 Wecks Ended
Oct 1. 2006 Oct2,2005 % Change  Oa 1,2006  Oct 2, 2005
. As a % of
UNITED STATES U.S. Total Net Revenues
Net revenues:
Company-operated retail $5,495,240 $4,539,455 21.1% 88.9% 89.1%
Specialty:
Licensing 369,155 277,987 328 6.0 5.4
Foodservice and other 314,162 280,073 12.2 5.1 5.5
Total speciatey 683,317 558,060 22.4 11.1 10.9
Total net revenues 6,178,557 5,097,515 21.2 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales including eccupancy costs 2,374,485 1,944,356 38.4 38.1
Store operating expenses 2,280,044 1,848,836 415 40.7 4
Other operating expenses 190,624 150,712 279@ 27.0@
Depreciation and amortizacion expenses 284,625 250,339 4.6 4.9
General and administrative expenses 93,754 85,302 1.5 1.7
Income from equity investees 151 592 —_ —
Operating income $ 935,176 $ 818,502 16.7% 15.5% 16.1%

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-opcrated retail revenues.

(2} Shown as a percentage of related total specialty revenues.
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52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended

Ot §, 2006 Oct 2, 2065 % Change Oct 1, 2006 Oct 2, 2005

As a % of [nrernarional
[NTERNATIONAL Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:

Company-operated retail $1,087,858 $ 852,472 27.6% 83.5% 83.4%
Specialy:
Licensing 186,050 145,736 27.7 14.3 14.2
Foodservice and other 29,006 24,285 19.4 2.2 2.4
Toral specialty 215,056 170,021 26.5 16.5 16.6
Total net revenues 1,302,914 1,022,493 27.4 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales including occupancy costs 625,008 511,761 48.0 50.1
Store operating expenses : 407,771 317,075 3750 3720
Other operating expenses 50,900 32,061 23.7 % 18.9@
Depreciation and amortization expenses 66,800 56,705 5.1 5.5
General and administrative expenses 78,337 53,0069 6.0 5.2
[ncome from equity investees 34,370 30,477 2.6 3.0
Operating income $ 108,468 $ 82,299 31.8% 8.3% 8.0%
As a % of
GLOBAL CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP CPG Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:

Specialcy:
Licensing $305,471 $249,292 100.0% 100.0%
Total specialty 305,471 249,292 100.0 100.0
Total net revenues 305,471 249,292 22.5% 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales 179,298 149,095 58.7 59.8
Orther operating expenses 18,563 14,251 6.] 5.7
Depreciation and amortization expenses 108 76 — —
Income from equity investees 59,416 45,579 19.4 18.2
Opetating income $166,918  $131,449 27.0% 54.6% 52.7%
Asa % of
UNALLOCATED CORPORATE Toral Net Revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses § 35678 % 33,049 0.4% 0.5%
General and administrative expenses 300,932 218,683 3.9 34
Operating loss ${336,610) $(251,732) (4.3)% (3.9)%

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.

(2) Shown as a percentage of related total specialcy revenues.

United States

The Company’s United States operations (“Unired States”} represent 83% of Company-operated rerail revenues, 57% of
total specialty revenues and 79% of total net revenues. United States operations sell coffee and other beverages, whole
bean coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and merchandise primarily through Company-operated
retail stores. Specialty Operations within the United States include licensed retail stores, foodservice accounts and other
initiatives related to the Company’s core business.
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United States total net revenues increased 21% to $6.2 billion for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to $5.1 billien for
fiscal 2005.

United States Company-operated retail revenues increased 21% to $5.5 billion for the fiscal yvear ended 2006, compared
to $4.5 billion for fiscal 2005. United States Company-operated retail revenues increased primarily due to the opening of
810 new Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months and comparable store sales growth of 7% for fiscal 2006.
The increase in comparable store sales was due to a 5% increase in the average value per rransaction and a 2% increase in
the number of customer transactions. Management believes increased customer traffic continues to be driven by new
product innovation, continued popularity of core products and a high level of customer satisfaction.

Total United States specialty revenues increased 22% to $683 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to
$558 million in fiscal 2005. United States licensing revenues increased 33% to $369 million, compared to $278 million
for fiscal 2005. United States licensing revenues increased due to increased product sales and royalty revenues as a result of
opening 733 new licensed retail stores in the last 12 months. Foodservice and other revenues increased 12% to
$314 million from $280 million for fiscal 2005. United States foodservice and other revenues increased primarily due to
growth in new and existing foédservice accounts.

United States aperating income increased 17% to $955 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, from $819 million for the
fiscal year ended 2005. Qperating margin decreased to 15.5% of related revenues from 16.1% in fiscal 2005. The
decrease was due to the recognition of stock-based compensation expense.

International

The Company’s International operations (“International”) represent the remaining 17% of Company-operated retail
revenues and 18% of total specialty revenues as well as 17% of total net revenues. International operations sell coffee and
other beverages, whole bean coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and merchandise through
Company-operated retail stores in the United Kingdom, Canada, Thailand, Australia, Germany, China, Singapore,
Puerto Rico, Chile and Ireland. Specialty Operations in International primarily include retail store licensing operations in
more than 25 countries and foodservice accounts in Canada and the Uniced Kingdom. The Company’s Internarional
stote base continues to increase rapidly and Starbucks is achieving a growing contribution from established areas of the
business while at the same time investing in emerging markets and channels, such as China. The Company’s International
operations are in various early stages of development that require a more extensive support organization, relative to the
current levels of revenue and operating income, than in the United States. This continuing investment is part of the
Company’s long-term, balanced plan for profitable growth.

International total net revenues increased 27% to $1.3 billion for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to $1.0 billion for
fiscal 2005. Incernational Company-operated retait revenues increased 28% to $1.1 billion for the fiscal year ended 2006,
compared to $852 million for fiscal 2005. International Company-operated revenues increased due to the opening of 230
new Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months, comparable store sales growth of 89 for fiscal 2006, and the
weakening of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar. The increase in comparable store sales resulted from a 5%
increase in the number of customer transactions and a 3% increase in the average value per transaction.

Total International specialty revenues increased 26% to $215 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to
$170 million for fiscal 2005. International licensing revenues increased 28% ro $186 million for the fiscal year ended
2006, compared to $146 million in fiscal 2005. International licensing revenues increased due to higher product sales and
royalty revenues from opening 426 new licensed retail stores in the last 12 months. International foodservice and other
revenues increased 19% to $29 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to $24 million in fiscal 2005.
International foodservice and other revenues increased primarily due to growth in the wtal number of foodservice
accounts.

International operating income increased to $108 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to $82 million in
fiscal 2005. Operating margin increased to 8.3% of related revenues from 8.0% in fiscal 2005, primarily due to lower cost
of sales including occupancy costs due to leverage gained from fixed costs distributed over an expanded revenue base, as

ARBUCKS CORPORATION, FORM 10-K

25




26

well as lower dairy costs. These improvements were pardially offset by higher store operating expenses and other operating
expenses due to higher pagroll-related expenditures primarily to support global expansion as well as the recognition of
stock-based compensation expense.

Global Consumer Products Group

The Company’s CPG segment represents 25% of total specialty revenues and 4% of total net revenues. CPG operarions
sell a selection of whole bean and ground coffees as well as a selection of premium Tazo® teas through licensing
arrangements with Kraft and other grocery and warehouse club stores in United States and international markets. CPG
operations also produce and sell teady-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee
drinks and Starbucks DoubleShat® espresso drinks, and Starbucks® superpremium ice creams, through its joint venture
partnerships, and Starbucks™ Coffee and Cream Liqueurs through a marketing and distribution agreement. Through
other manufacturing, distribution and co-packing agreements, the Company produces and sells ready-to-drink products
in international locations.

CPG total net revenues increased 23% to $305 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared ta $249 million for fiscal
2005, primarily due to volume growth in the licensed grocery and warchouse club business as well as sales of
ready-to-drink coffec beverages introduced in Japan, Taiwan and Korea in the fall of 2005.

CPG operating income ncreased to $167 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, compared to $131 millien for fiscal
2005. Operating margin increased to 54.6% of related revenues, from 52.7% in fiscal 2005, primarily due to higher
income from the Company’s equity investees and lower cost of sales as a percentage of revenues. The increase in equity
investee income was primarily due to volume-driven results for The North American Coffee Partnership, which produces
rcady—to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino” coffee drinks and Starbucks Doubleshot®
espresso drinks. Lower cost of sales was due to a sales mix shift o0 products with higher gross margins.

Unallocated Corporate

Unallocated corporate expenses pertain to corporate administrative functions that support but are not specifically
actributable 1o the Company’s operating segments, and include related depreciation and AMOITZATION eXpenses.
Unallocated corporate expenses increased to $337 million for the fiscal year ended 2006, from $252 million in fiscal
2005. The increase was due to higher payroll-related expenditures from the recognition of stock-based compensation
expense and to additional employees, as well as higher professional fees primarily in support of global systems
infrastructure development. Total unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage of total net revenues were 4.3%
for che fiscal year ended 2006, compared to 3.9% for fiscal 2005.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2005 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2004
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenues for the fiscal year ended 2005 increased 20% to $6.4 billion from $5.3 billion for the 53-week period of
fiscal 2004, driven by increases in both Company-operated retail revenues and specialty operations, Net revenues
increased 23% when calculated on a comparative 52-week basis for both fiscal 2005 and 2004.

During the fiscal year ended 2005, Srarbucks derived 85% of total net revenues from its Company-operated retail stores.
Company-operated retail revenues increased 21% to $5.4 billion for the fiscal year ended 2005, from $4.5 billion for the
53-week period of fiscal 2004. Company-operated retail revenues increased 23% when calculated on a comparative
52-week basis for both fiscal 2005 and 2004. This increase was primarily due to the opening of 746 new Company-
operated retail stores in the last 12 months and comparable store sales growth of 8% for the 52 weeks ended October 2,
2005. The increase in comparable store sales was due to a 4% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 4%
increase in the average value per transaction. Comparable store sales growth percentages were calculated excluding the
extra week of fiscal 2004. The increase in the average value per transaction was primarily duc to a beverage price increase
in October 2004 in the Company’s U.S. and Canadian markets.
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The Company derived the remaining 15% of total net revenues from channels outside the Company-operated retail
stores. Specialty revenues, which include licensing revenues and foodservice and other revenues, increased 17% to
$977 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, from $837 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the
impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, total specialty revenues increased 19%.

Licensing revenues, which are derived from retail store licensing arrangements, as well as grocery, warehouse club and
certain other branded-product licensed operations, increased 19% to $673 million for the 52-week period of 2003, from
$566 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, total licensing
revenues increased 219%, primarily due to higher product sales and royalty revenues from the opening of 926 new licensed
retail stores in the last 12 months.

Foodservice and other revenues increased 129 to $304 million for the 52-week period of fiscal 2005, from $271 million
for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, foodservice and other
revenues increased 15%, primarily attributable to growth in new and existing U.S. and International foodservice accounts
and, to a lesser extent, growth in the Company’s emerging entertainment business.

Cost of sales including occupancy costs decreased to 40.9% of total net revenues in the 52-week period of fiscal 2005,
from 41.4% in the 53-week period of 2004. The decrease was primarily due to higher average revenue per rerail
transaction, offset in part by higher initial costs associated with the continued expansion of a lunch program in Company-
operated rerail stores, Approximately 3,800 Company-operated stores had the lunch program at the end of fiscal 2005,
compared to approximately 2,600 at the end of fiscal 2004.

Store operaring expenses as a percentage of Company-operated retail revenues were 40.2% for both the 52-week period of
fiscal 2005 and the 53-weck period of fiscal 2004, primarily due to higher average revenue per retail transaction in fiscal
2005, offset by higher payroll-related expenditures, as well as higher maintenance and repair expenditures to ensure a
consistent Starbucks Experience in existing stores. In order to facilitate ongoing retail store revenue growth, the Company
opened a higher number of Drive Thru locations over the past year and extended store operating hours, which
contributed to the higher payroll-related expenditures.

Other operating expenses, which are expenses associated with the Company’s Specialty Operations, decreased to 20.2%
of specialty revenues in the 52-week petiod of fiscal 2005, compared to 20.5% in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004, The
decrease was primarily due to lower expendirures within the grocery, warehouse club and foodservice businesses, partially
offset by higher payroll-related expenditures to support the Company’s emerging entertainment business and to support
the growth of Seactle’s Best Coffee licensed café operations.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $340 million in the 52-week period of fiscal 2005, from
$289 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004, The increase was primarily from the opening of 746 new
Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months. As a percentage of roral net revenues, depreciation and
amortization decreased to 5.3% for the 52 weeks ended October 2, 2005, from 5.5% for the corresponding 53-week
fiscal 2004 period. ,

General and administrative expenses increased to $357 million in the 52-week period of fiscal 2005, compared to
$304 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. The increase was primarily due to higher payroll-related expenditures
in support of both domestic and international business growth and increased charitable donations to support multi-year
corporate comniitments. As a percentage of total net revenues, general and administrative expenses decreased to 5.6% for

the 52 weeks ended October 2, 2005, from 5.7% for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004,

Income from equity investees increased to $77 million in the 52-week period of fiscal 2005, compared to $59 million in
the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. The increase was primarily due to volume-driven operating results for The North
American Coffee Partnership, which produces ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled
Frappuccino® coffee drinks and Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks, and improved operating results from inter-
nattonal investees, particularly in Japan and Korea, mainly as a result of new store openings.
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Operating income increased 29% to $781 million in the 52-week period of fiscal 2005, from $606 million in the
53-week period of fiscal 2004. The operacing margin increased to 12.3% of total net revenues in the 52-week period of
fiscal 2005, compared to 11.5% in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004, primarily due to strong revenue growth.

Net interest and other income, which primarily consists of interest income, increased to $16 million in the 52-week
period of fiscal 2005, from $14 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. The increase was primarily due to higher
interest income earned due o higher interest rates in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 and to foreign exchange gains in
fiscal 2005 compared to losses in fiscal 2004, Partially offsetting these increases were higher realized losses on sales of
available-for-sale securities. Starbucks funded the majority of its share repurchases during fiscal 2005 through sales of its
available-for-sale securities.

Income taxes for the 52 weeks ended October 2, 2005, resulted in an effective tax rate of 37.9%, compared to 37.3% in
fiscal 2004. The effective tax rate differs from the staturory rate of 35% du to a variety of facrors, including state income
taxes, the impacr from foreign operations, tax credits and other provision adjustments.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the Company’s management reviews financial information for
operational decision-making purposes. The following tables summarize the Company's results of operations by segment
for fiscal 2005 and 2004 (in thousands): :
52 Wecks 53 Weeks 52 Weeks 53 Werks
Ended Ended Ended Ended
Oa 2, 2005 Oct 3, 2004 % Changr Oct 2, 2005 0Oa 3, 2004
Asa % of US.
UNITED STATES “Total Net Revenues
Net revenues:
Company-operated retail $4,539,455 $3,800,367 19.4% 89.1% 89.1%
Specialty:
Licensing 277,987 211,269 3.6 5.4 5.0
Foodservice and other 280,073 253,502 10.5 5.5 5.9
Total specialty 558,060 464,771 20.1 10.9 10.9
Total net revenues 5,097,515 4,265,138 19.5 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales including occupancy costs 1,944,356 1,642,745 38.1 385
Store operating expenses 1,848,836 1,546,871 40,7V 407
Other operating expenses : ‘ 150,712 122,335 27.0% 2639
Depreciation and amortization expenses 250,339 209,586 4.9 4.9
General and administrative expenses 85,362 80,221 1.7 1.9
Income from equicy investees 592 564 — —
Operating income § 818,502 $ 663,944 23.3% 16.1% 15.6%

{1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.

{2) Shown as a percentage of related toral specialry revenues.
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52 Weeks 53 Weeks 52 Wecks 53 Wecks

Ended Ended Ended Ended
Ot 2, 2005 Qct 3, 2004 % Change O 2, 2005 Oct 3, 2004
As a % of International
INTERNATIONAL Toral Net Revenues
Net revenues:
Company-operated rerail $ 852,472 $657,011 29.8% 83.4% 82.8%
Specialry: :
Licensing . 145,736 119,325 221 14.2 15.0
Foodservice and other 24,285 17,569 38.2 24 2.2
Total specialty 170,021 136,894 24.2 16.6 17.2
) Total net revenues 1,022,493 793,905 28.8 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales including occupancy costs . 511,761 403,870 50.1 50.9
Store operating expenses 317,075 243,297 3720 37.0 ™
Other operating experises 32,061 26,795 189 @ 19.6 @
Depreciation and amortization expenses 56,705 46,196 5.5 5.8
General and administrative expenses 53,069 48,206 5.2 6.1
Income from equity investees 30,477 20,961 3.0 2.6
Operating income $ 82,299 $ 46,502 77.0% 8.0% 5.9%
As a % of CPG
GLOBAL CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP Toral Net Revenues
Net revenues:
Specialty:
Licensing $249,292 $235,204 100.0% 100.0%
Total specialty 249,292 235,204 100.0 100.0
Total net revenues 249,292 235,204 6.0% 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales 149,095 144,825 59.8 61.6
Other operating expenses 14,251 22,518 5.7 9.6
Depreciation and amortization expenses 76 862 — 0.3
Income from equity investees . 45,579 37,453 18.2 15.9
Operating income $131,449 $104,452 25.8% 32.7% 44 4%
As a % of
UNALLOCATED CORPORATE Total Net Revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 33,049 $ 32,538 0.5% 0.6%
General and administrative expenses 218,683 175,866 3.4 3.3
Operating loss $(251,732) $(208,404) (3.9%6 {3.9)9%

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operared retail revenues.

(2) Shown as a percentage of related total specialty revenues.
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United States

United States total net revenues increased 20% to $5.1 billion for the fiscal year ended 2003, compared to $4.3 billion for
the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, United States total net revenues
increased 22%. United States Company-operated retail revenues increased 19% to $4.5 billion for the fiscal year ended
2005, compared to $3.8 billion for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal
2004, United States Company-operated retail revenues increased 22%, primarily due to the opening of 580 new
Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months and comparable store sales growth of 9% for the 52-week period of
fiscal 2005. The increase in comparable store sales was due to a 5% increase in the average value per transaction, including
3% autriburable to a beverage price increase in October 2004, and a 4% increase in the number of customer transactions.

Total Unired States specialty revenues increased 20% to $558 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to
$465 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, United States
specialty revenues increased 23%. United States licensing revenues increased 32% to $278 million, compared to
$211 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impacr of the extra week in fiscal 2004, United States
licensing revenues increased 35%, due to increased product sales and royalty revenues as a result of opening 596 new
licensed retail stores in the last 12 months. Foodservice and other revenues increased 10% to $280 million from
$254 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, United States
foodservice and other revenues increased 13%, primarily due to growth in new and existing foodservice accounts, as well
as growth in the emerging entertainment business.

United States operating income increased by 23% to $819 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, from $664 million for
the fiscal year ended 2004. Operating margin increased to-16.1% of related revenues from 15.6% in the 53-weck period
of fiscal 2004. The increase was primarily due to leverage from strong revenue growth.

International

Internarional total net revenues increased 29% to $1.0 billion for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to $794 million
for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, International total net
revenues increased 31%. International Company-operated retail revenues increased 30% to $852 million for the fiscal
year ended 2005, compared to $657 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week
in fiscal 2004, International Company-opcrated revenues increased 32%, primarily due to the opening of 166 new
Company-operated retail stores in the last 12 months, comparable store sales growth of 6% for the 52-week period of
fiscal 2003, and the weakening of the U.S. dollar against both the Canadian dollar and British pound sterfing. The
increase in comparable store sales resulted from a 4% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 2% increase
in the average value per transaction.

Total International specialty revenues increased 24% to $170 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to
$137 million for the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2004, International
specialty revenues increased 26%. International licensing revenues increased 22% to $146 million for thé fiscal year
ended 2005, compared to $119 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the extra week in
2004, International licensing revenues increased 24%, due to higher product sales and royalty revenues from opening 330
new licensed retail stores in the last 12 months. International foodservice and other revenues increased 38% to $24 million
for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to $18 million in the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Excluding the impact of the
extra week in 2004, international foodservice and other revenues increased 41%, primarily due to growth in new and
existing foodservice accounts.

International operating income increased to $82 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to $47 million in the
53-week period of fiscal 2004. Operating margin increased to 8.0% of related revenues from 5.9% in the 53-week period
of fiscal 2004, primarily due to leverage gained on most fixed costs distributed over an expanded revenue base.
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Global Consumer Products Group

CPG rotal net revenues increased 6% to $249 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to $235 million for the
53-weck period of fiscal 2004, due to the national rollout of the Starbucks™ Coffee Liqueur during the fiscal second
quarter of 2005 and growth in the licensed grocery and warehouse club business.

CPG operating income increased by 26% to $131 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, compared to $104 million for
the 53-week period of fiscal 2004. Operating margin increased to 52.7% of related revenues from 44.4% in fiscal 2004,
primarily due to lower other operating expenses from reduced expenditures within the grocery and warehouse club
channels and higher equity investee income from volume-driven operating results for The North American Coffee
Parenership, which produces ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee drinks
and Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks.

Unallocated Corporate

‘Unallocated corporate expenses increased to $252 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, from $208 million in the
33-week period of fiscal 2004, primarily due to increased charitable commitments as well as higher payroll-related
expenditures. Total unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage of total net revenues remained unchanged at 3.9% for
the fiscal year ended 2005 and the 53-week period of fiscal 2004.

LIGUIDITY ANT) CAPITAL RESOURCES

Components of the Company’s most liquid assets are as follows (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Ou 12006 Oa2.2005
Cash and cash equivalents $312,606  $173,809
Short-rerm investments — available-for-sale securities 87,542 95,379
Short-term investments — wading securities 53,496 37,848
Long-term investments — available-for-sale securities 5,811 60,475
Total cash, cash equivalents and liquid investments $459,455  $367.511

The Company manages its cash, cash equivalents and liquid investments in order to internally fund operating needs and
pay down short-term borrowings. The $92 million increase in total cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments
from October 2, 2005 to October 1, 2006, was primarily due to strong operating cash flows.

The Company intends to use its cash and liquid investments, including any borrowings under its $1 billion revolving
credit facility, to invest in its core businesses and other new business opportunities relared to its core businesses. The
Company may use its available cash resources to make proportionate capital contributions to its equity method and cost
method investees, as well as putchase larger ownership interests in selected equity method investees and licensed
operations, particularly in international markets. Depending on market conditions, Starbucks may repurchase shares of
its common stock under its authorized share repurchase program, Management believes that strong cash flow generated
from operations, existing cash and liquid investments, as well as borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility,
should be sufficient to finance capital requirements for its core businesses for the foreseeable future. Significant new joint
ventures, acquisitions, share repurchases and/or other new business opportunities may require additional outside

funding.

Other than normal operating expenses, cash requirements for fiscal 2007 are expected to consist primarily of capital
expenditures for new Company-operated retail stores and the remodeling and refurbishment of existing Company-
operated retail stores, as well as potential increased investments in International licensees and for additional share
repurchases, if any. Management expects capiral expendirtures to be in the range of $950 million to $1.0 billion in fiscal
2007, primarily driven by new store development and existing store renovations.
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Cash provided by operating activitics totaled $1.1 billion for fiscal 2006. Net carnings provided $564 million and
noncash depreciation and amortization expenses further increased cash provided by operating activities by $413 million.
In addition, an increase in accrued taxes payable due to the timing of payments provided $133 million,

Cash used by investing activities for fiscal 2006 totaled $841 million. Ner capital additions to property, plant and
equipment used $771 million, primarily from opening 1,040 new Company-operated retail stores and remodeling
certain existing stores. During fiscal 2006, the Company used $92 million for acquisitions, net of cash acquired. In
addirion, the net activity in the Company’s portfolio of available-for-sale securities provided $61 million.

Cash used by financing activities for fiscal 2006 totaled $155 million. Cash used to repurchase shares of the Company’s
common stock totaled $854 million. This amount includes the effect of the net change in unsettled trades from
October 2, 2005, Share repurchases, up to the limit authorized by the Board of Directors, are at the discretion of
management and depend on market conditions, capital requirements and other factors. Approximately 21.5 million
shares remained available for repurchase as of October 1, 2006.

The Company had net borrowings under its credit facility of $423 million during fiscal 2006, which consisted of
additional gross borrowings of $1.4 billion offser by gross principal repayments of $993 million. Management increased
the Company’s borrowing capacity under its credit facility during the fiscal fourth quarter of 2006, from $500 million to
$1.0 billion, as provided in the original credit facilicy. As of October 1, 2006, a total of $700 million was outstanding
under the faciliry.

Partially offsetting cash used for share repurchases were proceeds of $159 million from the exercise of employee stock
options and the sale of the Company's common stock from employee stock purchase plans. As options granted are
exercised, the Company will continue to receive proceeds and a tax deduction; however, the amounts and the timing
cannot be predicred.

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligatians and borrowings as of October 1, 2006, and the
timing and effect that such commitments are expected to have on the Company’s liquidity and capital requirements in
future periods {(in thousands):

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

Less than - 3-5 More chan
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS Toul 1 Year :'car‘: Yan 5 Years
Debr obligations $ 740480 $ 738405 $ 1,660 $ 415 § —
Operating lease obligations ¥ 3,892,938 531.634 1,013,312 861,271 1,486,721
Purchase obligations * 619,862 440,720 153,044 21,761 4,337
Toral $5.253.280  $1,710,759  $1,168,016  $883.447  $1.491,058

(1} Debt amounts include principal maturities and expected interest payments. Rates utilized to determine interest paymenss for
variable rate debr are based on an estimate of furure interest rates. The amount due in less than one year includes $700 million of
short term borrowings under the facility.

(2} Amounts include the direct lease obligations, excluding any raxes, insurance and other related expenses,

(3) Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on Starbucks and
that specify all significant terms. Purchase obligations relate primarily to green coffee and other commodities.

Starbucks expects to fund these commitments primarily with operating cash flows generated in the normal course of
business, as well as ongoing borrowings under the facility.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENT

The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of certain Japanese yen-denominated bank loans and
related interest and fees of an unconsolidated equity investee, Starbucks Coffee Japan, Lid. (“Starbucks Japan”). The
guarantees continue until the loans, including accrued interest and fees, have been paid in full, with the final loan amount
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due in 2014. The maximum amount is limited to the sum of unpaid principal and interest amounts, as well as other
related expenses. These amounts will vary based on fluctuarions in the yen foreign exchange rate. As of October 1, 2006,
the maximum amount of the guarantees was approximarely $6.0 million. Since there has been no modification of these
loan guarantees subsequent to the Company’s adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpre-
tation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indebredness of
Others,” Starbucks has applied the disclosure provisions only and has not recorded the guarantees on its balance sheet.

PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Coffee brewing and espresso equipment sold 10 customers through Company-operared and licensed retail stores, as well
as equipment sold to the Company’s licensees for use in retail licensing operations, are under warranty for defects in
materials and workmanship for a period ranging from 12 to 24 months. Effective fiscal 2006, the Company elected to
discontinue repairing brewing machines and instead offer an exchange to customers as a general right of return for any of
its products. As a result, Starbucks mainrains a sales return allowance based on historical patterns to reduce related
revenues for estimated future product returns. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company established an accrual for estimated
warranty costs at the time of sale, also based on historical experience. Product warranty costs and changes to the relaced
accrual were not significant for the periods ended October 1, 2006 and Qctober 2, 2005.

COMMODITY PRICES, AVAILABILITY AND GENERAL RISK CONDITIONS

The Company manages its exposure to various risks within the consolidated financial statements according to an
umbrella risk management policy. Under this policy, market-based risks, including commodity costs and foreign currency
exchange rates, are quantified and evaluaced for poteatial mitigation strategies, such as entering into hedging transactions.
Additionally, this policy restricts, among other things, the amount of market-based risk the Company will tolerate before
implementing approved hedging strategies and prohibits speculative trading activity.

The Company purchases significant amounts of coffee and datry products to support the needs of its Company-operated
retail stores. The price and availability of these commodities directly impacts the Company's results of operations and can
be expecred to impact its future results of operations. For additional derails see “Product Supply” in Item 1, as well as
“Risk Factors™ in Irem 1A of this Form 10-K.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to marker risk related to foreign currency exchange rates, equity security prices and changes in
interest rates,

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK

The majority of the Company’s revenue, expense and capital purchasing activities are transacted in U.S. dollars. However,
because a portion of the Company’s operations consists of activities outside of the United States, the Company has
transactions in other currencies, primarily the Canadian dollar, British pound sterling, curo and Japanese yen. Under the
Company’s umbrella risk management policy, the Company frequently evaluates its foreign currency exchange risk by
monitoring market dara and external factors that may influence exchange rate fluctuations. As a result, Starbucks may
engage in transactions involving various derivative instruments, with maturities generally not exceeding five years, to
hedge assets, liabilities, revenues and purchases denominated in foreign currencies.

As of October 1, 2006, the Company had forward foreign exchange contracts that qualify as cash flow hedges under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”} No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” to hedge a portion of anticipated international revenue and product purchases. In addition, Starbucks had
forward foreign exchange contracts that qualify as hedges of its net investment in Starbucks Japan, an equity method
investment, as well as the Company’s net investments in its Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries. These contracts expire within
33 months.
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Based on the foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of October 1, 2006, a 10% devaluation of the U.S. dollar as
compared to the level of foreign exchange rates for currencies under contract as of October 1, 2006, would result in a
reduced fair value of these derivative financial instruments of approximately $44 million, of which $22 million may
reduce the Company’s future earnings. Conversely, a 10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar would result in an increase in
the fair value of thesc instruments of approximately $38 million, of which $20 million may increase the Company’s future
earnings. Consistent with the nature of the economic hedges provided by these foreign exchange contracts, increases or
decreases in their fair value would be mostly offset by corresponding decreases or increases in the dollar value of the
Company’s foreign investment, future foreign currency royalty fee payments and product purchases that would occur

within the hedging periad.

EQUITY SECURITY PRICE RISK

The Company has minimal exposure to price fluctuations on equity mutual funds within its trading portfolio. The
trading securities approximate a portion of the Company's liability under the Management Deferred Compensation Plan
("MDCP"). A corresponding liability is included in “Accrued compensation and related costs” on the consolidated
balance sheets. These investments are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in “Interest and
other incame, net” in the consolidated statements of earnings. The offsetting changes in the MDCP liability are recorded
in “General and administrative expenses.”

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Company’s available-for-sale securities comprise a diversified portfolio consisting mainly of fixed income instru-
ments. The primary objectives of these investments are to preserve capital and liquidity. Available-for-sale securities are
investment grade and are recorded on the balance sheer at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income.” The Company does not hedge the interest rate exposure on
its available-for-sale securities. The Company performed a sensitivity analysis based on a 10% change in the underlying
interest rate of its interest bearing financial instruments, including its short-term borrowings and long-term debe, as of the
end of fiscal 2006, and determined that such a change would not have a significant effect on the fair value of these
instruments.

SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY RESULTS

The Company’s business is subject t seasonal flucruations. Significant portions of the Company’s net revenues and
profits are realived during the first quarter of the Company’s fiscal year, which includes the holiday season. In addition,
quarterly results are affected by the timing of the opening of new stores, and the Company’s rapid growth may conceal the
impact of other seasonal influences. Becausc of the seasonality of the Company’s business, results for any quarter are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal year.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policics are those that management believes are both most important w the portrayal of the
Company’s financial condition and results, and require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments,
often as a result of the need to make estimates abour the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and
uncertainties affecting the application of those policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under
different conditions or using differcnt assumprions.

Starbucks considers its policies on impairment of long-lived assets, accounting for self insurance reserves, stock-based
compensation and accounting for operating leases to be the most critical in understanding the judgments that are
involved in preparing its consolidated financial statements.
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IMPATRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

When facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of
recoverability is performed by comparing the carrying values of the assets to projected future cash flows, in addition to
other quantitative and qualitative analyses. For goodwill and other intangible assets, impairment tests are performed
annually and more frequently if facts and circumstances indicate goodwill carrying values exceed estimated reporting unit
fair values and if indefinite useful lives are no longer appropriate for the Company’s crademarks. Upon indication that the
carrying values of such assets may not be recoverable, the Company recognizes an impairment loss as a charge against
current operations. Property, plant and equipment assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are idenrifiable
cash flows when assessing impairment. Cash flows for retail assets are identified ac the individual store level. Long-lived
assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value, less estimated costs to sell.
Judgments made by the Company related to the expected useful lives of long-lived assets and the ability of the Company
to realize undiscounted cash flows in excess of the carrying amounts of such assets are affected by factors such as the
ongoing maintenance and improvements of the assets, changes in economic conditions and changes in operating
performance. As the Company assesses the ongoing expected cash flows and carrying amounts of its long-lived assets,
these factors could cause the Company to realize material impairment charges.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Starbucks accounts for stock-based compensartion in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R.
The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model which requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions. These assumptions include estimating the length of time employees will retain their stock options before
exercising them (“expected term”), the estimated volatility of the Company’s common stock price over the expected term
and the number of options that will ultimately not complete cheir vesting requirements (“forfeitures™). Changes in the
subjective assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and consequently, the
relared amount recognized on the consolidated statements of earnings.

OPERATING LEASES

Starbucks leases retail stores, roasting and distribution facilities and office space under operating leases. The Company
provides for an estimate of asset retirement obligation ("ARO”) expense at the lease inception date for operating leases
with requirements to remove leaschold improvements ac the end of the lease term. Estimating AROs involves subjective

assumptians regarding both the amount and timing of actual furure retirement costs. Future actual costs could differ
significantly from amounts initially estimated. In addition, the large number of operating leases, and the significant
number of international markets in which the Company has operating leases, adds administrarive complexity to the
calculation of ARO expense as well as to the other technical accounting requirements of operating leases such as
contingent rent.

SELF INSURANCE RESERVES

The Company uses a combination of insurance and sclf-insurance mechanisms, including a wholly owned captive

insurance entity and participarion in a reinsurance pool, to provide for the potential liabilities for workers’ compensation,
healthcare benefits, general liability, property insurance, director and officers’ liability insurance and vehicle liability.
Liabilities associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are not discounted and are estimated, in part, by
considering historical claims experience, demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions. The
estimated accruals for these liabilities, portions of which are calculated by third party actuarial firms, could be
significantly affected if furure occurtences and claims differ from these assumptions and historical trends.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with the accounting
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and reporting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the
financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in income tax recurns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and the Company
will adopt the new requirements in its fiscal first quarter of 2008. The cumulaive effects, if any, of adopting FIN 48 will
be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has not yet
determined the impact, if any, of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. Early adoprion is permitted. Starbucks must adopt these new requirements no later than
its first fiscal quarter of 2009. Starbucks has not yet determined the effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, upon adoption of SFAS 157, or if it will adopt the requirements prior to the first fiscal quarter of 2009.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (*SAB 108”). The intent of
SAB 108 is to reduce diversity in practice for the method companies use to quantify financial statement misstacements,
including the effect of prior year uncorrected errors. SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of
financial starement errors using both an income statement and a cumulative balance sheet approach. SAB 108 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006, and the Company will adopt the new requirements in fiscal 2008.
The adoption of SAB 108 is not currently expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Ahout Market Risk

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Commodiry Prices, Availability and General Risk
Conditions” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial
Risk Management” in Item 7 of this Report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
In thowsands, except earnings per share

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 Oct 2, 2005 Ot 3, 2004

Net revenues:

Company-operated retail $6,583,098 $5.391.927 $4.457,378
Specialty:
Licensing 860,676 673.015 565,798
Foodservice and other 343,168 304,358 271,071
Total specialty 1,203,844 977.373 836,869
Total net revenues 7,786,942 6,369,300 5,294,247
Cost of sales including occupancy costs 3,178,791 2,605,212 2,191,440
Store operating expenses 2,687.815 2,165911 1,790,168
Other operating expenses 260,087 197,024 171,648
Depreciation and amortization expenses 387,211 340,169 289,182
General and administrative expenses 473,023 357,114 304,293
Subtotal operating expenses 6,986,927 5,665,430 4,746,731
Income from equity investees 93.937 76,648 58,978
Operating income 893,952 780,518 606,494
Interest and other income, net 12,291 15,829 14,140
Earnings before income taxes 906,243 796,347 620,634
Income taxes 324,770 301,977 231,754
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 581,473 494,370 388,880
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47, net of taxes 17.214 — —
Ner earnings $ 564,259 § 494,370 $ 388,880
Per common share:
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — basic $ 0.76 § 0.63 $ 0.49
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47, net of taxes 0.02 — —
Net earnings — basic $ 074 § 063 $ 0.49
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — diluted $ 0.73 § 0.61 % 0.47
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47, net of taxes 0.02 — —
Net earnings — diluted 3 071 § 0.61 3 0.47
Weighted average shares outstanding;
Basic 766,114 789,570 794,347
Diluted 792,556 815,417 822,930

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
In thousands, except share data

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 Oct 2, 2005
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 312,606 3 173,809
Short-term investments — available-for-sale securities 87,542 95,379
Short-term investments — trading securities 53,496 37,848
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $3,827 and $3,079, respecrively 224,271 190,762
Inventortes © 636,222 546,299
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 126,874 94,429
Deferred income taxes, net 88,777 70,808
Total current assets 1,529,788 1,209,334
Long-term investments — available-for-sale securities 5,811 60,475
Equity and other investments 219,093 201,089
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,287,899 1,842,019
Orher assets 186,917 72,893
Orher intangible assets 37.955 35.409
Goodwill 161,478 92,474
Total assets $4,428,941  $3,513,693
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 340,937 § 220,975
Accrued compensation and related costs 288,963 232,354
Accrued occupancy costs 54,868 44,496
Accrued taxes 94,010 78,293
Short-tetm borrowings 700,000 277,000
Orher accrued expenses 224,154 198,082
Deferred revenue 231,926 175,048
Current portion of long-term debt 762 748
Tortal current liabilities 1,935,620 1,226,996
Long-term debt 1,958 2.870
Other long-rerm liabilicies 262,857 193,565
Total liabilities 2,200,435 1,423,431
Sharcholders’ equity:
Common stock ($0.001 par value) and additional paid-in-capital — authorized,
1,200,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 756,602,071 and 767,442,110 shares,
tespectively, (includes 3,394,200 common stock units in both periods) 756 767
Additional paid-in capiral — 90,201
Orher additional paid-in-capitat 39,393 39,393
Rerained carnings 2,151,084 1,938,987
Accumulated other comprehensive income 37,273 20,914
Total sharcholders’ equity 2,228,506 2,090,262
Total liabilitics and shareholders' equity $4.428,941 33,513,693

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Qar 1, 2006 Oct 2, 2005 Ot 3, 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings $ 564,259 $ 494,370  $ 388,880
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to ner cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change for FIN 47, net of taxes 17,214 — —
Depreciation and amortization 412,625 367.207 314,047
Provision for impairments and asset disposals 19,622 19,464 17,948
Deferred income taxes, net (84,324) (31,253) (3,770)
Equity in income of investees {60,570} (49,537) (31,707}
Distributions of income from equity investees 49,238 30,919 38,328
Stock-based compensation 105,664 — —
Tax benefir from exercise of stock options 1,318 109,978 63,405
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options {117,368) — —
Net amortization of premium on securities 2,013 10,097 11,603
Cash provided/(used) by changes in operating assets and liabilities:
[nventories (85,527) (121,618) (77,662)
Accounts payable 104,966 9717 27,948
Accrued compensation and related costs 54,424 22,711 54,929
Accrued taxes 132,725 14,435 7,677
Deferred revenue 56,547 53,276 47,590
Other operating assets and liabilities (41,193} (6,851) 3,702
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,131,633 922,915 862,918
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of available-for-sale securiries {639,192) (643,488) (887,909}
Maturity of available-for-sale securities 269,134 469,554 170,789
Sale of available-for-sale securities 431,181 626,113 452,467
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (91,734) (21,583) {7.515)
Net purchases of equity, other investments and other assets (39,199) (7,915) (64,747)
Ner additions to property, plant and equipment : (771,230) (643,296)  (416,917)
Net cash used by investing activities (841,040) (220,615) (753,892)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES '
Proceeds from issuance of commeon stock 159,249 163,555 137,590
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options 117,368 — —
Net borrowings under revolving credir facilicy 423,000 277,000 —
Principal payments on long-term debr {898) (735) (722)
Repurchase of common stock (854,045) (1,113,647) (203,413)
Net cash used by financing acrivities (135.326) (673,827) {66,545)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3,530 283 3,110
Nert increase in cash and cash equivalents 138,797 28,756 45,591
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of petiod 173,809 145,053 99,462
End of period $ 312606 § 173,809 § 145,053

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 10,576 $ 1,060 % 370
Income taxes $ 274,134 % 227812 $ 172,739

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In thowsands, except shave data

Other Accamulated
COMMON STOCK Additional Additonal Other
Paid-in Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amaunt Capital Capial Earnings Income/{Lass) Total
Balance, September 28, 2003 787,385,072 3787 $ 938316  $39,393  $1,055,737 $14274  § 2,068,507
Net earnings — —_ — — 388,880 — 388,880
Unrealized holding lasses, net — — — — — (4,925} (4,925)
Translation adjustment — —_ — — — 19,892 19,892
Comprehensive income 403,847
Exercise of stack options, including rax
benefit of 362,415 15,416,982 16 172,016 — —_ —_ 172,032
Sale of common stock, including rax
benefit of $990 1,968,144 2 28,961 — — — 28,963
Repurchase of common stock (9,958.510) {10} {203,403) — — _ (203,413)
Balance, October 3, 2004 794,811,688  §795  § 955,890  $39,393  $1,444,617 329,241- $ 2,469,936
Net carnings - — — — 494,370 — 494,370
Unrealized holding gains, net — — — — — 350 350
Translation adjustment, net of tax — — -— — — (8.677) {8,677)
Comprehensive income 486,043
Exercise of stock options, including cax
benefir of $108,428 16,169,992 16 239,012 — - — 239,028
Sale of commen stock, including rax :
benefit of $1,550 1,563,964 1 34,504 — — — 34,505
Repurchase of common stock (45,103,534) (43 (1,139,205) — — — (1.139,250)
Balance, October 2, 2005 767,442,110 $767 $ 90,201  $39,393  $1,938,987 $20,914  $ 2,090,262
Net carnings _ — - — 564,259 — 564,259
Unrealized holding gains, net — — — — — 1,767 1,767
Translation adjustment, ner of tax — — — — — 14,592 14,592
Comprehensive income 580,618
Stock-based compensation expense — — 107,738 — — — 107,738
Exercise of stock options, including tax
benefit of $116,762 13,222,729 13 235,272 — —_ — 235,285
Sale of common stock, including rax
benefit of $1,924 1,544,634 2 42,649 — — — 42,651
Repurchase of commoan stock (25,607,402) (26} (475,860) — (352,162) — (828,048)
756,602,071 3756 3 — $39.393  $2,151.084 $37,273  $ 2,228,506

Balance, Qctober 1, 2006

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal years ended October I, 2006, October 2, 2005, and October 3, 2004
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Starbucks Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Starbucks” or the “Company”) purchases and roasts high-quality
whole bean coffees and sells them, along with fresh, rich-brewed coffees, Italian-style espresso beverages, cold blended
beverages. a variety of complementary food items, coffee-related accessories and equipment, a selection of premium reas
and a line of compact discs, primarily through its Company-operated retail stores. Starbucks also sells coffee and tea
products and licenses its trademark through other channels and, through certain of its equity investees, Starbucks
produces and sells ready-to-drink beverages which include, amang others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee drinks and
Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks, and a line of superpremium ice creams, All channels ourtside the Company-
operated rerail stores are collectively known as “Specialty Operations.” The Company’s objective is to establish Starbucks
as one of the most recognized and respected brands in the world. To achieve this goal, the Company plans to continue
rapid expansion of its retail operations, to grow its Specialty Operations and to selectively pursue other opportunities ro
leverage the Starbucks brand through the introduction of new products and the development of new channels of
distribution. The Company’s brand portfolio includes superpremium Tazo® teas, Starbucks Hear Music® compact discs,
Seattle’s Best Coffee® and Torrefazione Jralia® coffee.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements reflecr the financial position and operating results of Starbucks, which include
wholly owned subsidiaries and investees controlled by the Company.

Investments in entities that the Company does not control, but has the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies, are accounted for under the equity method. Investments in entities in which Starbucks
does not have the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the cost method.

All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Fiscal Year End

Starbucks Corporation’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30, The fiscal years ended on October 1,
2006 and Ocrober 2, 2003, included 52 weeks. The fiscal year ended October 3, 2004, included 53 weeks, with the
53rd week falling in the fiscal fourth quarter.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of prior year's balances have been made to conform o the current formar.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a marurity of three months or less ar the time of purchase to be
cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalent balances with financial institutions that exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to these balances, and management believes
its credic risk to be minimal.
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Cash Management

The Company’s cash management system provides for che reimbursement of all major bank disbursement accounts on a
daily basis. Checks issued but not presented for payment to the bank are reflected as a reduction of cash and cash
equivalents on the consolidated financial statements.

Shore-term and Long-term [nvestments

The Company’s short-term and long-term investments consist primarily of investment-grade markerable debe securities
as well as bond and equity mutual funds, all of which are classified as trading or available-for-sale. Trading securities are
recorded at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses included in net earnings. Available-for-sale securities are
recorded at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses are recorded, net of rax, as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. Available-for-sale securities with remaining maturities of less than one year
and those identified by management ar time of purchase for funding operations in less than one year are classified as short-
term, and all ocher available-for-sale securities are classified as long-term. Unrealized losses are charged against net
carnings when a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary. Management reviews several facrors to
determine whether a loss is other than temporary, such as the length of time a security is in an unrealized loss position, the
extent to which fair value is less chan amortized cost, the impact of changing incerest rates in the short and long term, the
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the security for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Realized gains and losses are accounted for on
the specific identification method. Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade dare basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short-rerm maturity of those
instruments. The fair value of the Company’s investments in markerable debt and equiry securities, as well as bond and
equity mutual funds, is based upon the quoted market price on the last business day of the fiscal year. For equity securities
of companies that are privacely held, or where 2n observable quoted market price does not exist, the Company estimates
fair value using a variety of valuation methodologics. Such methodologies include comparing the security with securities
of publicly traded companies in similar lines of business, applying revenue multiples to estimated future operaring resuls
for the private company and estimating discounted cash flows for that company. Declines in fair value below the
Company’s carrying value deemed to be other than temporary are charged against net earnings. For further information
on investments, sec Notes 4 and 7. The carrying value of short-term and long-term debr approximates fair value.

Derivative Instruments

The Company manages its exposure to various risks within the consolidated financial statemencs according o an
umbrella risk management policy. Under this policy, Starbucks may engage in transactions involving various derivarive
instruments, with maturities generally not tonger than five years, to hedge assets, liabilities, revenues and purchases.

The Company follows SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended and
interpreted, which requires thac all derivatives be recorded on the balance sheer at fair value. For a cash flow hedge, the
effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of other comprehensive income
("OCI") and subsequently reclassified into net carnings when the hedged exposure affects net earnings. For a net
investment hedge, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is reported as a component of OCIL.

Cash flow hedges related 1o anticipated transactions are designated and documented at the inception of each hedge by
matching the terms of the contract to the underlying transaction. The Company classifies the cash flows from hedging
transactions in the same categories as the cash flows from the respective hedged items, Once established, cash flow hedges
are generally not removed until maturity unless an anticipated transaction is no longer likely to occur. Discontinued or
derecognized cash flow hedges are immediately settled with counterparties, and the related accumulated derivarive gains
or losses are recognized into ner earnings in “Interest and other income, net” on rhe consolidared sratements of earnings.
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Forward contracr effectiveness for cash flow hedges is calculated by comparing the fair value of the contract to the change
in value of the anticipared transaction using forward rates on a monthly basis. For net investment hedges, the spot-to-spot
method is used to calculate effectiveness. Under this method, the change in fair value of the forward contract attributable
to the changes in spot exchange rates (the effective portion) is reported as a component of OCI. The remaining change in
fair value of the forward contract (the ineffective portion) is reclassified into net earnings. Any ineffectiveness is
recognized immediately in “Interest and other income, net” on the consolidared statements of earnings.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated based on historical experience, customer credit risk and application of the
specific identification method.

Inventories

Inventories ate stated at the lower of cost {primarily moving average cost) or marker, The Company records inventory
reserves for obsolere and slow-moving items and for estimated shrinkage between physical inventory counts. Inventory
reserves are based on inventory rurnover trends, historical experience and application of the specific identification
method. As of October 1, 2006 and Ocrober 2, 2005, inventory teserves were $10.5 million and $8.3 million,
respectively.

Lroperty, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, which includes assets under capital leases, is provided on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives,
generally ranging from two to seven years for equipment and 30 to 40 years for buildings. Leaschold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives ar the related lease life, generally 10 years. For leases with renewal
periods at the Company’s option, Starbucks gencrally uses the original lease term, excluding renewal option periods ro
determine estimated useful lives. If failure ro exercise a renewal option imposes an economic penalty to Starbucks,
management may determine at the inception of the lease that renewal is reasonably assured and include the rencwal
option period in the determinarion of appropriate estimated useful lives. The portion of depreciation expense related to
production and distribution faciliies is included in “Cost of sales including occupancy costs” on the consolidated
statements of earnings. The costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred, while expenditures for
refurbishments and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asser are
capitalized. When asscts are retired or sold, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated with any
remaining gain or loss reflected in net earnings.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment annually in June and more frequently if facts and
circumstances indicate goodwill carrying values exceed estimated reporting unit fair values and if indefinite useful lives are
no longer appropriate for the Company’s trademarks. Based on the impairment tests performed, there was no impairment
of goodwill in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. Definite-lived intangibles, which mainly consist of contract-based patents and
copyrights, are amortized over their estimated useful lives. For further information on goodwill and other intangible
assets, see Note 9.

Long-lived Assets

When facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of
recoverability is performed by comparing the carrying values of the assets to projected future cash flows in addidon to
other quantitative and qualirative analyses. Upon indication that the carrying values of such assets may not be recoverable,
the Company recognizes an impairment loss by a charge against current operations. Property, plant and equipment assets
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arc grouped at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows when assessing impairment. Cash flows for retail
assets are identified ac the individual store level,

The Company recognized net impairment and disposition losses of $19.6 million, $19.5 million and $17.9 million in
fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, primarily from renovation and remodeling activity and, to a lesser extent, from
underperforming Company-operated retail stores, in the normal course of business. Depending on the underlying asset
thatis impaired, these Josscs may be recorded in any one of the operating expense lines on the consolidated statements of
earnings: for retail operations, these losses are recorded in “Store operating expenses”; for Specialty Operations, these
losses are recorded in “Other operating expenses”; and for all other operations, these losses are recorded in either “Cost of
sales including occupancy costs” or “General and administrative cxpenses.”

Insurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of insurance and self-insurance mechanisms, including a wholly owned caprive
insurance entiry and participation in a reinsurance pool, to provide for the potential liabilities for workers’ compensation,
healthcare benefits, general liability, property insurance, director and officers’ liability insurance and vehicle liabiligy.
Liabilities associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are not discounted and are estimated, in part, by
considering historical claims experience, demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions. The
estimated accruals for these liabilities, portions of which are calculated by third party actuarial firms, could be
significantdly affected if future occurrences and claims differ from these assumptions and historical trends. As of
Ocrober 1, 2006, and October 2, 2003, these reserves were $113.2 million and $91.6 million, respectively, and were
included in “Accrued compensation and related costs” and “Other accrued expenses” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition

Consolidated revenues are presented net of intercompany eliminations for wholly owned subsidiaries and investees
controlled by the Company and for licensees accounted for under the equity method, based on the Company’s percentage
ownership. Additionally, consolidated revenues are recognized net of any discounts, returns, allowances and sales
incentives, including coupon redemptions and rebares.

Stored Value Cards

Revenues from the Company’s stored value cards, such as the Starbucks Card, are recognized when tendered for payment,
or upen redemption. Ouwstanding customer balances are included in “Deferred revenue” on the consolidated balance
sheets. There are no expiration dates on the Company’s stored value cards, and Starbucks does not charge any service fees
that cause a decrement to customer balances.

While the Company will continue to honor all stored value cards presented for payment, management may determine the
tikelihood of redemption to be remote for certain card balances due t, among other things, long periods of inactiviry. In
these circumstances, to the extent management determines there is no requirement for remitting card balances to
government agencies under unclaimed property laws, card balances may be recognized in the consolidated statements of
earnings in “Income and other income, net.” For the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006, income recognized on
unredeemed stored value card balances was $4.4 million. There was no income recognized on unredeemed stored value
card balances during the fiscal years ended October 2, 2005 or October 3, 2004.

Retail Revenues

Company-operated retail store revenues are recognized when payment is tendered at the point of sale. Starbucks
maintains a sales return allowance, based on historical patterns, to reduce retail revenues for estimated future product
returns, including defective brewing equipment, related 1o sales in the normal course of business. Retail store revenues are
reported net of sales, use or other transaction taxes thar are collected from customers and remitted to taxing authorities.
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Specialty Revenues

Specialry revenues consist primarily of product sales to customers other than through Company-operated retail stores, as
well as royalties and other fees generated from licensing operations. Sales of coffee, tea and related products are generally
recognized upon shipment to customers, depending on contract terms. Shipping charges billed to custamers are also
recognized as revenue, and the related shipping costs are included in “Cost of sales including occupancy costs” on the
consolidated statements of earnings.

Specific to retail store licensing arrangements, initial nonrefundable development fees are recognized upon substantial
performance of services for new market business development activities, such as inidal business, real estate and store
development planning, as well as providing operational materials and functional training courses for opening new
licensed retail markets. Additional store licensing fees are recognized when new licensed stores are opened. Royalty
revenues based upon a percentage of reported sales and other continuing fees, such as marketing and service fees, are
recognized on a monchly basis when earned. For certain licensing arrangements, where the Company intends to acquire
an ownership interest, the initial nonrefundable development fees are deferred to “Other long-term liabilities” until
acquisition, at which point the fees are reflected as a reduction of the Company’s investment.

Other arrangements involving multiple elements and deliverables as well as upfront fees are individually evaluated for
revenue recognition. Cash payments received in advance of product or service delivery are recorded as deferred revenue.

Advertising

The Company expenses most advertising costs as they are incurred, except for certain production costs that are expensed
the first time the advertising campaign takes place and direct-response advertising, which is capitalized and amortized
over its expected period of future benefits. Direct-response advertising consists primarily of customer acquisition expenses
including applications for customers to apply for the Starbucks Card Duetto™ Visa®. These capiralized costs are
amortized over the life of the credit card which is estimated to be three years.

Total advertising expenses, recorded in “Store operating expenses,” “Other operating expenses” and “General and
administrative expenses” on the consolidated statements of earnings, rotaled $95.4 millien, $87.7 million and
$67.2 million in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of October 1, 2006, and October 2, 2005, $19.2 million
and $11.8 million, respectively, of capitalized advertising costs were recorded in “Prepaid expenses and other current
assets” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Store Preopening Expenses

Costs incurred in connection with the start-up and promotion of new store openings are expensed as incurred.

Operating Leases

Starbucls leases retail stores, roasting and distribution facilities and office space under operating leases. Most lease
agreements contain tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays, lease premiums, rent escalation clauses and/or
contingent rent provisions. For purposes of recognizing incentives, premiums and minimum rental expenses on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the leases, the Company uses the date of inittal possession 10 begin amartization,
which is generally when the Company enters the space and begins to make improvements in preparation of intended use.

For tenant improvement allowances and rent holidays, the Company records a deferred rent liabilicy in “Accrued
occupancy costs” and “Other long-term liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets and amortizes the deferred rent over
the terms of the leases as reductions to rent expense on the consolidated statements of earnings.

For premiums paid upfrent to enter a lease agreement, the Company records a deferred rent asset in “Prepaid expenses
and other current assets” and “QOther assets” on the consolidated balance sheets and then amortizes the deferred rent over
the terms of the leases as additional rent expense on the consolidated statements of earnings.
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For scheduled rent escalation clauses during the lease terms or for rental payments commencing at a date other than the
date of initial occupancy, the Company records minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
leases on the consolidated statements of earnings.

Certain leases provide for contingent rents, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels.
The Company records a contingent rent liability in “Accrued occupancy costs” on the consolidated balance sheets and the
corresponding rent expense when specified levels have been achieved or when management determines thatachieving the
specified levels during the fiscal year is probable.

Asset Retirement Obligations ~— Change in Accounting Principle

On Ocrober 1, 2006, Starbucks adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47 (‘FIN 477), “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143,” which requires the recognition of a liability
for the fair value of a legally required conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred, if the liabiliry’s fair value can
be reasonably estimated. The Company's asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) liabilitics are primarily associated with the
disposal of lcaschold improvements which, at the end of a lease, the Company may be contractually obligated to remove
in order to restore the facility back to a condition specified in the lease agreement. The Company estimates the fair value
of these liabilities based on current store closing costs, accretes that current cost forward to the date of estimated ARO
removal, and discounts the future cost back as if it were performed at the inception of the lease. At the inception of such a
lease, the Company records the ARO liability and also records a related capiral asset in an amount equal to the estimated
fair value of the liability. The ARO liability is accreted to its future value, with the accretion expense recognized as
operating expense. The capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset, which
generally mirrors the life of the leasehold improvement. Upon ARO removal, any difference between the actual
retirement costs incurred and the recorded estimated ARO liability is recognized as an operating gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of earnings. In future periods, the Company may make adjustments to the ARO liability as a
tesult of the availability of new information, changes in labor costs and other factors. The estimate of the ARO liability is
based on a number of assumptions requiring management’s judgment, including store closing costs, cost inflacion rates
and discount rates. '

The initial impact of adopting FIN 47 resulted in a charge of $27.1 million, with a related tax benefir of $9.9 million, for
a net expense of $17.2 million, or $0.02 per diluted share. The net amount was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle on the consolidated statement of earnings. FIN 47 requires that the cumulative approach o
adoption be used rather than retrospectively revising prior year financial statements. The adoption increased “Property,
plant and equipment, net,” by $15.5 million, increased “Other long-term liabilities” for AROs by $34.2 million,
increased “Other assets” for deferred tax assets by $6.8 million, and decreased “Equity and other investments” by
$5.3 million. The following table presents, on a pro forma basis, what the ARO liability would have been had FIN 47
been in effect during fiscal 2005 and 2004. These pro forma amounts are estimated based upon the information,
assumptions and interest rates used to measure the ARO liability recognized upon adoption of FIN 47 as of October 1,
2006 (in millions):

Pro forma ARQ liability, October 2, 2005 $29.2
Pro forma ARO liability, October 3, 2004 252
Pro forma ARQ liability, September 28, 2003 20.9

Stock-based Compensation — Change in Accounting Principle

‘I'he Company maintains several equity incentive plans under which it may grant non-qualified stock options, incentive
stock options, restricted stock or stock appreciation rights to employees, non-employee directors and consultants. The
Company also has employee stock purchase plans ("ESPP”).

Prior to the Qctober 3, 2005 adoption of the SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), Starbucks

accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board
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(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interprerations. Accordingly, because
the stock option grant price equaled the marker price on the date of grant, and any purchase discounts under the
Company’s stock purchase plans were within statutory limits, no compensation expense was recognized by the Company
for stock-based compensation. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
(“SFAS 1237}, stock-based compensation was included as a pro forma disclosure in the notes to the consolidated
financial statemnents.

Effective October 3, 2005, the beginning of Starbucks first fiscal quarter of 2006, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, using the modified-prospective transition method. Under this transition method,
stock-based compensation expense was recognized in the consolidated financial statements for granted, modified, or
settled stock options and for expense related to the ESPP, since the related purchase discounts exceeded the amount
allowed under SFAS 123R for non-compensatory treatment. Compensation expense recognized included the estimated
expense for stock options granted on and subsequent ro October 3, 2005, based on the granc date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R, and the estimated expense for the portion vesting in the period for options
granted prior 1o, but not vested as of October 3, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the
original provisions of SFAS 123, Results for prior periods have not been restared, as provided for under the modified-
prospective method.

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidared statement of earnings for fiscal 2006 was
$105.0 million before income taxes and consisted of stock option and ESPP expense of $94.8 million and $10.2 million,
respectively. The related total tax benefit was $36.1 million for fiscal 2006. Capiralized stock-based compensation at
October 1, 2006 was $2.1 million, and was included in “Property, plant and equipment, net” and “Inventories” on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, Starbucks presented all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock options as
operating cash inflows in the consolidated statcements of cash flows, in accordance with the provisions of the Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No 00-15, “Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the Income Tax Benefit
Received by a Company upon Exercise of a Nonqualified Employee Stock Option.” SFAS 123R requires the benefits of
tax deductions in excess of the tax effect of the compensation cost recognized for those options to be classified as financing
cash inflows rather than operating cash inflows, on a prospective basis, This amount is shown as “Excess tax benefit from
exercise of stock options” on the consolidated statement of cash flows.

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for the
Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards” (“FSP 123R-3"). The Company has elected to adopt the alternarive
transition method provided in FSP 123R-3 for calculating the tax effects of stock-based compensation under SFAS 123R.
The alternative transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional
paid-in-capital pool (“APIC pool”) related to the tax effects of stock-based compensation, and for determining the
subsequent impact on the APIC pool and consolidated statements of cash flows of the tax effects of stock-based
compensation awards that are outstanding upon adoption of SFAS 123R.

For option grants made in November 2003 and thereafter, the Company may provide for immediate vesting upon
retirement for optionees who have artained at least 10 years of service and are age 55 or older. Prior 1o adoption of
SFAS 123R, the Company amortized the expense over the related vesting period with acceleration of expense upon
retirement. With the adoption of SFAS 123R, the accounting treatment for retirement features changed. Expense for
awards made prior to adoption of SFAS 123R is still amortized over the vesting period uniil retirement, at which point
any remaining unrecognized expense is immediately recognized. For awards made on or after October 3, 2005, the related
expense is recognized either from grant date through the date the employee reaches the years of service and age
requirements, or from grant date through the stated vesting period, whichever is shorter.
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The following table shows the effect on net carnings and earnings per share had compensation cost been recognized based
upon the estimated fair value on the grant date of stock options, and ESPP, in accordance with SFAS 123, as amended by
SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (in thousands, except earnings

per share):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct2,2005  Oa3, 2004

Net carnings $494,370  $388,880

Deduct: stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method, net of tax (58,742} (45.056)

Pro forma net income $435,628  $343,824

Earnings per share:
Basic — as reported ‘ $§ 063 $ 049
Deduct: stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method, net of tax (0.08) (0.06)
Basic -— pro forma $ 055 % 043
Dilured — as reported $ 061 § 047
Deduct: stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method, net of tax {0.08) (0.05)
Diluted — pro forma $ 053 § 042

Disclosures for the year ended October 1, 2006 are not presented because the amounts are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

The fair value of stock awards was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton (“BSM™) option
valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions for the 52 weeks ended October 1, 2006, October 2,
2005 and 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004:

EMVLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS ESIT
2005 2004 2005 2004

FISCAL YEAR ENDED . 2006  (ProForma)  (Fo Forma) 2006 {P'ro Farma) {Pro Forma)
Expected term (in years) 4.4 37 37 0.25-3.0 0.25-3.0 0.25-3.0
Expected stock price volatility 29% 33% 42% 22% - 50% 20% - 40% 19% — 43%
Risk-free interest rate 4.4% 3.5% 2.5% 23%-5.0% 1.9%-35% 09%-23%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Estimated fair value per option granted $959  $8.10 $5.30 $6.60 $5.05 $3.38

The expected term of the options represents the estimated period of time until exercise and is based on historical
experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules and expectations of future
employee behavior. For 2006, expected stock price volatility is based on a combination of historical volatility of the
Company’s stock and the one-year implied volatility of its traded options, for the related vesting periods. Prior to the
adoption of SFAS 123R, expected stock price volatility was estimated using only historical volatiliry. The risk-free interest
rate is based on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term. The
Company has not paid dividends in the past and does not plan to pay any dividends in the near future.

The BSM option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, particularly for the expected term and expected stock price volatility. The Company’s employee stock
options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. Because Company stock options do not trade on 2 secondary
exchange, employees do not derive a benefit from holding stock options unless there is an increase, above the grant price,
in the market price of the Company's stock. Such an increase in stock price would benefit all shareholders commen-
surately. See Note 14 for additional details.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s international operations generally use their local currency as their functional currency. Assets and
liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense accounts are translated ar
the average monthly exchange rates during the year. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a separate
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income.”

Income Taxes

The Company computes income taxes using the asser and liability method, under which deferred income raxes are
provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and
liabilicies. The Company establishes, and periodically reviews and re-evaluates, an estimated contingent tax liability to
provide for the possibility of unfavorable outcomes in tax matters in accordance wich the requirements of SFAS No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 57).

Earnings per Share

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares and commen stock units
that were outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of
common stock equivalents consisting of certain shares subject to stock options.

Common Stock Share Repurchases

The Company is allowed to repurchase shares of its common stock under a program authorized by its Board of Directors
including pursuant to a contract, instruction or written plan meeting the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1} of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Share repurchases are not displayed separately as treasury stock on the consolidated
balance sheets or consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity in accordance with the Washington Business Corpo-
ration Act. Instead, the par value of repurchased shares is deducted from “Common stock” and the remaining excess
repurchase price over par value is deducted from “Additional paid-in capital” and from “Retained earnings,” once
addirional paid-in capiral is depleted. See Note 13 for additional information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Unceruinty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which seeks o reduce the diversity in practice associated with the accounting
and reporting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the
financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, and the Company
will adopt the new requirements in its fiscal first quarter of 2008. The cumulative effects, if any, of adopting FIN 48 will
be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has not yer
determined the impact, if any, of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures abour fair value measurements, SFAS
157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. Starbucks must adopt these new requirements no later than its first
fiscal quarter of 2009, Starbucks has not yet determined the effect on the Company’s consolidated financial stacements, if
any, upon adoption of SFAS 157, or if it will adopt the requirements prior to the first fiscal quarter of 2009.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”). The intent of
SAB 108 is to reduce diversity in practice for the method companies use to quantify financial statement misstatements,
including the effect of prior year uncorrected errors. SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of
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financial statement errors using both an income statement and cumnulative balance sheet approach. SAB 108 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006, and the Company will adopt the new requirements in fiscal 2008.
The adoption of SAB 108 is not currently expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Note 2: Business Acquisitions

In January 2006, Starbucks increased its equity ownership to 100% in its operations in Hawaii and Puerto Rico and
applied the consolidation method of accounting from the acquisition date. Previously the Company owned 5% of both
Coffee Partners Hawaii and Café del Caribe in Puerto Rico. Because Coffee Partners Hawaii was a general partnership,
the equity method of accounting was previously applied. Retroactive application of the equity method of accounting for
the Puerto Rico investment, which was previously accounted for under the cost method, resulted in a reduction of
retained earnings of $0.5 million as of April 2, 2006. Previously reported carnings per share amounts were not impacted
as a result of this acquisition.

As shown in the tables below, the cumulative effect of the accounting change for financial results previously reported
under the cost method and as restated in this report under the equity method reduced net earnings by $97 thousand for
the fiscal year ended October 2, 2005 and $93 thousand for the fiscal year ended Ocrober 2, 2004 (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oa2.2005  Oad 2004

Net earnings, as previously reported $494,467  $388,973
Effect of change o equity method (97} (93)
Net earnings, as restated for Puerto Rico acquisition $494,370  $388,880

Note 3: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following (in thousands):

FISCAL YFAR ENDED Oal, 2006 Oct2, 2005
Operating funds and interest bearing deposits $ 84,943 § 62,221
Money market funds 227,663 111,588
Total $312,606  §$173,809

Note 4: Short-term and Long-term Investments

The Company’s short-term and long-term investments consist of the following (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Unrealized  Unrealized
Amortized Holding, Holding, Fair
OCTORER 1, 2006 Cost CGains 1.a3sse8 Value
Short-term investments — available-for-sale sccurities:
State and local government obligations $ 75,379 $ 9  $(332) § 75056
U.S. government agency obligations 10,000 — — 10,000
Corporate debt securities 2,488 — 2) 2,486
Toral 87.867 $ 9 3(334) 87,542
Short-term investments — trading sccurities 55,265 53,496
Total shori-term investments $143,132 $141,038
Long-term investments — available-for-sale securities:
State and local government obligations ~$ 5,893 $— §$(82) § 54811
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Grass Grass

Unrealized Uarealized
Amontized Heolding FHolding Fair
OCTOBER 2, 2005 Cost Gains Losscs Value

Short-term investments — available-for-sale securites:

State and local government obligacions $ 47,960 $ 1 $(179) $ 47,782
Murual funds 25,000 34 — 25,034
U.S. government agency obligations 11,327 — (1) 11,306
Corporate debt securities 4,000 — — 4,000
Asset-backed securities 7.373 — (116) 7.257
Total 95,660 $35  ${316) 95,379
Short-term investments — trading securities 35,376 37,848
Total short-term investments $131,036 $133,227

Long-term investments — available-for-sale securities:

State and local government obligations $ 61,236 $ 7  $(768) $ 60,475

For available-for-sale securities, proceeds from sales were $431 million, $626 million and $452 million, in fiscal years
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross realized gains from sales were $3.8 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million in
fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross realized losses from sales were $0.1 million, $1.7 million and
$0.4 million in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The following tables present the length of time available-for-sale securities were in continuous unrealized loss positions
but were not deemed 1o be other-than-temporarily impaired (in thowsands):

GREATER THAN OR

CONSECUTIVE MONTHLY UNREALIZED LOSSES LESS THAN 12 MONTHS  EQUALTO 12 MONTHS
Gross Gros
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Fair Helding Fair
QCTOBER 1, 2006 . - Losses Value Losses Value
State and local government obligations §— 3 —  ${414) 349,960
Corporate debt securities ' (2) 2,486 -— —
Total $ (2) $2,486 $(414) $49,960
GREATER THAN OR
CONSECUTIVE MONTHLY UNREALIZED LOSSES LESS THAN 12 MONTHS  EQUAL TO 12 MONTHS
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
o Helding Fair Holding Fair
OCTOBER 2, 2005 Losses Value Lasses Value
State and local government obligations $(371) $49,527 $(576) $43,699
U.S, government agency obligations (21) 11,306 — —
Asset-backed securicies (34) 3,467 (82) 3,790
Total $(426) $64,300 $(658) $47.489

Gross unrealized holding losses of $2 thousand for less than twelve months and $0.4 million for greater than or equal to
twelve months as of October 1, 2006, pertain o 3 and 23 fixed income securities, respectively, and were primarily caused
by interest rate increases. Since Starbucks has the ability and intent to hald these securities until a recovery of fair value,
which may be at maturity, and because the unrealized losses were primarily due to higher interest rates, the Company does
riot consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Additional factors related to other-than-temporary impairment considered by management as of October 1, 2006,
included the following, by category:

State and local government obligations

‘I'he contractual terms of these securities do not permit the issuer to settle at a price less than the par value of the
investment, which is the equivalent of the amount due at maturity. These securities had a minimum credit rating of A
and an average credit rating above “AA.”

Corporate debt obligations

The contractual terms of these securities do not permit the issuer to settle at a price less than the par value of the
investment, which is the equivalent of the amount due at maturity. These securities had 2 minimum and average credit
rating of “A."

There were no realized losses recorded for other than temporary impairments during fiscal years 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Trading securities are comprised mainly of marketable equity mutual funds that approximare a portion of the Company’s
liability under the Management Deferred Compensation Plan, a defined contribution plan. The corresponding deferred
compensation liability of $64.6 million in fiscal 2006 and $47.3 million in fiscal 2005 is included in “Accrued
compensation and related costs’ on the consolidated balance sheets. In fiscal years 2006 and 2005, the changes in net
unrealized holding gains/losses in the trading portfolio included in earnings were a net loss of $4.2 million and a net gain
of $2.4 million, respectively.

Long-term investments generally mature in less than three years.

Note 5: Derivative Financial Instruments
Cash Flow Hedges

Starbucks, which includes subsidiaries that use their local currency as their functional currency, enters into cash flow
derivative instruments to hedge portions of anticipated revenue steeams and inventary purchases. Current forward
contracts, which comprise the majority of the Company's derivative instruments, hedge monthly forecasted revenue
transactions denominated in Japanese yen and Canadian dollars, as well as forecasted inventory purchases denominated
primarily in U.S. dollars for foreign operations. The Company also has swap contracts to hedge a small portion of its
forecasted U.S. fluid milk purchases and futures contracts to hedge the variable price component for certain of its
price-to-be-fixed green coffee purchase contracts.

"The Company had accumulated net derivative losses of $3.2 million, net of taxes, in other comprehensive income as of
October 1, 2006, related to cash flow hedges. Of this amount, $1.8 million of net derivative losses pertain to hedging
instruments that will be dedesignated within 12 months and will also continue to experience fair value changes before
affecting earnings. For the 52-week period ended October 1, 2006, net fair value losses of $0.1 million were recognized
into net earnings for derecognized cash flow hedges. No cash flow hedges were discontinued and no ineffectiveness was
recognized during the 52-week period ended Ocrober 2, 2005. Current contracts will expire within 24 months.

Net Investment Hedges

Net investment derivative instruments are used to hedge the Company’s equiry method investment in Starbucks Coffee
Japan, Ltd. as well as the Company’s net investmens in its Canadian and United Kingdom subsidiaries, to minimize
foreign currency exposure. The Company applies the spot-to-spot method for these forward foreign exchange contracts,
and under this method the change in fair value of the forward contracts attributable to the changes in spot exchange rates
(the effective portion) is reported in other comprehensive income. The remaining change in fair value of the forward
contract {the ineffective portion) is reclassified into earnings in “Interest and other income, net.” The Company had
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accumulated net derivarive losses of $3.2 million, net of taxes, in other comprehensive income as of October 1, 2006,
related to net investment derivative hedges. Current contracts expire within 33 months.

The following table presents the net gains and losses reclassified from other comprehensive income into the consolidated
statements of earnings during the periods indicated for cash flow and net investment hedges (in thousands):

Oer 1, 2006 Oer 2, 2005 Oce 3, 2004

Cash flow hedges:

Reclassified gains/(losses) into rotal net revenues $ 1,489 $ (843) $(1,488)

Reclassified losses into cost of sales (7,698) (4,535) (761)
Net reclassified losses — cash flow hedges (6,209) (5,378) (2,249)
Net reclassified gains — net investment hedges 3,754 1,058 673
Total $(2,455)  $(4,320) $(1,576)
Note 6: Inventories
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):
FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1. 2006 G 2, 2005
Coffee:

Unroasted $328,051 $319,745

Roasted 80,199 56,231
Orther merchandise held for sale 146,345 109,094
Packaging and other supplies 81,627 61,229
Total $636.222  $546,299

As of October 1, 2006, the Company had committed to fixed-price purchase contracts for green coffee totaling
$546 million. The Company believes, based on relationships established with its suppliers in the past, the risk of non-
delivery on such purchase commitments is remote. Other merchandise held for sale includes, among other items, brewing
equipment, serveware and tea.

Note 7: Equity and Other Investments

The Coempany’s equity and other investments consist of the following (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Our 1, 2006 Oce 2. 2005
Equity method investments $205.004  $189.876
Cost method investments 11,283 8.407
Other investments 2,806 2,806
Toral $219.093 $201,089
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Equity Method

The Company’s equity investees and ownership interests are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oet 1, 2006 Lvar 2. 2005
The North American Coffee Partnership 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Ice Cream Partnership ' 50.0 50.0
Starbucks Coffee Korea Co,, Lid. 30.0 50.0
Starbucks Coffee Austria GmbH 50.0 50.0
Starbucks Coffee Swirzerland AG 50.0 50.0
Starbucks Coffee Espafia, S.L. 50.0 50.0
President Srarbucks Coffee Taiwan Led. 50.0 50.0
Shanghai President Coffee Co. 50.0 50.0
Starbucks Coffee Prance SAS 50.0 50.0
Berjaya Starbucks Coffee Company $dn. Bhd. 49.9 49.9
Swarbucks Brasil Comercio de Cafes Lida. 49.0 —
Starbucks Coffee Japan, Lid. 40.1 40.1
Coffec Partners Hawaii ¥ — 5.0

(1) In January 2006, Starbucks acquired all of the equity interests in this entiry. Previously the Company owned 5% of Coffee Pactners
Hawaii and accounted for it under the equity method of accounting because it was a general partnership. From the date of
acquisition, the consolidation method of accounting was applicd.

The Company has licensed the rights to produce and distribute Starbucks branded products to two partnerships in which
the Company holds 50% equity interests. The North American Coffee Partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company
develops and distributes Frappuccino® bottled beverages and Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks. The Starbucks Ice
Cream Partnership with Dreyer’s Grand lce Cream, Inc., develops and distributes superpremium ice creams. The
remaining entitics operate licensed Starbucks retail stores.

During fiscal 2004, Starbucks acquired an equity interest in its licensed operations of Malaysia. During fiscal 2003,
Starbucks increased its ownership of its licensed operations in Austria, Shanghai, Spain, Switzerland and Taiwan. The
carrying amount of these investments was $24.3 million more chan the underlying equity in nec assets due o acquired
goodwill, which is not subject to amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers.”
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment in accordance with APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for
Investments in Common Stock.” No impairment was recorded during fiscal years 2006, 2005 or 2004.

The Company’s share of income and losses is included in “Income from equity investees” on the consolidared statenertes
of earnings. Also included is the Company's proportionare share of gross margin resulting from coffee and other product
sales to, and royalty and license fec revenues generated from equity investees. Revenues generated from these related
parties, net of eliminations, were $94.2 million, $86.1 million and $80.7 million in fscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Related costs of sales, net of eliminations, were $47.5 million, $43.3 million and $41.2 million in fiscal years
20006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005, there were $17.7 million and
$16.7 million of accounts receivable, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets from equity investees related to
product sales and store license fees.

As of October 1, 2006, the aggregate marker value of the Company’s investment in Starbucks Coffec Japan, Lid., was
approximately $234.1 million based on its available quoted marker price.

Cost Method

The Company has equity interests in entities to develop Starbucks licensed retail stores in Hong Kong, Mexico, Cyprus
and Greece, As of October 1, 2006, and October 2, 2005, management determined cthat the estimated fair values of each
cost method invesument exceeded the related carrying values (no unrealized fair valuc losses). There were no realized losses
recorded for other-than-temporary impairments during fiscal years 2006, 2005 or 2004,
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Starbucks has the ability 10 acquire additional interests in some of its cost method investees a certain intervals,
Depending on the Company’s toral percentage of ownership interest and its ability to exercise significant influence over
financial and operating policies, additional investmenss may require the retroactive applicarion of the equity method of
accounting.

Other Investments

Starbucks has investments in privately held equity securities, that are also accounted for under the cost method, whose
carrying values approximate fair value. There were no realized losses generated from other-than-temporary impairment
during fiscal 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Note 8: Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and consist of the following (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oa 1, 2006 Oa 2, 2005
Land $ 032350 § 13,833
Buildings 109,129 68,180
Leasehold improvemenss 2,436,503 1,947,963
Store equipment 784,444 646,792
Rousting equipment 197,004 168,934
Furniture, fixtures and other 523,275 476,372

4,082,705 3,322,074
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {1,969,804) {1,625,564)

2,112,901 1,696,510
Work in progress 174,998 145,509
Property, plant and equipment, nec $ 2,287,899  $ 1,842,019

Note 9: Other Intangible Assets and Goodwill

As of October 1, 2006, indefinite-lived intangibles were $34.1 million and definite-lived intangibles, which collectively
had a remaining weighted average useful life of approximately eight years, were $3.9 million, ner of accumulated
amortization of $3.4 million. As of October 2, 2005, indefinite-lived intangibles were $31.6 million and definite-lived
intangibles, which collectively had a remaining weighted average useful life of approximarely six years, were $3.8 million,
net of accumulared amortization of $2.1 million. The increase in indefinite-lived intangibles was primarily due ro
ongoing trademark activity. Amortization expense for definite-lived intangibles was $1.2 million, $0.8 million and
$0.5 million during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The foliowing table summarizes, as of October 1, 2006, the estimated amortization expense for each of the next five fiscal
vears (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

2007 $1,046
2008 578
2009 480
2010 457
2011 403
Total $2,964

STARBUCHS CORPORATION, FORM 16-K

55




56

The following table summarizes goodwill by operating segment (in thousands);

FISCAL VEAR ENDED O 1, 2006 O 2. 2005
United States $125,976  $51,802
International 25,802 30,972
Global CPG 9,700 9,700
Towal $161,478  $92,474

During fiscal 2006, the United States operating segment increased its equity ownership in its licensed operations in
Hawaii. During fiscal 2006, the International operating segment increased its equity ownership in its licensed operations
in Puerto Rico and made adjustments reducing goodwill upon the finalization of the purchase price of its Southern China
operations, for which it acquired majority ownership in the fiscal fourth quarter of 2005, The goodwill associated with
the Global CPG segment consists of portions allocated from the Company’s fiscal 1999 acquisition of Tazo Tea Company

and fiscal 2003 acquisition of Seattle Coffee Company, the parent company of Seattle’s Best Coffee LLC and Torrefazione
Italia LLC.

Note 10: Long-term Debt and Short-term Borrowings

In August 2005, the Company entered into a $500 million unsecured five-year revolving credit facility (the “facilicy”)
with various banks, of which $100 million may be used for issuances of letters of credit. The facility is available for
working capital, capital expenditures and other corporate purposes, which may include acquisitions and share repur-
chases. In August 2006, the Company increased its borrowing capacity under the facility to $1 billion, as provided in the
original credit facility. The interest rate for borrowings under the facility ranges from 0.150% to 0.275% over LIBOR or
an alternare base rate, which is the greater of the bank prime rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%. The specific
spread over LIBOR will depend upon the Company’s performance under specified financial criteria.

As of Ocrober 1, 2006, the Company had $700 million outstanding, as well as a letter of credit of $11.9 million which
reduces the borrowing capacity under the credit facility. For the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006, the Company had
addirional borrowings of $1.4 billion under the facility and made principal repayments of $993 million. As of October 2,
2003, the Company had $277 million outstanding, with no letters of credit. The weighted average contractual interest
rates at October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005 were 5.5% and 4.0% respectively. The facility contains provisions that
require the Company to maintain compliance with certain covenants, including the maintenance of certain financial
ratios. As of October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005, the Company was in compliance with each of these covenants.

In Seprermber 1999, Starbucks purchased the land and building comprising its York County, Pennsylvania roasting plant
and distribution facility for a total purchase price of $12.9 million. At the time of purchase, the Company assumed
related loans totaling $7.7 million from the York County Industrial Development Corporation. As of October 1, 2006,
the Company had $2.7 million outstanding. The remaining maturities of these loans range from four to five years, with
interest rates from 0.0% to 2.0%.

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized, was $8.4 million, $1.3 million and $0.4 million in fiscal 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. In fiscal 2006, $2.7 million of interest expense was capitalized for new store construction and included

in “Property, plant and equipment, net,” on the consolidated balance sheet. No interest was capitalized in fiscal 2005 or
2004.
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Scheduled principal payments on long-term debrt are as follows (in thousands):
FISCAL YEAR ENDING

2007 $ 762
2008 776
2009 789
2010 337
201 56
Total principal payments $2,720

Note 11: Other Long-term Liabilities

The Company’s other long-term liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

FISCAL VEAR ENDED O 12006 Qe 2, 2005
Deferred renc $203,903  $166,182
Asset retirement obligations 34,271 —
Minoricy interest 10,739 11,153
Other ' 13,944 16,230
Total $262,857  $193,565

The deferred rent liabilities as of October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005, represent amounts for tenant improvement
allowances, rent escalation clauses and rent holidays related ro certain operating leases. The Company amortizes deferred
rent over the terms of the leases as reductions to rent expense on the consolidated statements of earnings.

Asset retirement liabilities represent the estimated fair value of the Company’s future costs of removing leasehold
improvements at the terminarion of leases related to certain of its leased stores and administrative facilities. The Company
adopted this new accounting requirement on the last day of fiscal 2006, as discussed in more detail in Note 1.

For operations accounted for under the consolidation method, but in which Starbucks owns less than 100% of the equity
interests, long-term liabilities are maintained for the collective ownership interests of minority sharcholders. As of
October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005, Starbucks had less than 100% ownership in Coffee Concepts (Southern China)
Ltd. as well as in Chengdu Starbucks Coffee Company Limited and Urban Coffee Opportunities, LLC.

The other remaining long-term liabilities generally include obligations to be settled or paid for one year beyond each
respective fiscal year end, for items such as hedging instruments, guarantees {see Note 18}, donarion commirments and
the long-term portion of capiral lease obligations.

Note 12: Leases

Rental expense under operating lease agreements was as follows (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 Oct 2, 2005 Oct 3, 2004
Minimum rentals — retail stores $406,329 $340,474  $285,250
Minimum rentals — other 52,367 43,532 28,108
Contringent rentals 40,113 32,910 24,638
Total $498,809 $416,916  $337,996

STARBUCES CORPORATION, FORM 10-E

57




58

Minimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating lease obligations as of October 1, 2006, are as follows
(in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

2007 $ 531,634
2008 520,553
2009 492,759
2010 452,839
2011 408,412
Thereafter 1,486,721
Total minimum lease payments $3,892,938

The Company has subleases related to certain of its operating lease agreements. During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the
Company recognized sublease income of $5.7 million, $4.3 millien and $4.0 million, respectively.

The Company had capital lease obligations of $4.1 million and $2.6 million as of October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005,
respectively. As of October 1, 2006, the current portion of the total obligation was $1.7 million and was included in
“Other accrued expenses” and the remaining long-term portion of $2.4 million was included in “Other long-term
liabilities™ on the consolidated balance sheet. Capiral lease obligations expire at various dates, with the latest maturity in
2020. Assers held under capital leases are included in “Property, plant and equipment, net,” on the consolidated balance
sheets.

Note 13: Shareholders’ Equity

In addition to 1.2 billion shares of authorized common stock with $0.001 par value per share, the Company has
authorized 7.5 million shares of preferred stock, none of which was outstanding at October 1, 2006.

Under the Company’s authorized share repurchase program, Starbucks acquired 25.6 million shares at an average price of
$32.34 for a ratal accrual-based cost of $828 million in fiscal 2006. The related cash amount used to repurchase shares in
fiscal 2006 totaled $854 million. The difference between the two amounts represents the effect of the net change in
unsettled trades totaling $26 million from October 2, 2005. Starbucks acquired 45.1 million shares at an average price of
$25.26 for a total cost of $1.1 billion during fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, the Starbucks Board of Directors authorized
additional repurchases of 25 million shares of the Company’s common stock, and as of October 1, 2006, there were
21.5 million remaining shares authorized for repurchase. Share repurchases were funded through cash, cash equivalents,
available-for-sale securities and borrowings under the revolving credit facility and were part of the Company’s active
capital management program.,

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period, except those resulting from transactions with
shareholders and subsidiaries of the Company. It has two components: net earnings and other comprehensive income.
Accumulated other comprehensive income reported on the Company'’s consolidated balance sheets consists of foreign
currency translation adjustments and the unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, on available-for-sale
secutities and on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as cash flow and net investment hedges.

HTARBUCES CORPORATION, FORM 10-K




Comprehensive income, net of related tax effects, is as follows (in theusands):
FISCAL YEAR ENDED Ox1,2006 Oc2,2005  Oad 2004
Net earnings $564,259  $494.370  $388,880

Unrealized holding gains/(losses} on available-for-sale securities, net of rax
benefit/(provision) of ($1,298), $889 and $618 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively 2,164 (1,482) (1,005}
Unrealized holding tosses on cash flow hedges, net of tax benefit of $1,646, $2,268 and

$2,801 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively (2,803) (3,861) (4.769)
Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on net investment hedges, nert of tax

benefit/(provision) of ($21), ($609) and $328 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively 35 1,037 (558)

Reclassification adjustment for net (gains)/losses realized in net earnings for
available-for-sale securities, net of tax provision/(benefit} of $1,060, ($812) and

($127) in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively (1,767 1,354 207
Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized in net e2rnings for cash flow hedges,

net of tax benefit of $2,430, $1,939 and $705 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively 4,138 3,302 1,200

Net unrealized gain/(loss) 1,767 350 (4.925)

Transhuion adjustment 14,592 (8,677) 19,892

Tortal comprehensive income $580.618  $486,043  $403,847

The favorable transtation adjustment change during fiscal 2006 of $14.6 million was primarily due to the weakening of
the U.S. dollar against the British pound sterling, euro and Canadian dollar. The unfavorable translation adjustment
change during fiscal 2005 of $8.7 million was primarily due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the euro,
British pound sterling and Japanese yen. The favorable translation adjustment change during fiscal 2004 of $19.9 miltion
was primarily due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar against several currencies, such as the British pound sterling, euro,
Australian dollar and Canadian dollar.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, were as follows (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Ot 1, 2006 Oa 2, 2005
Net unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities $ (254) % (651)
Ner unrealized holding losses on hedging instruments (6,416) (7.786)
Translation adjustment 43,943 29,351
Accumulared other comprehensive income 337,273 320,914

As of October 1, 2006, the translation adjustment of $43.9 million was net of tax provistons of $7.3 million. As of
October 2, 2005, the translation adjustment of $29.4 million was net of rax provisions of $5.5 million.

Note 14: Employee Stock and Benefit Plans
Stock Option Plans

Stack options to purchase the Company’s common stock are granted ar prices at or above the fair market value on the date
of grant. Options generally become exercisable in three or four equal installments beginning a year from the date of grant
and generally expire 10 years from the date of grant. Options granted to non-employee directors generally vest over one
year. Nearly all outstanding stock options are non-qualified stock options.

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the BSM option valuation model. The
assumptions used to calculate the fair value of options granted are evaluated and revised, as necessary, to reflect market
conditions and the Company’s experience. Options granted are valued using the multiple option valuation approach, and
the resulting expense is recognized using the graded, or accelerated, artribution method, consistent with the multiple
option valuation approach. Compensation expense is recognized only for those options expected to vest, with forfeitures

ARBUCKS CORPORATION, FORM 10-K

59




80

estimared ar the dare of grant based on the Company's historical experience and future expectations. Prior to the adoption
of SFAS 123R, the effect of forfeitures on the pro forma expense amounts was recognized as the forfeitures occurred.

The following summarizes all stock option transactions from September 28, 2003, through October 1, 2006 (no
restricted stock, restricted stock units or stock appreciation rights were outstanding for any of these periods}):

Weighted Average  Weighted Average Aggregate
Shares Subject to Exercise Price Remaining Intrinsic Value

Options per Share Contractual Life  {In thousands)
OQutstanding, September 28, 2003 78,130,892 $7.74 6.7 $550,420
Granted 18,435,240 15.62
Exercised (15,416,982} 7.11
Cancelled (4,315,930) 11.88
Ourstanding, October 3, 2004 76,833,220 9.52 6.5 . 1,082,324
Granred 15,627,550 27.17 :
Exercised (16,169,992) 8.08
Cancelled . (3,831,872) 17.86
Outstanding, Ocrober 2, 2005 ° 72,458,906 13.22 6.3 857.319
Granred 13,357,095 30.52
Exercised (13,222,729) 9.02
Cancelled : (3,173,401) 24.51
QOurstanding, October 1, 2006 69,419,871 16.83 6.2 1,196,209
Exercisable, Ocrober 1, 2006 49,203,321 12.56 5.3 1,057,584

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before applicable income taxes and represents the amount optionees
would have received if all options had been exercised on the last business day of the period indicated, based on the
Company’s closing stock price. As of October 1, 2006, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to
nonvested stock options was approximately $72 million, before income taxes, and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of approximately 22 months. During the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006, the total intrinsic
value of stock options exercised was $327 million. During the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006, the total fair value of
options vested was $95 million. '

The Company issues new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options.

As of October 1, 2006, there were 62.3 million shares of common stock available for issuance pursuant to future stock
option grants. Additional information regarding options outstanding as of October 1, 2006, is as follows:

QOPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
Weighted Average . '
Remaining
Contractual Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Exercise Price Shares Excrcise Price
$ 396-3% 7.40 16,185,466 27 $£576 16,185,466  $5.76
7.76 - 10.96 14,067,683 5.3 10.25 13,757,120 10.23
11.00 - 19.60 14,020,218 6.9 14.92 11,499,384 14.76
20.99- 30.20 13,437,687 8.2 27.00 6,661,116 27.10
30.28—- 37.8G 11,708,817 2.1 30.67 1,100,235 30.42
69,419,871 6.2 16.83 49,203,321 12.56

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan allowing eligible employees to contribute up to 10% of their base
carnings toward the quarterly purchase of the Company’s common stock. The employee’s purchase price is 85% of the
lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the first business day or the last business day of the quarterly offering period.
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Employees may purchase shares having a fair market value of up to $25,000 (measured as of the first day of each quarterly
offering period for cach calendar year). The total number of shares issuable under the plan is 32.0 million. There were
1.5 million shares issued under the plan during the fiscal year ended October 1, 2006 at an average price of $26.81. There
were 1.5 million shares issued under the plan during the fiscal year ended October 2, 2005 atan average price of $21.27.
There were 2.0 million shares issued under the plan during the fiscal year ended October 3, 2004 at an average price of
$14.23. Since inception of the plan, 16.3 million shares have been purchased, leaving 15.7 million shares available for
future issuance. Of the approximately 73,000 employees eligible to participate, approximately 23,000 were participants
in the plan as of Ocrober 1, 2006,

Starbucks has an additional employee stock purchase plan in the United Kingdom that allows eligible U.K. employees 1o
save toward the purchase of the Company’s common stock. Under the Save-As-You-Earn (“SAYE”) plan the employee’s
purchase price is 85% of the fair value of the stock on the first business day of a three-year offering period. The total
number of shares issuable under the plan is 1.2 million. There were 36,348 shares issued under the plan during the fiscal
year ended October 1, 2006 at an average price of $8.84, and 1.1 million shares remain available for future issuance.
There were 23,382 shares issued under the plan during the fiscal year ended October 2, 2005 at an average price of $7.93.
There were 8,960 shares issued under the plan during the fiscal year ended Ocrober 3, 2004 ar an average price of $9.47.
During fiscal 2004, the Company suspended furure offerings under this plan. The last offering was made in December
2002 and matured in February 2006.

A new employee stock purchase plan, the U.K. Share Incentive Plan, was introduced during fiscal 2004 to replace the
SAYE plan. The plan allows eligible U.K. employees to purchase shares of common stock through payrell deductions
during six-month offering periods at the lesser of the fair market value of the stock at the beginning or at the end of the
offering period. The Company will award one macching share for each six shares purchased under the plan. The total
number of shares issuable under the plan is 1.4 million. There were 11,138 shares issued under the plan during the fiscal
year ended October 1, 2006 at an average price of $26.42. There were 10,732 shares issued under the plan during the
fiscal year ended October 2, 2003 at an average price of $22.08. As of October 1, 2006, 1.38 million shares were available
for future issuance.

Deferred Stock Plan

Starbucks has a deferred stock plan for certain key employees that enables participants in the plan to defer receipt of
ownership of common shares from the exercise of nonqualified stock options. The minimum deferral period is five years.
As of October 1, 2006, receipt of 3,394,200 shares was deferred under the terms of this plan. The rights to receive these
shares, represented by common stock units, are included in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share as
commen stock equivalents.

Defined Contribution Plans

Starbucks maintains voluntary defined contribution plans covering eligible employees as defined in the plan documents.
Participating employees may clect to defer and contribute a portion of their compensation to the plans up to limis stated
in the plan documencs, not to exceed the dollar amounts set by applicable laws. For employees in the United States and
Canada, the Company matched 25% 10 150% of each employee’s eligible contribution based on years of service, up to a
maximum of the first 4% of each employee’s compensation. The Company’s matching contributions to all plans were
approximately $19.3 million, $12.4 million and $9.8 million in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 15: Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDED 01,2006 O 2, 2005 O 3, 2004
Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefir 3.4 3.9 3.5
QOther, net (2.6} (1.0 (1.2)
Effective tax rate 35.8% 37.9% 37.3%

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (7n thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oa 1, 2006 Qct 2, 2005 Qex 3, 2004

Current taxes:

Federal $332,202  $273,178  5188,647

State 57,759 51,949 36,383

Foreign 12,398 14,106 10,193
Deferred rtaxes, net (77.589) (37.256) (3,469)
Tocal $324,770  $301,977  $231,754

U.S. income and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on approximately $178.5 million of cumulative
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and equity investees. The Company intends to reinvest these earnings for
the foreseeable future. If these amounts were distributed to the United States, in the form of dividends or otherwise, the
Company would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred
income tax liabilities on these earnings is not practicable because such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances
existing if and when remittance occurs.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Seaff Position No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign
Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP 109-2”}. The American Jobs
Creation Act allowed a special one-time dividends received deduction on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a
LS. waxpayer (repatriation provision}, provided certain criteria are met. The law allowed the Company to make an
election to repatriate earnings through 2006. During the Company's fiscal third quarter of 2006, Starbucks complered its
evaluation and elected to waive repatriation of earnings under this provision.
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The tax effect of temporary differences and carryforwards that comprise significant portions of deferred tax assets and
liabilictes is as follows (in theusands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 O 2, 2005

DCFC[’I'Ed tax assets:

Accrued occupancy costs § 36,205 § 31,247
Accrued compensation and related costs 90,815 43,890
Other accrued expenses 34,959 20,199
Foreign tax credits 20,948 15,708
Other 19,095 13,990
Toral 202,022 125,034
Valuation allowance (8,767} (8,078}
Total deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowance 193,255 116,956

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment (12,759) (32.314)
Other (16,249 (11,600}
Total {29,008)  {43.914)
Net deferred tax asset $164,247  § 73,042

The Company will establish a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that these items will either expire before the
Company is able to realize their benefits, or that furure deducribility is uncerwain. Periodically, the valuation allowance is
reviewed and adjusted based on management’s assessments of realizable deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance as of
October 1, 2006 was related to net operating losses of consolidated foreign subsidiaries. The valuation allowance as of
Ocrober 2, 2005 was related to capital loss carryforwards and net operating losses of consolidated foreign subsidiaries.
The net change in the toral valuation allowance for the years ended October 1, 2006, and Ocrober 2, 2005, was an
increase of $0.7 million and $7.1 million, respectively.

As of October 1, 2006, the Company has foreign tax credit carryforwards of $20.9 million with expiration dates between
fiscal years 2010 and 2016. As of the end of fiscal 2006, the Company also has capital loss carryforwards of $1.2 million,
expiring in fiscal year 2010,

Taxes currentdy payable of $50.6 million and $41.5 million are included in "Accrued taxes” on the consolidared balance
sheets as of October 1, 2006, and October 2, 2003, respectively.

The Company has established, and periodically reviews and re-evaluates, an estimated contingent tax liability to provide
for the possibility of unfavorable outcomes in tax matters. Conringent tax liabilities totaled $27.6 million and
$33.1 million as of October 1, 2006, and October 2, 2003, respectively, and are included in “Accrued taxes” on the
consolidated batance sheets. These liabilities are provided for in accordance with the requirements of SFAS 5. The
Company believes its contingent tax liabiliries are adequate in the evenrt the tax positions are not ultimately upheld.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with the accounting
and reporting for uncertainty in income tax provisions. This interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the
financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected o
be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and the Company
will adopr the new requirements in its fiscal first quarter of 2008. The cumulative effects, if any, of adopting FIN 48 will
be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has not
determined the impact, if any, of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note 16: Earnings per Share

The following table represents the calculation of net earnings per common share — basic and diluted (in thousands,
except earnings per share):
FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 Oa2,2005 e 3, 2004
Net earnings $564,259  $494,370  $388,880
Weighted average common shares and common stock units outstanding
{for basic calculation) 766,114 789,570 794,347
Dilutive effect of outstanding common stock options 26,442 25,847 28,583
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding
{for diluted calculation) 792,956 815,417 822,930
Net earnings per common share — basic § 074 3 063 $ 049
Net carnings per common and common equivalent share — diluted P 071 5 061 § 047

Potential dilutive shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options
(both vested and non-vested) using the treasury stock method. Potential dilucive shares are excluded from the
computation of earnings per share if their effect is antidilutive. The antidilutive options totaled 10.3 million, 13.7 million
and 0.3 million in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 17: Related Party Transactions

In April 2001, certain members of the Board of Directars and other investors, organized as The Basketball Club of Seattle,
LLC (*The Basketball Club”), purchased the franchises for The Seattle Supersonics and The Seattle Storm basketball
tcams. An executive officer of the Company and member of the Board of Directors, Howard Schulrz, owned a controlling
interest in The Basketball Club, until the franchises were sold to an unrelated third party in Ocrober 2006. Starbucks paid
approximately $0.6 million, $0.8 million and $0.8 million during fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for
team sponsorships and ricker purchases. Terms of the team sponsorship agreements did not change as a result of the
related parcy relationship.

In Junc 2005, a then-member of the Company’s Board of Directors was appointed president and chief financial officer of
Oracle Corporation. Starbucks had a pre-existing business relationship with Oracle related to financial systems and
systems consulting at the time of the appointment and Starbucks continued to make payments for supplies and services
subsequent to June 2005 in the ordinary course of business. These payments totaled approximately $2.7 million from the
inception of the related party relationship in fiscal 2005 through November 15, 2005 when the former Board member’s
employment relationship with Oracle ended.

Note 18: Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of certain Japanese yen-denominated bank loans and
related interest and fees of an unconsolidated equity investee, Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. The guarantees continue until
the loans, including accrued interest and fees, have been paid in full, wich the final loan amount due in 2014. The
maximum amount is limited to the sum of unpaid principal and interest amounts, as well as other related expenses. These
amounts will vary based on fluctuarions in the yen foreign exchange rate. As of October 1, 2006, the maximum amount of
the guarantees was approximately $6.0 miltion. Since there has been no modification of these loan guarantees subsequent
to the Company's adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantces, Including Indebtedness of Others,” Starbucks has applied the disclosure provisions only and has not
recorded the guarantee on its consolidated balance sheet,

Starbucks has commirments under which it unconditionally guarantees its proportionate share, or 50%, of certain
borrowings of unconsolidated equity investees. The Company’s maximum exposure under these commitments is
approximately 57.2 million, excluding interest and other related costs, and the majority of these commitments expire in
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2007 and 2011. As of October 1, 2006, the Company recorded $3.0 million ro “Equity and other investments” and
“Other long-term liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheet for the fair value of the guarantee arrangements.

Coffee brewing and espresso equipment sold to customers through Company-operated and licensed retail stores, as well
as equipment sold to the Company's licensees for use in retail licensing operations, are under warrancy for defects in
marerials and workmanship for a period ranging from 12 to 24 months. Effective fiscal 2006, the Company elected to
discontinue repairing brewing machines and instead offer an exchange to customers as a general right of return for any of
its products, As a result, Starbucks maintains a sales return allowance based on historical patterns to reduce related
revenues for estimated future product returns. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company established an accrual for estimared
warranty costs at the time of sale, also based on historical experience. Product warrancy costs and changes to the related
accrual were not significant for the fiscal years ended October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2005.

Legal Proceedings

On june 3, 2004, two then-currenc employees of the Company filed a lawsuit, entitled Sean Pendlebury and Laurel
Qverton v. Starbucks Coffee Company, in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida claiming the
Company violated requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”). The suir alleges that the Company
misclassified its retail store managers as exempr from the overtime provisions of the FLSA, and that each manager
therefore is entitled to overtime compensation for any week in which he or she worked more than 40 hours during the
three years before joining the suit as a plaintiff, and for as long as they remain a manager thereafter. Plainiffs seek to
represent themselves and all similarly situated U.S. current and former store managers of the Company. Plaintiffs seek
reimbursement for an unspecified amount of unpaid overdime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney’s fees and
costs, Plaintiffs also filed on June 3, 2004 a motion for conditional collective action treatment and court-supervised
notice to addirional putative class members under the opt-in procedures in section 16{b) of the FLSA. On January 3,
2005, the district court enzered an order authorizing nationwide notice of the lawsuit to all current and former store
managets employed by the Company during the three years before the suit was filed. The Company filed a motion for
summary judgment as to the claims of the named plaintiffs on September 24, 2004. The court denied that motion
because this case was in the early stages of discovery, but the court noted that the Company may resubmit this motion ata
later date. Starbucks believes that che plaintffs are properly classified as exempt under the federal wage laws. The
Company cannot estimate the possible loss to the Company, if any and believes that a loss in this case is unlikely. Trial is
currently set for August 2007. The Company intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit.

On October 8, 2004, a former hourly employee of the Company filed a lawsuit in San Diego County Superior Court
entitled fou Chau v. Starbucks Coffee Company. The lawsuit alleges that the Company violated the California Labor Code
by allowing shift supervisors to receive tips. More specifically, the lawsuir alleges thar since shift supervisors direct the
work of baristas, they qualify as “agents” of the Company and are therefore excluded from receiving tips under California
Labor Code Section 351, which prohibits employers and their agents from collecting or receiving tips left by patrons for
other emplayees. The lawsuit further alleges that because the tipping practices violate the Labor Code, they also are unfair
practices under the California Unfair Competition Law. In addition to recovery of an unspecified amount of tips
distributed to shift supervisors, the lawsuit seeks penalties under California Labor Code Section 203 for willful failure to
pay wages due, Plainiff also secks attorneys’ fees and costs. On March 30, 2006, the Court issued an order cerrifying the
case as a class action, with the plainaff representing a class of all persons employed as baristas in the state of California
since October 8, 2000. The size of the class has yet to be determined. The Company cannot estimate the possible loss to
the Company, if any. The Company believes its practices comply with California law, and the Company intends 1o
vigorously defend the lawsuit. Trial is currently set for May 2007.

On March 11, 2005, a former employee of the Company filed a lawsuit, entitled James Falcon v. Starbucks Corporation
and Does | through 100, in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Texas claiming that the Company violated
requirements of the FLSA. Specifically, the plaintiff claims that the Company misclassified its retail assistanc store
managers as exempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA and thart cach assistant manager therefore is entitled to
overtime compensation for any weck in which he or she worked more than 40 hours during the three years before joining
the suit as a plaingff, and for as long as they remain an assistant manager thereafter. On August 18, 2005, the plaintiff
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amended his complaint to include allegations that he and other retail assistant store managers were not paid overtime
compensation for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a work week after they were re-classified as non-exempt
employees in September 2002. In both claims, Plaintiff secks to represent himself and a putative class of all current and
former assistant store managers employed by the Company in the United States from March 11, 2002 undil the present.
He also seeks, on behalf of himself and the class, reimbursement for an unspecified amount of unpaid overtime
compensation, liquidated damages, injunctive relief, and attorney’s fees and costs. On September 13, 2005, the plaindff
filed a motion for conditional collective action treatment and court-supervised notice to all putarive class members under
the opt-in procedures in section 16(b) of the FLSA. On November 29, 2005, the court entered an order authorizing
notice to the class of the existence of the lawsuit and their opportunity to join as plaintiffs. The Company has a policy
requiring that all non-exempt partners, including assistant store managers, be paid for all hours worked, including any
hours worked in excess of 40 per week. The Company also believes that this policy is, and at all relevanc dimes has been,
communicated and followed consistently. Further, the Company believes that the plaindiff and other assistant store
managers were properly classified as exempt under the FLSA prior to September 2002. The Company cannot estimate the
possible loss to the Company, if any, and belicves that a loss in this case is unlikely. No trial date has been set. The
Company intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit.

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its business, but it is not
currently a party to any legal proceeding that management believes would have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Note 19: Segment Reporting

Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the Company’s management reviews financial information for
operational decision making purposes. Beginning in the fiscal fourth quarter of 2006, the Company increased its
repotting scgments from two to three to include a Global CPG segment in addition to the United States and International
segments. This additional operating segment reflects the culmination of internal management realignments in fiscal
2006, and the successful development and launch of certain branded products in the United States and internationally,
commencing in fiscal 2005 and continuing throughout fiscal 2006. Additionally, with the 100% acquisition of the
Company’s operations in Hawaii in fiscal 2006 and the shift in internal management of this market to the United States,
these operations have been moved from the International segment into the United States segment. Segment information
for all prior periods presented has been revised to reflect these changes.

United States

The Company’s United States operations (“United States”) represent 83% of total Company-operated rerail revenues,
57% of total specialty revenues and 79% of total net revenues. United States operations sell coffec and other beverages,
whole bean coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and merchandise primarily through Company-
operated retail stores. Specialty Operations within the United States include licensed retail stores, foodservice accounts
and other initiatives related to the Company’s core business.

International

The Company’s International operations (“International”) represent the remaining 17% of Company-operated retail
revenues and 18% of total specialty revenues as well as 17% of total net revenues. International operations sell coffee and
other beverages, whole bean coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and merchandise through
Company-operated retail stores in the United Kingdom, Canada, Thailand, Australia, Germany, China, Singapore,
Puerto Rico, Chile and Lreland. Specialty Operations in International primarily include retail store licensing operations in
more than 25 countries and foodservice accounts in Canada and the United Kingdom. The Company’s [nternational
operations are in various early stages of development that require a more exiensive support organization, relative to the
current levels of revenue and operating income, than in the United States.
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Global Consumer Products Group

The Company’s CPG segment represents 25% of total speciaity revenues and 4% of total net revenues. CPG operations
sell a selection of whole bean and ground coffees as well as a selection of premium Tazo® teas through licensing
arrangements with Kraft and other grocery and warehouse club stores in Unired Scates and international markets. CPG
operations also produce and sell ready-to-drink beverages which include, among others, bottled Frappuccino® coffee
drinks and Starbucks DoubleShot® espresso drinks, and Starbucks® superpremium ice creams, through its joint venture
partnerships and Starbucks™ Coffee and Cream Liqueurs through a marketing and distribution agreement. Through
other manufacturing, distribution and co-packing agreements, the Company produces and sells ready-to-drink products
in internadonal locations.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies in Note 1. Operating income represents earnings before “Interest and other income, net” and
“Income raxes.” Allocations of portions of corporate overhead, interest or income taxes to the segments are not significant.
Identifiable assets by segment are those assets used in the Company’s operations in each segment. Unallocated corporate
assets include cash and investments, unallocated assets of the corporate headquarters and roasting facilities, deferred taxes
and certain other intangibles. Management evaluates performance of segments based on nert revenues and operating
expenses.

The rable below presents information by operating segmenr for the fiscal vears noted (in thousands):

Unallocated
Unired Sures International Global CPG Curporate " Toral
Fiscal 2000:
Net Revenues:
Company-operated retail $5,495,240 $1,087.858 § — 3 — 36,583,098
Specialry:
Licensing 369,155 186,050 305,471 — 860,676
Foodservice and other 314,162 29,006 — — 343,168
Toral specialey . 683,317 215,056 305,471 — 1,203,844
Total net revenues 6,178,557 1,302,914 305,471 —_ 7,786,942
Earnings/{loss) before income taxes 957,631 109,494 166,918 (327,800) 906,243
Depreciation and amortization 284,625 66,800 108 35.678 387,211
Income from equity investees 151 34,370 59,416 — 93,937
Equity method investments — 163,566 41,438 —_ 205,004
Identifiable assets 1,996,295 746.398 94,160 1,592,088 4,428,941
Net impairment and disposition losses 9,395 10,084 — 143 19,622
Ner capital expenditures 545,074 112,054 286 113.816 771,230

(1) Unallocated corporate includes certain general and administrative expenses, related depreciation and amortization expenses and
amounts included in “Interest and other income, net” on the consolidated statements of earnings.
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Unallocated

Uniited States International Global CPG Corporare ! Toral
Fiscal 2005:
Net Revenues:
Company-operated retail $4,539,455 $ 852472 ¢ — % —  $5.391.927
Specialey:
Licensing 277,987 145,736 249,292 — 673,015
Foodservice and other 280,073 24,285 — — 304,358
Total specialty 558,060 170,021 249,292 — 977.373
Total net revenues 5,097,515 1,022,493 249,292 — 6,369,300
Earnings/(loss) before income raxes 817,815 82,465 131,449 (235,382) 796,347
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 250,339 56,705 76 33,049 340,169
fncome from equity investees 592 30,477 45,579 — 76,648
Equity method investments 456 161,056 28,364 — 189,876
ldentifiable assets 1,562,973 604,577 71,549 1,274,594 3,513,693
Net impairment and disposition losses 13,647 4,039 (13 1,791 19,464
Nert capital expenditures 440,228 115,064 72 87,932 643,296
Fiseal 2004:
Net Revenues:
Company-operated reail $3,800,367 § 657,011 § — ¢ —  $4,457,378
Specialty:
Licensing 211,269 119,325 235,204 — 565,798
Foodservice and other 253,502 17,569 — — 271,071
Total specialty 464,771 136,894 235,204 — 836,869
Tortal net revenues 4,265,138 793,905 235,204 — 5,294,247
Earnings/{loss) before income taxes 663,659 46,502 104,452 (193,979} 620,634
Depreciation and amortization 209,586 46,196 862 32,538 289,182
Income from equiry investees 564 20,961 37,453 — 58,978
Equity method investments 434 144,040 14,367 - 158,841
Identifiable assets 1,299,667 483,240 50,631 1,552,728 3,386,266
Net impairment and disposition losses - 9,385 5,497 2,032 1,034 17,948
Net capital expenditures 319,916 64,454 148 32,399 416,917

(1) Unallocated corporate includes certain general and administrative expenses, related depreciation and amortization expenses and
amounts included in “Interest and other income, net” on the consolidated statements of earnings.

The tables below represent information by geographic area (in thousands):
FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oce 1. 2006 Oct 2, 2005 O 3, 2004

Net revenues from external customers:

United States $6,478,142  $5,346,967  $4,501,288
Foreign countries 1,308,800 1,022,333 792,959
Total $7,786,942 $6,369,300  $5,294,247

No customer accounts for 10% or more of the Company’s revenues. Revenues from foreign countries are based on the
geographic location of the customers and consist primarily of revenues from the United Kingdom and Canada, which
together account for approximately 75% of foreign net revenues.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED Oct 1, 2006 Ot 2, 2005 Out 3, 2004
Long-lived assets:
United States $2,446,126  $1,914,846  $1.739,638
Foreign countries 453,027 389,513 299,740
Total $2,899.153  $2,304,359  $2,039,378

Assets attributed to foreign countries are based on the country in which those assets are located.

Note 20: Subsequent Event

On Ocrober 18, 2006, the Company acquired from H&Q Asia Pacific, and other sharcholders, 90% equity ownership of
High Grown Investment Group (Hong Kong) Limited, which in turn is the controlling shareholder of Beijing Mei Da
Coffee Co. Ltd. (“Mei Da”}, the operator of 61 Starbucks retail stores in Beijing and Tianjin, China, and an authorized
licensee of Starbucks Coffee International. Beijing Sanyuan Company continues to be a minority shareholder of Mei Da.
Due to its majority ownership of these operations, Starbucks will apply the consolidation method of accounting

beginning on the date of acquisition.

Note 21: Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information in fiscal 2006 and 2005 is as follows (in thousands, except earnings per share):

Firnt Second Third Fourth Toal
2006 quarter:

Net revenues $1,934,092  $1,885,822  $1,963,673  $2,003,355  $7,786,942
Operating income 279,847 201,894 214,573 197,638 893,952
Earnings before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle 174,156 127,316 145,498 134,503 581,473
Cumulative effect of accounting

change for FIN 47, net of taxes — — — 17,214 17,214
Net earnings 174,156 127,316 145,498 117,289 564,259
Earnings per commeon share before

cumulative effect of accounting

change for FIN 47 — diluted 0.22 0.16 0.18 0.17 0.73
Net earnings per common share —

diluced $ 022 § 0.16 § 0.18 $ 0.15 5 0.71

2005 quarter:

Net revenues $1.589,544  $1,518,716  $1,601,799  $1,659.241  $6,369,300
Operating income 227,155 157,278 199,570 196,515 780,518
Net earnings 144,674 100,461 125,513 123,722 494,370
Net earnings per commeon share —

diluted 3 017  § 012 % 0.16 § 0.16 & 0.61

ARBUCES CORPORATION, FORM 10-K

:3:]




AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Starbucks Corporation
Seattle, Washingron

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of Qctober 1, 2006 and Ocrober 2, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended October 1, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of marerial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all marerial respects, the financial position of
Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries as of October 1, 2006 and Ocrober 2, 2005, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 1, 2006, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Srares of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
stock-based compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment” and the Company changed its method of accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations upon
adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.”

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {(United
States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of October 1, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission and our report dated December 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Isi DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Seattle, Washingron
December 14, 2006
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AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Starbucks Corporatien
Seactle, Washington

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over
Financial Reperting, that Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries {the “Company”) maintained effective internal conerol
over financial reporting as of October 1, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require thar we plan and perform the audit to obrain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obraining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal conuol over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thar (1) pertin to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thar receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial satements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment thar the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of October 1, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizarions of the Treadway Commission.
Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all marerial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of October 1, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoting Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended Ocrober 1, 2006 of the Company and our
report dated December 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and included an
explanatory paragraph regarding the change in accounting for stock-based compensation upon adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” and the change in accounting for conditional asset
retirement obligations upon adoprion of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for
Condirional Asser Retirement Obligations — an interpretation of FASB Statement 143.”

{si DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Seattle, Washington

December 14, 20006
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Conitrols and Procedures
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company mainains disclosure controls and procedures chat are designed to ensure that material information
required to be disclosed in the Company’s periodic reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC’s rules and forms.

During the quarter the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with che participation of the
Company's management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were eftective, as of the end of the period covered by this report
{October 1, 20006).

During the quarter ended October 1, 2006, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that materially affected or are reasonably
likely to materially affect internal control over financial reporting.

The certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits 31.1 and 31.2,
respectively, to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Starbucks is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
our financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepred in the United
Scates of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable derail
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance thar transactions are recorded as necessary for
preparation of our financial statements; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in
accordance with management authotization; and providing reasonable assurance thar unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of company assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected
on a timely basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide
absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework and criteria established in frrernal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the Commitcee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This evaluation included review of the documentation of controls,
evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls, testing of the operating effectiveness of controls and a conclusion on this
evaluation. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of October 1, 2006. Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of October 1, 2006 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in ltem 8 of this Report.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

STARBUCKEB CORPORATION, FORM 10-




PART II

As used in this Part IIl, “Starbucks” and the “Company” mean Starbucks Corporadion.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The informarion required by this item regarding the Company’s directors is incorporated herein by reference to the
sections entitled “PROPOSAL 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS” and “EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION —
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on March 21, 2007 (the “Proxy Statement”). Information regarding the Company's
executive officers is set forth in Item 4 of Part 1 of this Report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

The Company adopred a code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer, controller and other
finance leaders, which is a “code of ethics” as defined by applicable rules of the SEC. This code is publicly available on the
Company's website at www.starbucks.com/aboutus/corporate_governance.asp. If the Company makes any amendments
to this code other than technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendments, or grants any waivers, including
implicit waivers, from a provision of this code to the Company’s chief executive officer, chief financial officer or
controller, the Company will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver, its effective date and to whom it applies on
its website or in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “EXECUTIVE COMPEN-
SATION” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and

Related Shareholder Matters
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled “BENEFICIAL OWNER-
SHIP OF COMMON STOCK” and "EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION — Equity Compensation Plan Informartion”
in the Proxy Statement.
Itemn 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “EXECUTIVE COMPEN-
SATION — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ in the Proxy Statement.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm Fees” and “Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit
Services of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

{a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Form 10-K:

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following financial statements are included in Part I, ltem 8 of this Form 10-K:

* Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the fiscal years ended Ocrober 1, 2006, October 2, 2003, and October 3,
2004;
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« Consolidated Balance Sheets as of October 1, 20006, and Qcrober 2, 2005;

« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended Ocrober 1, 2006, October 2, 2005, and Ocrober 3,
2004;

« Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended October 1, 2006, October 2, 2005, and
Qcrober 3, 2004;

» Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; and

+ Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financia! statement schedules are omitted because they are not required or are not applicable, or the required information
is provided in the consolidated financial statements or notes described in Trem 15(a}(1) above.

3. EXHIBITS

The Exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits, which appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated
herein by reference, are filed as parc of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

STARBUCKS CORPORATION

By: /s/  James L. Donald
James L. Donald .

president and chief executive officer

December 14, 2006
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Howard
Schultz, James L. Donald and Michael Casey, and each of them, as such person’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and
agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for such person and in such person’s name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as such person might
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming thatall said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or
such person’s substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicared.

Sigruture Tl_lle L)a£
By: /s!  Howard Schuluz chairman of the Board of Directors December 14, 2006
Howard Schule
By: /s/ james L. Donald president and chief executive officer, director December 14, 2006
James L. Donald
By: /s/_ Michael Casey executive vice president, chief finandal officer December 14, 2006
Michael Casey and chief administrative officer (principal

financial officer and principal accounting officer)

By: /s/ Barbara Bass director December 14, 2006
Barbara Bass

By: /s/  Howard Behar direcror December 14, 2006
Howard Behar

By: /s/  William W, Bradley director December 14, 2006
William W. Bradley

By: Is/ Mellody Hobson direcror December 14, 2006
Mellody Hobson

By: /s/ Olden Lee director December 14, 2006
Olden Lee
By: /s!/  Jumes G. Shennan Jr. director December 14, 2006

James G. Shennan Jr.

By: s/ Javier G. Teruel director December 14, 2006
Javier G. Teruel

By: /s/  Myron E. Ullman 111 director December 14, 2006
Myron E. Ullman [I1

By: /s/ Craig E. Weatherup director December 14, 2006
Craig E. Weatherup
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Number
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10.1*

10.2*

10.3

10.3.1

10.4*

10.5

10.6™

10.7*

10.8*
10.9
10.10*

10.11*

10.12

10.13*

10.14*

Exhibit Description

Restated Articles of Incorporation of Starbucks
Corporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Starbucks
Corporation

Starbucks Corporation Amended and Restated Key
Employee Stock Option Plan — 1994

Starbucks Corporation Amended and Restated
1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee
Directors

Starbucks Corporation 1991  Company-Wide
Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated
through November 20, 2003

Starbucks Corporation 1991  Company-Wide
Stock Option Plan — Rules of the UK Sub-Plan,
as amended and restated through November 20,
2003

Starbucks Corporation Employee Stock Purchase
Plan — 1995 as amended and restated through
Ociober 1, 2006

Amended and Restated Lease, dated as of January 1,
2001, berween Firstand Utah Street Associates, L.P
and Starbucks Corporation

Starbucks Corporation Executive Management

Bonus Plan, as amended and restated effecrive
September 19, 2006

Starbucks Corporation Management Deferred
Compensation Plan

Starbucks Corporation 1997 Deferred Stock Plan
Starbucks Corporation UK Share Save Plan

Starbucks  Corporation  Directors  Deferred

Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
effective September 29, 2003

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
dated December 16, 2005 between Starbucks
Corporation and Howard Behar

Starbucks Corporation UK Share Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective November 14, 2006

Starbucks Corporation 2005 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective
November 15, 2005

2005 Key Employee Sub-Plan to the Starbucks
Corporation 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive

Plan, as amended and restated effective
November 15, 2005
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Form

10-Q
10-Q
10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K
8-K
5-8
10-K

10-K
10-K

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

Date of Exhibit Filed
File No. First Filing Number Herewith
0-20322 05/12/06 3.1
0-20322 05/12/06 3.2
0-20322 12/23/03 10.1
0-20322 12/23/03 10.2
0-20322 12/23/03 10.3
0-20322 12/23/03  10.3.1
X
0-20322 12/20/01 10.5
0-20322 9125106 10.1
333-65181  10/01/98 4.1
0-20322 12/23/99 10.17
0-20322 12/23/03 10.9
0-20322 12/23/03 16.10
0-20322 12/19/05 10.1
X
0-20322 02/10/006 10.1
0-20322 02/10/06 10.2
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10.17*

i0.18*

10.19*

10.20"

10.21*

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

21
23

Exhibit Description

2005 Non-Employee Director Sub-Plan to the
Starbucks Corporation 2005 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan

Stock Option Grant Agreement for Purchase of
Stock under the 2005 Key Employee Sub-Plan to
the Starbucks Corporation 2005 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan

Stock Option Grant Agreement for Purchase of
Stock under the 2005 Non-Employee Director
Sub-Plan to the Starbucks Corporation 2005
Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan

Leteer Agreement dated as of February 11, 2005 by
and among the Company, the Schulez Irrevocable
Trust and the Howard D. Schultz Irrevocable Trust

Letter Agreement dated March 30, 2005 berween
Starbucks Cotporation and James L. Donald

Letter Agreement dated May 25, 2005 between
Starbucks Corporation and Michael Casey

Letter Agreement dated May 25, 2005 berween
Starbucks Corporation and David A. Pace

2005 Company-Wide Sub-Plan to the Srarbucks
Corporation 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive
Plan

Stock Option Grant Agreement for Purchase of
Stock under the 2005 Company-Wide Sub-Plan
to the Starbucks Corporation 2005 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan

Credit Agreement dated August 12, 2005 among
Starbucks Corporation, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C
Issuer, Wachovia Bank N.A. and Citibank, N.A., as
Co-Documenrtation  Agents, Banc of America
Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A,, as
Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers,
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and
the other Lenders party therero,

Employment Agrecment dated QOcrober 14, 2005
between Starbucks Corporation and Martin Coles

Director Resignation Agreement dated as of
December 1, 2005 among Starbucks Corporation
and its Class 1 and Class 3 Direcrors

Subsidiaries of Starbucks Corporation

Consent  of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Form

8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K/A
8-K
8-K

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

File No.

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

0-20322

Date of Exhibic Filed
First Filing Number Herewith

02/10/05 10.3
02/10/05 10.4
02/10/05 10.5
02/16/05 10.1
04/07/05 10.1
05/27/05 10.1
05/27105 10.2
08/10/05 10.1
08/10/05 10.2
08/15/05 10.1
10/14/05 10.1
12/05/05 10.1

— — X

— — X
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Exhibit Dhace of Exhibit Filed
Number Exhibir Description Form File Na. Firse Filing Number Herewith
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer — — — — X

Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securites
Exchange Act of 1934, As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

312  Certification of Principal Financial Officer — — — — X
Pursuant w Rule 13a-14 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, As Adopted Pursuant 1o
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and — — — — X
Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Denotes a compensatory plan, contract or arrangement, in which the Company’s directors or executive officers may participate.

Note:  Exhibits indicated here as “Filed Herewith” are not reproduced in this printed version.
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2401 Utah Avenue South, Seattle WA 98134 USA
Visit your online Starbucks at Starbucks.com

3 2006 Starbucks Coffec Company. All rights reserved. CPA-141
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